
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING

FEBRUARY 8, 2022 - 4:00 P.M.
CITY HALL-COUNCIL CHAMBERS

415 WEST UNIVERSITY DR.
EDINBURG, TEXAS 78539

 

AGENDAAGENDA
 
1. Call Meeting To Order, Establish Quorum

A. Prayer

B. Pledge of Allegiance

2. Certification of Public Notice

3. Disclosure of Conflict of Interest

4. Meeting Procedures

 The following are the meeting procedures used by the Planning and Zoning Commission:

 A. All the items are generally considered as they appear on the agenda, as each item is
introduced.

 B. Staff will present its findings and recommendation on the item being considered.

 C. The party making the request may make a presentation and may address the
Commission on any issues arising during the discussion of the item being considered.

 D. Anyone in the audience desiring to speak in favor or in opposition may do so. A 3-5
Minute time limit will be given to each person interested in speaking on the item. The
use of a spokesperson for large groups of people will be required.

 E. Once the Chair close the public hearing, the commission may question anyone and
maintain any discussion which clarifies the proposal and will take what action it feel to
be appropriate.

5. ABSENCES

A. Consider Excusing the Absence of Commission Member Victor Daniec from the
December 14, 2021 Regular Meeting.

6. MINUTES

A. Consider approval of the Minutes for the January 17, 2022 Regular Meeting



7. PUBLIC COMMENTS

A. If you would like to participate under public comments, you must submit a request
beginning at 9:00 A.M. the day of the meeting by (a) sending an email to
PublicHearing@cityofedinburg.com or (b) calling the Planning and Zoning
Department at 956-388-8202. All request should include your name, address, and
telephone number. We ask for everyone's cooperation in following this procedure

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS

 A. Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Urban Uses to Neighborhood
Commercial Uses and the Rezoning Request from Neighborhood Conservation 5
(NC5) District to Commercial Neighborhood (CN) District, Lot 1, Laurel Heights
Subdivision, located at 202 East Sprague Street, as requested by Roberto Martinez

    
    
 B. Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Auto-Urban Uses to General

Commercial Uses and the Rezoning Request from Suburban Residential (S) District
to Commercial General (CG) District, a 5.00 acre tract of land out of Lot 15, Section
237, Texas-Mexican Railway Company’s Survey, located at 1000 North McColl
Road, as requested by Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, Inc., on behalf of Cubic
Walls, LLC.

    
    
 C. Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Auto-Urban Uses to Urban

Uses and the Rezoning Request from Commercial General (CG) District to Urban
Residential (UR) District, a 3.108 acre tract of land out of Lot 30, Kelly-Pharr
Subdivision, located at 620 East Wisconsin Road, as requested by Melden & Hunt,
Inc., on behalf of The Shoppes at Rio Grande Valley

    
    
 D. Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Agriculture Uses to Auto-Urban

Uses and the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) District to Auto-Urban
Residential (AU) District, a 4.985 acre tract of land out of Lot 14, Section 233,
Texas-Mexican Railway Company’s Survey, located at 1013 North Depot Road, as
requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc., on behalf of Rosendo and Stephanie V. Benitez

    
    
 E. Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Industrial Uses to Auto-Urban

Uses and the Rezoning Request from Commercial General (CG) District to Auto-
Urban Residential (AU) District, a 12.831 acre tract of land consisting of 5.872 acres
out of Lot 11, all of Lot 12 and 1.429 acres out of Lot 13, Subdivision “C”, Original
Townsite, Amended City of Edinburg, located at 221 East Schunior Street, as
requested by Treviño Engineering, on behalf of Mel Phillip, Tide Products, Inc.

    
    
 F. Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from General Commercial Uses to

Auto-Urban Uses and the Rezoning Request from Suburban Residential (S) District
to Auto-Urban Residential (UR) District, a 6.87 acre tract of land, more or less, being
a portion of Lot 15, Section 277, Texas-Mexican Railway Company’s Survey,
located at 4401 West Sprague Street, as requested by Realtex Development, on
behalf of BBB & J Investments, LTD.

    



    

 G. Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Industrial Uses to General
Commercial Uses and the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) District to
Commercial General (CG) District, 15.336 acres out of Lot 1, Section 244, Texas-
Mexican Railway Company’s Survey, located at 500 East Monte Cristo Road, as
requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc., on behalf of Garman Investments, LP.

    
    

9. SUBDIVISIONS (PLATS)

 A. Consider the Preliminary Plat of Carmen Avila Subdivision Phase VI, being a 37.64
acre tract of land out of Tract 156, San Salvador del Tule Grant, located at 9101
Carmen Avila Road, as requested by Quintanilla, Headley and Associates, Inc.

    
    
 B. Consider the Preliminary Plat of La Reserva Phase I-C Subdivision, being 4.048

acres out of Lots 6 and 11, Block 73, Engelman, Re-Subdivision, of the Missouri-
Texas and Irrigation Company’s Subdivision in Las Mesteñas Grant, located at
23501 Uresti Street as requested by HALFF Associates, Inc.

    
    
 C. Consider the Preliminary Plat of La Reserva Phase I-D Subdivision, being a 4.652

acre tract out of Lot 14, Block 73, Engelman, Re-Subdivision, of the Missouri-Texas
and Irrigation Company’s Subdivision in Las Mesteñas Grant, located at 23001
Uresti Street as requested by HALFF Associates, Inc.

    
    

10. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Consider the Final Plat for Los Lagos Subdivision Phase V - 'B', being a 15.90 acre
tract of land more or less out of Lot 1, Swearengen Tract, located at 3707 East
Mallorca Drive, as requested by Rio Delta Engineering

11. SUBDIVISIONS (VARIANCES)

A. Consider Variance Request to the City's Unified Development Code Section 8.204
Street Standards, Paving Width, proposed Los Cortijos Subdivision, being 60.00
acres out of the East 1/2 of Lot 13, Block 57, all of Lot 16, Block 58, Alamo Land
and Sugar Company's Subdivision, located at 7601 East Trenton Road, as requested
by Melden & Hunt, Inc., on behalf of Frank Villanueva and Abigail Villanueva
Sandoval

12. DIRECTOR'S REPORT

A. City Council Actions: January 18, 2022 and February 1, 2022
B. Unified Development Code Update

13. INFORMATION ONLY

A. Attendance Roster

14. ADJOURNMENT



I hereby certify that this notice of meeting was posted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act,
V.T.C.A., Government Code, Section 551.041, at the Edinburg City Hall Building, 415 West
University Drive, Edinburg, Texas, visible and accessible to the general public during regular
working hours, on Friday, February 4, 2022 at 4:05 P.M.

 
  

 Alejandra Gonzalez, Administrative Assistant
Planning & Zoning Department

 

 

NOTICE
PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES WHO NEED TO COMMUNICATE MORE EFFECTIVELY WITH CITY OFFICIALS AND WHO
MAY NEED AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES SUCH AS INTERPRETERS FOR PERSONS WHO ARE DEAF OR HEARING
IMPAIRED ARE REQUESTED TO CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY AT (956) 388-8204 THREE WORKING
DAYS PRIOR TO ANY MEETING SO THAT APPROPRIATE ARRANGEMENTS CAN BE MADE.



415 W. University Drive  •  Edinburg, Texas 78541  •  Phone (956) 388-8202  Fax (956) 292-2080 
www.cityofedinburg.com 

Memo
To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Planning & Zoning Commission Members 

Alejandra Gonzalez, Administrative Assistant 

Commission Members Absence 

February 4, 2022

This is to advise you that action needs to be taken with regards to the absence of 
Commission Member Victor Daniec from the December 14, 2021 Regular Meeting.  

Should you have any questions, you may call me at 956-388-8202. 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 17, 2022 
EDINBURG CITY HALL – CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 415 WEST UNIVERSITY DRIVE 
EDINBURG, TEXAS 78541 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT      MEMBERS ABSENT 
Joe Ochoa, Chairperson       
Hiren Govind, Vice Chairperson 
Ruby Casas, Commissioner 
Rene Olivarez, Commissioner 
Jorge Gonzalez, Commissioner 
Victor Daniec, Commissioner 
Jorge Sotelo, Commissioner 

 
STAFF 

Kimberly Mendoza, Planning & Zoning Director   Abel Beltran, Planner I 
Alejandra Gonzalez, Administrative Assistant    Jaime Ayala, Planner II 
Nikki Marie Cavazos, Planner I     Daniel A. Colina, Planner I 
Omar Garza, Deputy Chief      Patrizia Longoria, Engineer III 
Peter Hermida, Engineer III      Tilfred Farley, Planning Assistant 
Omar Ochoa, City Attorney  Mardoqueo Hinojosa, City Engineer 
Brian Kelsey, Assistant City Manager Robert Hernandez, Engineer I 
Tomas Reyna, Assistant City Manager    Blanca Davila, EDC Director 
Rita Lee Guerrero, Management Analyst     Carlos H. Garza, EDC Coordinator 
      

VISITORS 
Gustavo Montemayor       John & Sylvia Salazar 
Kathy Lewis        Tracy Arnold 
Alfonso Quintanilla       Karime Farachala 
Luis A. Mendez       Arlett Rodriguez 
Ruben De Jesus       Omar Cano 
Mario Reyna        Ivan Garcia 
             
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER, ESTABLISH QUORUM 
  
Quorum was established and meeting was called to order at 4:00 P.M. 
 

A. Prayer – Prayer was announced by Chairperson Joe Ochoa 
 
B. Pledge of Allegiance – The Pledge of Allegiance was said. 

 
C. Election of Officers – Chairperson and Vice Chairperson 

 
Motion was made by Vice Chairperson Hiren Govind and seconded by Commission Member Jorge Sotelo to 
re-elect Chairperson Joe Ochoa. Motion carried with a vote of 4-0 and one abstention, Joe Ochoa. Commission 
Member Ruby Casas joined the meeting. Motion was made by Commission Member Jorge Sotelo and seconded 
by Chairperson Joe Ochoa to re-elect Vice Chairperson Hiren Govind. Motion carried with a vote of 5-0 and 
one abstention, Hiren Govind.  
 
 



 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
JANUARY 17, 2022 
PAGE 2 
 
2. CERTIFICATION OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Jaime Ayala verified the posting of the Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Notice and its compliance 
with the Open Meetings Act.  
 
3. MEETING PROCEDURES 
The following are the meeting procedures used by the Planning and Zoning Commission: 
 

A. All the items are generally considered as they appear on the agenda. As each item is introduced. 
 

B. Staff will present its findings and recommendation on the item being considered. 
 
 

C. The party making the request may make a presentation and may address the Commission on any  
  issues arising during the discussion of the item being considered. 
 

D. Anyone in the audience desiring to speak in favor or in opposition may do so. A 3 minute time  
limit will be given to each person interested in speaking on the item. The use of a spokesperson for 
large groups of people will be required. 

 
E. Once the Chair close the public hearing, the commission may question anyone and maintain any  

 discussion which clarifies the proposal and will take what action it feel to be appropriate. 
 
4.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
A. If you would like to participate under public comments, you must submit a request beginning at 

9:00 A.M. the day of the meeting by (a) sending an email to PublicHearing@cityofedinburg.com or 
(b) calling the Planning & Zoning Department at 956-388-8202. All requests should include your 
name, address, and telephone number. We ask for everyone’s cooperation in following this 
procedure. 

 
No public comments. 

 

      

5. MINUTES 
 

A. Consider approval of the Minutes for the October 12, 2021, November 9, 2021, and December 14, 
2021 Regular Meetings 
 

MOTION WAS MADE BY VICE CHAIRPERSON HIREN GOVIND AND SECONDED BY 
COMMISSION MEMBER JORGE SOTELO TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FOR THE 
OCTOBER 12, 2021, NOVEMBER 9, 2021, AND DECEMBER 14, 2021. MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 6-0. 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 

mailto:PublicHearing@cityofedinburg.com


PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
JANUARY 17, 2022 
PAGE 3 
 

A. Consider the Initial Zoning Request to Urban Residential (UR) District, being a 26.80 acre tract of land 
out of Lot 14, Block 1, John Closner Et Al Subdivision, located at 4700 South Raul Longoria Road, as 
requested by CJE Construction, LLC. 
 
 COMMISSION MEMBER VICTOR DANIEC JOINED THE MEETING. BEING NO 
DISCUSSION, MOTION WAS MADE BY VICE CHAIR PERSON HIREN GOVIND AND 
SECONDED BY COMMISSION MEMBER RUBY CASAS TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL 
OF THE INITIAL ZONING REQUEST. MOTION CARRIED WITH A VOTE OF 6-0 AND 1 
ABSTENTION, VICTOR DANIEC.  
 

B. Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Industrial Uses to Urban Uses and the Rezoning 
Request from Agriculture (AG) District to Urban Residential (UR) District, being 15.336 acres out of 
Lot 1, Section 244, Texas-Mexican Railway Company’s Survey, located at 500 East Monte Cristo 
Road, as requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc. 
 
PROJECT ENGINEER RUBEN DE JESUS WAS PRESENT AND ADDRESSED THE BOARD 
AFTER DISCUSSION REGARDING TRAFFIC CONCERNS THAT RESIDENTS 
EXPRESSED. RUBEN DE JESUS REQUESTED TO TABLE THE ITEM DUE TO THE 
CONSENSUS. MOTION WAS MADE BY VICTOR DANIEC AND SECONDED BY VICE 
CHAIRPERSON HIREN GOVIND TO TABLE THE ITEM. MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 7-0. 
 

C. Consider the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) District to Commercial General (CG) District, 
being a 1.00 acre tract of land out of Lot 71, Kelly-Pharr Subdivision, located at 1415 West Owassa 
Road, as requested by Jaime Cantu 
 
BEING NO DISCUSSION, MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSION MEMBER RENE 
OLIVAREZ AND SECONDED BY COMMISSION MEMBER VICTOR DANIEC TO 
RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE REZONING REQUEST.  MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 7-0. 

 
D. Consider the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) District to Auto-Urban Residential (AU) 

District, being a 12.605 acre tract of land out of Lots 31 & 32, The M.L. Woods Co. Tract No. 4, 
located at 4801 South Veterans Boulevard, as requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc. 

 
FOLLOWING BRIEF DISCUSSION REGARDING THE LOT SIZES, MOTION WAS MADE 
BY COMMISSION MEMBER RENE OLIVAREZ AND SECONDED BY VICE 
CHAIRPERSON HIREN GOVIND TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE REZONING 
REQUEST. MOTION CARRIED UNANIOMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 7-0.  

 
E. Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Auto Urban Uses to General Commercial Uses 

and the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) District to Commercial General (CG) District, being a 
4.349 acre tract of land out of Lots 31 & 32, The M.L. Woods Co. Tract No. 4, located at 4513 South 
Veterans Boulevard, as requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc. 

 
 
 
 



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
JANUARY 17, 2022 
PAGE 4 
 

PROJECT ENGINEER WAS PRESENT AND ADDRESSED THE BOARD. FOLLOWING 
BRIEF DISCUSSION REGARDING WHETHER THE ITEM HAD BEEN BROUGHT 
BEFORE THE BOARD PREVIOUSLY AND IF THE ISSUES HAD BEEN SOLVED, 
MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSION MEMBER VICTOR DANIEC AND SECONDED 
BY VICE CHAIRPERSON HIREN GOVIND TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDEMENT AND REZONING REQUEST. MOTION 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 7-0. 

 
F. Consider the Rezoning Request from Neighborhood Conservation 7.1 (NC7.1) District to Urban  

Residential (UR) District, Lot 5, Block 287, Original Edinburg Townsite Subdivision, located at 1120 
East Mahl Street, as requested by Gustavo Montemayor 
 
MOTION WAS MADE BY VICE CHAIRPERSON HIREN GOVIND AND SECONDED BY 
COMMISSION MEMBER VICTOR DANIEC TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE 
REZONING REQUEST. MOTON CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 7-0. 
 

7. SUBDIVISION (PLATS) 
 

A. Consider the Preliminary Plat of North McColl Estates, being a 29.130 acre tract out of Lot 3, Section 
276 Texas-Mexican Railway Company’s Survey, located at 501 North McColl Road, as requested by 
Melden & Hunt, Inc. 
 

B. Consider the Preliminary Plat of Russel Oaks Estates Subdivision, being a 38.786 acre tract out of land 
out of Lot 16, Block 53, Alamo Land & Sugar Company Subdivision, located at 2300 North Cesar 
Chavez Road, as requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc. 
 

C. Consider the Preliminary Plat of Cesar Chavez Heights Subdivision, being a 17.94 acre tract out of Lot 
4, Block 55, Alamo Land and Sugar Company Subdivision, located at 3101 South Cesar Chavez Road, 
as requested by Trevino Engineering 
 

D. Consider the Preliminary Plat of Alberta Heights Subdivision Phase II, being a 3.261 acre tract out of 
Lot 53, Kelly-Pharr Subdivision, located at 801 West Alberta Road, as requested by Trevino 
Engineering 
 

E. Consider the Preliminary Plat of Highland Heights Subdivision, being a 26.80 acre tract out of Lot 14, 
Block 1, John Closner Et Al Subdivision, located at 4700 South Raul Longoria Road FM 1426, as 
requested by SAMES Engineering 
 

F. Consider the Preliminary Plat of Ricdez Estates, being 5.0 acres out of Lot 8, Section 250, Texas-
Mexican Railway Company's Survey, located at 5201 East Mile 17 North Road, as requested by 
SAMES Engineering 
 
MOTION WAS MADE BY VICE CHAIRPERSON HIREN GOVIND AND SECONDED BY 
COMMISSION MEMBER JORGE SOTELO TO APPROVE ITEMS 7A-7F. MOTION 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 7-0. 

 
 

 



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
JANUARY 17, 2022 
PAGE 5 
  
8. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Consider the Final Plat of Border Town Subdivision Phase 3, being a 66.75 acre tract of land, more or 
less, out of and forming part or portion of Lots 13 and 14, Block 70, Engelman Re-subdivision, located 
at 8201 FM 2812, as requested by Rio Delta Engineering 
 

B. Consider the Final Plat for Canton Heights Subdivision No. 2, being an 8.33 acre tract of land out of 
Lot 4, Block 1, John Closner, et al. Subdivision, located at 2200 East Canton Road, as requested by 
Supreme Engineering 

 
C. Consider the Final Plat of T&O Ranch No. 2 Subdivision, being a 4.95 acre tract of land out of Lots 2 

& 3, Block 28, Santa Cruz Gardens Unit 2 Subdivision, located at 7100 East Benito A. Ramirez Road, 
as requested by Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, Inc. 

 
D. Consider the Final Plat of Las Encinitas, being a 72.20-acre tract of land out of Lots “R” and “S”, 

Block 2, Santa Cruz Ranch Subdivision, located at 6101 East Monte Cristo Road, as requested by 
Quintanilla, Headley, & Associates Inc. 

 
E. Consider the Final Plat for Canton Heights Subdivision No. 3, being a 5.60 acre tract of land out of Lot 

4, Block 1, John Closner, et al. Subdivision, located at 2200 East Canton Road, as requested by 
Supreme Engineering 

 
MOTION WAS MADE BY VICE CHAIRPERSON HIREN GOVIND AND SECONDED BY 
COMMISSIONER JORGE SOTELO TO APPROVE ITEMS 8A-8E. MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 7-0. 
 

9. SUBDIVISION (VARIANCES) 
 

A. Consider Variance Requests to the City’s Unified Development Code: 1) Section 7.404B Block 
Length, 2) Section 8.204A Streets, Paving Width and 3) Section 8.213 Sidewalks, proposed La Reserva 
Subdivision Phase II, being an 81.74 acre tract of land out of Lots 3, 4, 5, 6, 11, & 12, Block 73, 
Engelman Resubdivision or the Missouri-Texas Land and Irrigation Company’s Subdivision in Las 
Mesteñas Grant, located at 8200 East Farm to Market 2812, as requested by Quintanilla, Headley & 
Associates, Inc. 
 
PROJECT ENGINEER ALFONSO QUINTANILLA WAS PRESENT AND ADDRESSED THE 
BOARD. FOLLOWING BRIEF DISCUSSION REGARDING BLOCK LENGTH, DENSITY, 
AND ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS, MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSION MEMBER 
RENE OLIVAREZ AND SECONDED BY COMMISSION MEMBER JORGE GONZALEZ TO 
RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF VARIANCE #1. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
WITH A VOTE OF 7-0. MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER VICTOR DANIEC AND 
SECONDED BY VICE CHAIRPERSON HIREN GOVIND TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF 
VARIANCE #2. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 7-0. MOTION 
WAS MADE BY VICE CHAIRPERSON HIREN GOVIND AND SECONDED BY 
COMMISSION MEMBER JORGE SOTELO. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A 
VOTE OF 7-0.  
 
 



 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
JANUARY 17, 2022 
PAGE 6 
 

B. Consider Variance Requests to the City’s Unified Development Code: 1) Section 3.303 Multi-Family 
Lot and Building Standards, Lot Width and 2) Section 7.404B Block Length, and 3) Section 8.204 
Street Standards, Right-of-way Width, Paving Width, proposed North McColl Estates Subdivision, 
being 29.130 acres out of Lot 3, Section 276, Texas-Mexican Railway Company’s Survey, located at 
501 North McColl Road, as requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc. 

 
PROJECT ENGINEER WAS PRESENT AND ADDRESSED THE BOARD. FOLLOWING 
DISCUSSION REGARDING SIMILAR VARIANCES THAT HAVE BEEN GRANTED AND 
R.O.W., MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSION MEMBER JORGE SOTELO AND 
SECONDED BY COMMISSION MEMBER VICTOR DANIEC TO RECOMMEND 
APPROVAL OF VARIANCE REQUESTS #1, #2, AND #3. MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 7-0.  

 
10. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

A. Unified Development Code Update 
 

MRS. KIMBERLY MENDOZA DISCUSSED MULTIPLE STEERING COMMITTEE 
MEETINGS THAT HAVE TAKEN PLACE. SHE MENTIONED THE CONSULTANT HAS 
BEEN TAKEN ON TOURS IN THE CITY. MRS. MENDOZA ALSO DISCUSSED THE 
MEETING THAT TOOK PLACE ON JANUARY 11, 2022, IN WHICH SUBDIVISION 
STANDARDS, LOT SIZES, AND BLOCK LENGTHS WERE DISCUSSED.  

 
11. INFORMATION ONLY 
 

A. Attendance Roster 
 

 ATTENDANCE ROSTER WAS REVIEWED. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further information to consider, the meeting was adjourned at 5:25 P.M. 
 
 

       Alejandra Gonzalez 

       Alejandra Gonzalez, Administrative Assistant 
       Planning & Zoning Department 



   

City of Edinburg 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting:  February 8, 2022 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT AND REZONING REQUEST 

AGENDA ITEM 8A: 

Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Urban Uses to Neighborhood Commercial 

Uses and the Rezoning Request from Neighborhood Conservation 5 (NC5) District to Commercial 

Neighborhood (CN) District, Lot 1, Laurel Heights Subdivision, located at 202 East Sprague 

Street, as requested by Roberto Martinez 

DESCRIPTION / SCOPE:  

The property is located at the southeast corner of South 12th Avenue and East Sprague Street. The 

property has 100 ft. of frontage along both East Sprague Street and South 12th Avenue for a total 

lot area of 10,000 sq. ft. and has an existing structure used as a day care center. The requested 

zoning designation allows for small-scale commercial and service business uses on the subject 

property. The applicant is requesting the change of zone for a proposed attorney’s office. 

The property is currently zoned Neighborhood Conservation 5 (NC5) District. The surrounding 

zoning is Neighborhood Conservation 7.1 (NC7.1) District to the north, Commercial General (CG) 

District to the west, and Neighborhood Conservation 5 (NC5) District to the south and east. 

Adjacent land uses are single-family residential to the north, south, and east with vacant lots to the 

west. Jefferson Elementary School is approximately 50 ft. south of this location. There are also 

numerous commercial uses in the surrounding area, mostly to the west along South 12th Avenue 

and South Closner Boulevard. The future land use designation is for Urban Uses. 

Staff received a Zone Change Application for the subject property on January 11, 2022. The 

applicant indicated that the intended use is for a proposed attorney’s office. Rezoning is required 

to accommodate the proposed use. 

Staff mailed a notice of the public hearing before to 26 neighboring property owners and received 

no comments in favor or against this request by the time this report was prepared.  

ESTIMATED TIMELINE:  
The recommendation of approval or denial of this public hearing is scheduled for consideration by 

the City Council on March 1, 2022. City Council’s decision is the final step in the zoning process 

for this property. If denied the applicant may not request the proposed zoning classification for a 

12 month period from the date of denial. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends approval of the Rezoning Request from Neighborhood Conservation 5 (NC5) 

District to Commercial Neighborhood (CN) District based on adjacent zoning and land uses.  

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all requirements during the permitting process 

including compliance with subdivision regulations, building and fire codes, fire protection, 

parking, landscape buffer-yards, solid waste services, utility, and any other City requirements, as 

applicable.  



   

JUSTIFICATION:  

Staff recommendation is based on the zoning and land uses in the immediate area, particularly 

along 12th Avenue. Although allowed without rezoning, the existing land use of a childcare center 

at this location is commercial in nature. The proposed attorney’s office is a similar commercial 

use. Furthermore, the mix of commercial and residential uses in the surrounding area make the 

requested zoning and intended use appropriate for this location. 

D. Austin Colina Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  

Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning  

  



   

MEETING DATES:  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION –2/08/2022 

CITY COUNCIL – 3/01/2022  

DATE PREPARED – 1/31/2022 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

APPLICATION: Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Urban Uses to Neighborhood 

Commercial Uses and the Rezoning Request from Neighborhood 

Conservation 5 (NC5) District to Commercial Neighborhood (CN) 

District 

 

APPLICANT: Roberto Martinez 

 

AGENT: N/A 

 

LEGAL: Lot 1, Laurel Heights Subdivision 

 

LOCATION: Located at 202 East Sprague Street 

 

LOT/TRACT SIZE: 10,000 sq. ft. 

  

CURRENT USE: Day care center 

 

PROPOSED USE: Attorney’s office 

 

EXISTING ZONING: Neighborhood Conservation 5 (NC5) District 

 

ADJACENT ZONING: North – Neighborhood Conservation 7.1 (NC7.1) District 

South – Neighborhood Conservation 5 (NC5) District 

East – Neighborhood Conservation 5 (NC5) District 

West – Commercial General (CG) District 

 

LAND USE PLAN: Urban 

 

PUBLIC SERVICES: City of Edinburg Water & Sewer 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the Rezoning Request from 

Neighborhood Conservation 5 (NC5) District to Commercial 

Neighborhood (CN) District 

  



   

REZONING REQUEST 

ROBERTO MARTINEZ 

 

EVALUATION 
 

The following is staff’s evaluation of the request.  

 

1. The land use pattern for this area of the community consists of both residential and 

commercial uses. 

 

2. The applicant is requesting the change of zone for an attorney’s office, replacing an 

existing day care center.  

 

Staff recommends approval of the Rezoning Request from Neighborhood Conservation 5 (NC5) 

District to Commercial Neighborhood (CN) District based on existing land use, as well as adjacent 

zoning and land uses in the surrounding area.  

 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all requirements during the permitting process 

including compliance with subdivision regulations, building and fire codes, fire protection, 

parking, landscape buffer-yards, solid waste services, utility, and any other City requirements, as 

applicable.  
 

Staff mailed a notice of the public hearing before to 26 neighboring property owners and received 

no comments in favor or against this request by the time this report was prepared. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Aerial Photo 

 Site Map 

 Zoning Map 

 Future Land Use Map  

 Photo of site  

 Exhibits  



W  H I L L  D R

W  M A H L  S T

S 
10

TH
 A

V E

S  
1 3

T H
 A

V E

S  
C

L O
S N

E R
 B

LV
D S  

1 5
T H

 A
V E

S  
1 6

T H
 A

V E

S 
9T

H
AV

E
S  

9 T
H  

AV
E

S 
9T

H
AV

E
E  S T U B B S  S T

E  F AY  S T

E  C H A M P I O N  S T

E  S A M A N O  S T

E  S P R A G U E  S T

E  E B O N Y  L N

E  P A R K  D R

S 
13

TH
 A

V E

W  C H A M P I O N  S T

S 
14

TH
 A

V E

S 
12

TH
 A

VE

E  P A R K  D R

E  M A H L  S T

W  C A N A L  S T

W  S T U B B S  S T

W  F AY  S T

W  S P R A G U E  S T

W  S A M A N O  S T

®
1 in = 400 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ROBERTO MARTINEZ / LAUREL HEIGHTS

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

CITY LIMITS



IBC

-03

6

5

4

3

2

1

SM
IT

H-R
OE 

SUBD

20

10

9

8

6

5

7

13

12

11

3

2

4

14 1

-04

-02

-03

-00

-01

00F-0004-02

00F-0004-00

00F-0004-01

26

2524

SE
C

O
N

D
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 C

O
U

N
TR

Y 
C

LU
B 

PL
AC

E

4

8

6

5

7

1211

3

1 23

COUNTRY C
LU

B PLA
CE

17

19

18

5

BA

LIZCANO 

McMILLAN SUBD.

23 22 21 2024 1915 131423 22 21 1820 161724 19

-0006-00-0006-01

C
LO

SN
ER

 B
LV

D
.

4

3 2 1

281
1011 9

32  4

89 7 12

5 4 6 1

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

279

 4

280
10

3

1

12

21

292
1011 9 8

32  4 5

89 7 12

5 4 6 1

325
1011 9 78

32  4 65

89 7 12

5 4 6 1

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

294

 4

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

323

 4

293

324

10

3

10

3

336
1011 9 78

32  4 65

32  4 65

89 7 12

5 4 6 1

5 4 6 1

369
1011 9 78

32  4 65

89 7 12

5 4 6 1

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

2 3

338

 4

 4

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

367

 4

337

368

10

3

10

3

3

12 111011 9 7889 7 128 7 12 11911 10 10

382 381 380

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

15

14

18

17

16

19

17

16

15

14

22

21

20

19

18

25

24

23

26

10

13

12

11

9

8

7

6

5

1

4

3

2

17

16

15

14

22

21

20

19

18

23

5

6

7

8

9

2

3

4

1

1013

12

11

14

13

12

11

18

16

15

17

10

PARK PLACE UNIT NO.1

10

9

8

6

5

7

13

12

11

3

2

4

14 1

6

5

7

3

2

4

1

8

10

9

13

12

11

16

15

14

4

2

3

1

5

7

6

8

4

2

3

18

5

6

7

SUBD.

LOS FRESNOS

4

56

7

8
9

1011

12
13

14

1

2

3

4

5

6

78

9

10

11

12

13

141

2

3

4

5

6

78

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

7

6

5

4

3

2

1
14

13

12

11

10

9

8

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

6

5

4

3

2

1

1

16

7

16

7

1

16

6

7

16

7

7

278277

18 14 1316 1517

11 129 108

27624
14
15
16
17

13

21
22
23

20

295

 41 2 3 5

12 11 10 9 8

296

1 32  4 5 6

1011 9 8 7

 41 2 3 5

12 11 10 9 8

322321

1 32  4 5 6

1011 9 8 7

2 4 63 5 7

913 111012 8

297
21

13

18
17
16
15
14

12
11
10
9
8
7 1

24

14

16

22

20

18
17

15

19

23

3 4

7 6 59

89

5

8

7

6

 4

32010

12

12

339

 41 2 3 5

 41 2 3 5

12 11 10 9 8

340

1 32  4 5 6

1 32  4 5 6

1011 9 8 7

366

 41 2 3 5

12 11 10 9 8

365

1 32  4 5 6

1011 9 8 7

2 3 4

7 6 5

2 3 4

341
9

8

11

1

9

5

8

7

6

 4

10

12

7 6 5

2 3 4

364
9

8

11

1

9

8

7

6

5

 4

10

12

125

12

12

1 4

12 11 10 9 81011 9 8 7

1

7 6 59

89

8

7 10

12

384 383
116 385

1918

LOT 1

LOT 1 H.E.B.

SUBDIVISION

4

6

5

1

3

2

12

9

10

11

1

2

1

4

5

8

9

12

13

16

17

20

21

24

25

W
H

IT
N

E
Y 

PA
R

K
 S

U
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

C
LO

SN
ER

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

 T
O

 E
D

IN
B

U
R

G

2

1

3

5

4

6

8

9

10

12

13

11

15

16

18

14

27

26

24

25

23

21

22

20

17

19

7

20

26

23

25

24

22

21

17

19

18

16

15

13

14

12

10

11

9

7

8

6

5

4

3

2

1

27

8 94 6 753

2

1

8

9

4

6

7

5

3

2

EB
O

N
Y 

H
EI

G
H

TS
 S

U
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

10

5

6

4

3

7

8

2

1

5

4

3

1

2

4

6

5

3

2

1

21

20

22

23

24

4

3

2

1 24

23

22

21

3

2

1 24

23 2

1

19 4

15 8

12

14

13 10

11

9

17

16

18

6

7

5

21

20

2

3

3

4

1

22

4

3 6

5

7

BURCH
1 2

3

4
SUBD.

31 75 119 10 126 82 4

24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 14 1315

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 11 1210

24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13

22
21

24
23

20
19

275

6

7

321 4 65

21
22

23
24

19
20

299

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

6

7

21 3

1112 10

318

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

300

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

301

 43 5 6

10 9 8 7

1

12

317

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

316

 43 5 6

10 9 8 7

1

12

6

6

7

21 3

1112 10

21 3

343

1 2 3 5 4

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

6

7 1112 10

21 3

362

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

344

2 3  4 5 6

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

345

 43 5 6

10 9 8 7

 43 5 6 1

1

12

361

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

360
10 9 8 7

 43 5 6 1

12

319

342

298

363

7 1112 101012 11 8911 10 89 710 9 8 7 12

8

386387388389

21

1112

21

1112

21

1112

21

1112

21

1112

6

2

SO
U

TH
SI

D
E 

SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N3

6

7

10

11

14

15

18

19

22

23

26

21

19

20

22

23

24

21

19

18

20

22

23

24

4

6

5

3

2

1

9

7

8

10

11

12

8

17

12

13

15

14

16

10

11

9

4

21

19

18

20

6

7

5

22

3

2

1

19 4

15 8

12

14

13 10

11

9

17

16

18

6

7

5

21

20

22

2

3

1

HILCREST

1

2
3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12 13

14

15

16
17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

12

11

6

10

9
8

7

5

4

3

2

1

13

14 11

12

619

15

16
17

18

9

10

7

8

20

21

22

23

4

5

3

2

24 1

6

10

9

8

7

5

4

3

2

1

13

14 11

12

619

15

16
17

18

9

10

7

8

20

21

22

23

4

5

3

2

24 1

14

13 12

11

19 6

16

15

18

17

10

9

8

7

21

20

23

22

5

4

3
2

24 1

3 2 1

4 5 6

24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13161718 131415 12

12

12

12

12

12

FI
R

ST
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 C

O
U

N
TR

Y 
C

LU
B 

PL
A

C
E

SMITH-WILLIAMSON SUBDIVISION

6 4 5

79 8

3

302

6 4 5

78

65

7

6

-00

-01

-02

-03

-05

-07

-08

-06

E32
00

-00
-0

0G
-0

00
8

VIA

EDINBURG
LOT 1

W  H I L L  D R

W  M A H L  S T

S 
10

TH
 A

V E

S  
1 3

T H
 A

V E

S  
C

L O
S N

E R
 B

LV
D S  

1 5
T H

 A
V E

S  
1 6

T H
 A

V E

S 
9T

H
AV

E
S  

9 T
H  

AV
E

S 
9T

H
AV

E
E  S T U B B S  S T

E  F AY  S T

E  C H A M P I O N  S T

E  S A M A N O  S T

E  S P R A G U E  S T

E  E B O N Y  L N

E  P A R K  D R

S 
13

TH
 A

V E

W  C H A M P I O N  S T

S 
14

TH
 A

V E

S 
12

TH
 A

VE

E  P A R K  D R

E  M A H L  S T

W  C A N A L  S T

W  S T U B B S  S T

W  F AY  S T

W  S P R A G U E  S T

W  S A M A N O  S T

®
1 in = 400 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ROBERTO MARTINEZ / LAUREL HEIGHTS

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE

AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL

COMMERCIAL, GENERAL

COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD

DOWNTOWN DISTRICT

INDUSTRIAL

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH

SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL

URBAN RESIDENTIAL

URBAN UNIVERSITY

CITY LIMITS



IBC

-03

6

5

4

3

2

1

SM
IT

H-R
OE 

SUBD

20

10

9

8

6

5

7

13

12

11

3

2

4

14 1

-04

-02

-03

-00

-01

00F-0004-02

00F-0004-00

00F-0004-01

26

2524

SE
C

O
N

D
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 C

O
U

N
TR

Y 
C

LU
B 

PL
AC

E

4

8

6

5

7

1211

3

1 23

COUNTRY C
LU

B PLA
CE

17

19

18

5

BA

LIZCANO 

McMILLAN SUBD.

23 22 21 2024 1915 131423 22 21 1820 161724 19

-0006-00-0006-01

C
LO

SN
ER

 B
LV

D
.

4

3 2 1

281
1011 9

32  4

89 7 12

5 4 6 1

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

279

 4

280
10

3

1

12

21

292
1011 9 8

32  4 5

89 7 12

5 4 6 1

325
1011 9 78

32  4 65

89 7 12

5 4 6 1

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

294

 4

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

323

 4

293

324

10

3

10

3

336
1011 9 78

32  4 65

32  4 65

89 7 12

5 4 6 1

5 4 6 1

369
1011 9 78

32  4 65

89 7 12

5 4 6 1

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

2 3

338

 4

 4

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

367

 4

337

368

10

3

10

3

3

12 111011 9 7889 7 128 7 12 11911 10 10

382 381 380

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

15

14

18

17

16

19

17

16

15

14

22

21

20

19

18

25

24

23

26

10

13

12

11

9

8

7

6

5

1

4

3

2

17

16

15

14

22

21

20

19

18

23

5

6

7

8

9

2

3

4

1

1013

12

11

14

13

12

11

18

16

15

17

10

PARK PLACE UNIT NO.1

10

9

8

6

5

7

13

12

11

3

2

4

14 1

6

5

7

3

2

4

1

8

10

9

13

12

11

16

15

14

4

2

3

1

5

7

6

8

4

2

3

18

5

6

7

SUBD.

LOS FRESNOS

4

56

7

8
9

1011

12
13

14

1

2

3

4

5

6

78

9

10

11

12

13

141

2

3

4

5

6

78

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

7

6

5

4

3

2

1
14

13

12

11

10

9

8

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

6

5

4

3

2

1

1

16

7

16

7

1

16

6

7

16

7

7

278277

18 14 1316 1517

11 129 108

27624
14
15
16
17

13

21
22
23

20

295

 41 2 3 5

12 11 10 9 8

296

1 32  4 5 6

1011 9 8 7

 41 2 3 5

12 11 10 9 8

322321

1 32  4 5 6

1011 9 8 7

2 4 63 5 7

913 111012 8

297
21

13

18
17
16
15
14

12
11
10
9
8
7 1

24

14

16

22

20

18
17

15

19

23

3 4

7 6 59

89

5

8

7

6

 4

32010

12

12

339

 41 2 3 5

 41 2 3 5

12 11 10 9 8

340

1 32  4 5 6

1 32  4 5 6

1011 9 8 7

366

 41 2 3 5

12 11 10 9 8

365

1 32  4 5 6

1011 9 8 7

2 3 4

7 6 5

2 3 4

341
9

8

11

1

9

5

8

7

6

 4

10

12

7 6 5

2 3 4

364
9

8

11

1

9

8

7

6

5

 4

10

12

125

12

12

1 4

12 11 10 9 81011 9 8 7

1

7 6 59

89

8

7 10

12

384 383
116 385

1918

LOT 1

LOT 1 H.E.B.

SUBDIVISION

4

6

5

1

3

2

12

9

10

11

1

2

1

4

5

8

9

12

13

16

17

20

21

24

25

W
H

IT
N

E
Y 

PA
R

K
 S

U
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

C
LO

SN
ER

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

 T
O

 E
D

IN
B

U
R

G

2

1

3

5

4

6

8

9

10

12

13

11

15

16

18

14

27

26

24

25

23

21

22

20

17

19

7

20

26

23

25

24

22

21

17

19

18

16

15

13

14

12

10

11

9

7

8

6

5

4

3

2

1

27

8 94 6 753

2

1

8

9

4

6

7

5

3

2

EB
O

N
Y 

H
EI

G
H

TS
 S

U
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

10

5

6

4

3

7

8

2

1

5

4

3

1

2

4

6

5

3

2

1

21

20

22

23

24

4

3

2

1 24

23

22

21

3

2

1 24

23 2

1

19 4

15 8

12

14

13 10

11

9

17

16

18

6

7

5

21

20

2

3

3

4

1

22

4

3 6

5

7

BURCH
1 2

3

4
SUBD.

31 75 119 10 126 82 4

24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 14 1315

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 11 1210

24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13

22
21

24
23

20
19

275

6

7

321 4 65

21
22

23
24

19
20

299

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

6

7

21 3

1112 10

318

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

300

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

301

 43 5 6

10 9 8 7

1

12

317

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

316

 43 5 6

10 9 8 7

1

12

6

6

7

21 3

1112 10

21 3

343

1 2 3 5 4

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

6

7 1112 10

21 3

362

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

344

2 3  4 5 6

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

345

 43 5 6

10 9 8 7

 43 5 6 1

1

12

361

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

360
10 9 8 7

 43 5 6 1

12

319

342

298

363

7 1112 101012 11 8911 10 89 710 9 8 7 12

8

386387388389

21

1112

21

1112

21

1112

21

1112

21

1112

6

2

SO
U

TH
SI

D
E 

SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N3

6

7

10

11

14

15

18

19

22

23

26

21

19

20

22

23

24

21

19

18

20

22

23

24

4

6

5

3

2

1

9

7

8

10

11

12

8

17

12

13

15

14

16

10

11

9

4

21

19

18

20

6

7

5

22

3

2

1

19 4

15 8

12

14

13 10

11

9

17

16

18

6

7

5

21

20

22

2

3

1

HILCREST

1

2
3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12 13

14

15

16
17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

12

11

6

10

9
8

7

5

4

3

2

1

13

14 11

12

619

15

16
17

18

9

10

7

8

20

21

22

23

4

5

3

2

24 1

6

10

9

8

7

5

4

3

2

1

13

14 11

12

619

15

16
17

18

9

10

7

8

20

21

22

23

4

5

3

2

24 1

14

13 12

11

19 6

16

15

18

17

10

9

8

7

21

20

23

22

5

4

3
2

24 1

3 2 1

4 5 6

24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13161718 131415 12

12

12

12

12

12

FI
R

ST
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 C

O
U

N
TR

Y 
C

LU
B 

PL
A

C
E

SMITH-WILLIAMSON SUBDIVISION

6 4 5

79 8

3

302

6 4 5

78

65

7

6

-00

-01

-02

-03

-05

-07

-08

-06

E32
00

-00
-0

0G
-0

00
8

VIA

EDINBURG
LOT 1

W  H I L L  D R

W  M A H L  S T

S 
10

TH
 A

V E

S  
1 3

T H
 A

V E

S  
C

L O
S N

E R
 B

LV
D S  

1 5
T H

 A
V E

S  
1 6

T H
 A

V E

S 
9T

H
AV

E
S  

9 T
H  

AV
E

S 
9T

H
AV

E
E  S T U B B S  S T

E  F AY  S T

E  C H A M P I O N  S T

E  S A M A N O  S T

E  S P R A G U E  S T

E  E B O N Y  L N

E  P A R K  D R

S 
13

TH
 A

V E

W  C H A M P I O N  S T

S 
14

TH
 A

V E

S 
12

TH
 A

VE

E  P A R K  D R

E  M A H L  S T

W  C A N A L  S T

W  S T U B B S  S T

W  F AY  S T

W  S P R A G U E  S T

W  S A M A N O  S T

®
1 in = 400 ft

FUTURE LANDUSE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ROBERTO MARTINEZ / LAUREL HEIGHTS

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISON SITE

FUTURE LANDUSE
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
GENERAL COMMERCIAL
INDUSTRIAL
MOBILE HOME
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL
OFFICE BUSINESS PARK
SUBURBAN
URBAN
URBAN UNIVERSITY

CITY LIMITS



IBC

-03

6

5

4

3

2

1

SM
IT

H-R
OE 

SUBD

20

10

9

8

6

5

7

13

12

11

3

2

4

14 1

-04

-02

-03

-00

-01

00F-0004-02

00F-0004-00

00F-0004-01

26

2524

SE
C

O
N

D
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 C

O
U

N
TR

Y 
C

LU
B 

PL
AC

E

4

8

6

5

7

1211

3

1 23

COUNTRY C
LU

B PLA
CE

17

19

18

5

BA

LIZCANO 

McMILLAN SUBD.

23 22 21 2024 1915 131423 22 21 1820 161724 19

-0006-00-0006-01

C
LO

SN
ER

 B
LV

D
.

4

3 2 1

281
1011 9

32  4

89 7 12

5 4 6 1

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

279

 4

280
10

3

1

12

21

292
1011 9 8

32  4 5

89 7 12

5 4 6 1

325
1011 9 78

32  4 65

89 7 12

5 4 6 1

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

294

 4

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

323

 4

293

324

10

3

10

3

336
1011 9 78

32  4 65

32  4 65

89 7 12

5 4 6 1

5 4 6 1

369
1011 9 78

32  4 65

89 7 12

5 4 6 1

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

2 3

338

 4

 4

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

367

 4

337

368

10

3

10

3

3

12 111011 9 7889 7 128 7 12 11911 10 10

382 381 380

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

15

14

18

17

16

19

17

16

15

14

22

21

20

19

18

25

24

23

26

10

13

12

11

9

8

7

6

5

1

4

3

2

17

16

15

14

22

21

20

19

18

23

5

6

7

8

9

2

3

4

1

1013

12

11

14

13

12

11

18

16

15

17

10

PARK PLACE UNIT NO.1

10

9

8

6

5

7

13

12

11

3

2

4

14 1

6

5

7

3

2

4

1

8

10

9

13

12

11

16

15

14

4

2

3

1

5

7

6

8

4

2

3

18

5

6

7

SUBD.

LOS FRESNOS

4

56

7

8
9

1011

12
13

14

1

2

3

4

5

6

78

9

10

11

12

13

141

2

3

4

5

6

78

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

7

6

5

4

3

2

1
14

13

12

11

10

9

8

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

6

5

4

3

2

1

1

16

7

16

7

1

16

6

7

16

7

7

278277

18 14 1316 1517

11 129 108

27624
14
15
16
17

13

21
22
23

20

295

 41 2 3 5

12 11 10 9 8

296

1 32  4 5 6

1011 9 8 7

 41 2 3 5

12 11 10 9 8

322321

1 32  4 5 6

1011 9 8 7

2 4 63 5 7

913 111012 8

297
21

13

18
17
16
15
14

12
11
10
9
8
7 1

24

14

16

22

20

18
17

15

19

23

3 4

7 6 59

89

5

8

7

6

 4

32010

12

12

339

 41 2 3 5

 41 2 3 5

12 11 10 9 8

340

1 32  4 5 6

1 32  4 5 6

1011 9 8 7

366

 41 2 3 5

12 11 10 9 8

365

1 32  4 5 6

1011 9 8 7

2 3 4

7 6 5

2 3 4

341
9

8

11

1

9

5

8

7

6

 4

10

12

7 6 5

2 3 4

364
9

8

11

1

9

8

7

6

5

 4

10

12

125

12

12

1 4

12 11 10 9 81011 9 8 7

1

7 6 59

89

8

7 10

12

384 383
116 385

1918

LOT 1

LOT 1 H.E.B.

SUBDIVISION

4

6

5

1

3

2

12

9

10

11

1

2

1

4

5

8

9

12

13

16

17

20

21

24

25

W
H

IT
N

E
Y 

PA
R

K
 S

U
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

C
LO

SN
ER

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

 T
O

 E
D

IN
B

U
R

G

2

1

3

5

4

6

8

9

10

12

13

11

15

16

18

14

27

26

24

25

23

21

22

20

17

19

7

20

26

23

25

24

22

21

17

19

18

16

15

13

14

12

10

11

9

7

8

6

5

4

3

2

1

27

8 94 6 753

2

1

8

9

4

6

7

5

3

2

EB
O

N
Y 

H
EI

G
H

TS
 S

U
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

10

5

6

4

3

7

8

2

1

5

4

3

1

2

4

6

5

3

2

1

21

20

22

23

24

4

3

2

1 24

23

22

21

3

2

1 24

23 2

1

19 4

15 8

12

14

13 10

11

9

17

16

18

6

7

5

21

20

2

3

3

4

1

22

4

3 6

5

7

BURCH
1 2

3

4
SUBD.

31 75 119 10 126 82 4

24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 14 1315

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 11 1210

24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13

22
21

24
23

20
19

275

6

7

321 4 65

21
22

23
24

19
20

299

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

6

7

21 3

1112 10

318

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

300

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

301

 43 5 6

10 9 8 7

1

12

317

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

316

 43 5 6

10 9 8 7

1

12

6

6

7

21 3

1112 10

21 3

343

1 2 3 5 4

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

6

7 1112 10

21 3

362

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

344

2 3  4 5 6

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

345

 43 5 6

10 9 8 7

 43 5 6 1

1

12

361

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

360
10 9 8 7

 43 5 6 1

12

319

342

298

363

7 1112 101012 11 8911 10 89 710 9 8 7 12

8

386387388389

21

1112

21

1112

21

1112

21

1112

21

1112

6

2

SO
U

TH
SI

D
E 

SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N3

6

7

10

11

14

15

18

19

22

23

26

21

19

20

22

23

24

21

19

18

20

22

23

24

4

6

5

3

2

1

9

7

8

10

11

12

8

17

12

13

15

14

16

10

11

9

4

21

19

18

20

6

7

5

22

3

2

1

19 4

15 8

12

14

13 10

11

9

17

16

18

6

7

5

21

20

22

2

3

1

HILCREST

1

2
3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12 13

14

15

16
17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

12

11

6

10

9
8

7

5

4

3

2

1

13

14 11

12

619

15

16
17

18

9

10

7

8

20

21

22

23

4

5

3

2

24 1

6

10

9

8

7

5

4

3

2

1

13

14 11

12

619

15

16
17

18

9

10

7

8

20

21

22

23

4

5

3

2

24 1

14

13 12

11

19 6

16

15

18

17

10

9

8

7

21

20

23

22

5

4

3
2

24 1

3 2 1

4 5 6

24 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13161718 131415 12

12

12

12

12

12

FI
R

ST
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 T

O
 C

O
U

N
TR

Y 
C

LU
B 

PL
A

C
E

SMITH-WILLIAMSON SUBDIVISION

6 4 5

79 8

3

302

6 4 5

78

65

7

6

-00

-01

-02

-03

-05

-07

-08

-06

E32
00

-00
-0

0G
-0

00
8

VIA

EDINBURG
LOT 1

W  H I L L  D R

W  M A H L  S T

S 
10

TH
 A

V E

S  
1 3

T H
 A

V E

S  
C

L O
S N

E R
 B

LV
D S  

1 5
T H

 A
V E

S  
1 6

T H
 A

V E

S 
9T

H
AV

E
S  

9 T
H  

AV
E

S 
9T

H
AV

E
E  S T U B B S  S T

E  F AY  S T

E  C H A M P I O N  S T

E  S A M A N O  S T

E  S P R A G U E  S T

E  E B O N Y  L N

E  P A R K  D R

S 
13

TH
 A

V E

W  C H A M P I O N  S T

S 
14

TH
 A

V E

S 
12

TH
 A

VE

E  P A R K  D R

E  M A H L  S T

W  C A N A L  S T

W  S T U B B S  S T

W  F AY  S T

W  S P R A G U E  S T

W  S A M A N O  S T

®
1 in = 400 ft

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ROBERTO MARTINEZ / LAUREL HEIGHTS

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

300FT NOTIFICATION

CITY LIMITS





dcolina
Rectangle







Rezoning Request Site Photo 
ROBERTO MARTINEZ 

202 East Sprague Street 



   

City of Edinburg 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting:  February 8, 2022 

REZONING REQUEST 

AGENDA ITEM 8B: 

Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Auto-Urban Uses to General Commercial 

Uses and the Rezoning Request from Suburban Residential (S) District to Commercial General 

(CG) District, a 5.00 acre tract of land out of Lot 15, Section 237, Texas-Mexican Railway 

Company’s Survey, located at 1000 North McColl Road, as requested by Quintanilla, Headley & 

Associates, Inc. on behalf of Cubic Walls, LLC 

DESCRIPTION / SCOPE:  

The property is located on the east side of North McColl Road, approximately 630 ft. north of 

West Schunior Street.  The tract consist of 5.00 acres and is vacant. The requested zoning 

designation is the primary commercial district and allows for a wide range of commercial uses on 

the subject property. The applicant is requesting the change of zone accommodate a proposed self-

service storage business. 

The property is currently zoned Suburban Residential (S) District. The surrounding zoning is Auto 

Urban Residential (AU) District to the north, Suburban Residential (S) District to south, 

Agriculture (AG) District to the east, and Urban Residential (UR) District to the west. Adjacent 

land uses are low-density residential to the north and south with vacant land to the east and west. 

The future land use designation is for Auto-Urban Uses. 

Staff received a Zone Change Application for the subject property on December 15, 2021. The 

applicant indicated that his intent is for proposed storage units. A minor subdivision plat under the 

name of McColl Walls Subdivision was filed on August 26, 2021. Rezoning is required to 

accommodate the intended use. 

Staff mailed a notice of the public hearing before to 16 neighboring property owners and received 

no comments in favor or against this request by the time this report was prepared.  

ESTIMATED TIMELINE:  
The recommendation of approval or denial of this public hearing is scheduled for consideration by 

the City Council on March 1, 2022. City Council’s decision is the final step in the zoning process 

for this property. If denied the applicant may not request the proposed zoning classification for a 

12 month period from the date of denial. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends disapproval of the Rezoning Request from Suburban Residential (S) District to 

Commercial General (CG) District based on the adjacent zoning and land uses. The intended use 

is incompatible with the residential uses surrounding this location. 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all requirements during the permitting process 

including compliance with subdivision regulations, building and fire codes, fire protection, 

parking, landscape buffer-yards, solid waste services, utility, and any other City requirements, as 

applicable.   



   

JUSTIFICATION:  

Staff recommendation is based on adjacent zoning and land uses. All adjacent lots and lots nearby 

this location are residential uses. The requested zoning is not in keeping with the City’s Future 

Land Use Plan.  

 

D. Austin Colina Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  

Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning  

  



   

MEETING DATES:  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION – 2/08/2022 

CITY COUNCIL – 3/01/2022  

DATE PREPARED – 1/25/2022 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

APPLICATION: Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Auto-Urban Uses to General 

Commercial Uses and the Rezoning Request from Suburban 

Residential (S) District to Commercial General (CG) District 

 

APPLICANT: Cubic Walls, LLC  

 

AGENT: Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, Inc. 

 

LEGAL: A 5.00 acre tract of land out of Lot 15, Section 237, Texas-Mexican 

Railway Company’s Survey 

 

LOCATION: 1000 North McColl Road 

 

LOT/TRACT SIZE: 5 acres 

  

CURRENT USE: Vacant 

 

PROPOSED USE: Self-service storage facility 

 

EXISTING ZONING: Suburban Residential (S) District 

 

ADJACENT ZONING: North – Auto-Urban Residential (AU) District 

South – Suburban Residential (S) District 

East – Agriculture (AG) District 

West – Urban Residential (UR) District 

 

LAND USE PLAN: Auto-Urban 

 

PUBLIC SERVICES: Sharyland WSC & City of Edinburg Sewer 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends disapproval of the Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment from Auto-Urban Uses to General Commercial Uses and 

the Rezoning Request from Suburban Residential (S) District to 

Commercial General (CG) District 

 

  



   

REZONING REQUEST 

CUBIC WALLS, LLC 

 

EVALUATION 
 

The following is staff’s evaluation of the request.  

 

1. The land use pattern for this area of the community consists mostly of residential uses 

with some vacant land. 

 

2. The applicant is requesting the change of zone to construct a self-storage facility, a 

commercial use.  

 

Staff recommends disapproval of the Rezoning Request from Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

from Auto-Urban Uses to General Commercial Uses and the Rezoning Request from Suburban 

Residential (S) District to Commercial General (CG) District based on the adjacent zoning and 

land uses. The intended use is incompatible with existing zoning and land uses adjacent to the 

subject property. The proposed use is not in keeping with the Future Land Use Plan for this location 

and surrounding area. 

 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all requirements during the permitting process 

including compliance with subdivision regulations, building and fire codes, fire protection, 

parking, landscape buffer-yards, solid waste services, utility, and any other City requirements, as 

applicable.  
 

Staff mailed a notice of the public hearing before to 16 neighboring property owners and received 

no comments in favor or against this request by the time this report was prepared. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Aerial Photo 

 Site Map 

 Zoning Map 

 Future Land Use Map  

 Photo of site  

 Exhibits  



C E R V A N T E S  A V E

CH
ES

TN
U

T
D R

JA
SP

E R
 S

T

S P
A

N I
S H

O
A

K
 D

R

O
A

K
D R

W
IL

LO
W

O
A

K
 D

R

L I
V E

O
A

K
 D

R

M
IN

ER
AL

RI
G

H
TS

 L
N

N A
S S

A
U

 S
T

LA
 M

A
N C

H
A  

D
R

E N
T E

R
P R

I S
E  

S T

T O L E D O
A V E

S A L VA T I E R R A  D R

FA T I M A
AV E

J O A N  D R

P E R I D O T  S T

J E S S I C A
D R

P H O E N I X  S T

J A N E T  D R

JO
SC

EL
YN

 D
R

O
R

L A
N D

O
 S

T

TA
M

PA
S T

M A G N O L I A  O A K  D R

AG
AT

E
ST

N 
M

C
C

O
L L

 R
D

J A
D

E  
S T

S A L VA T I E R R A  D R

A N A C U A  D R

M
O

N
TE

M
AY

O
R  

L N

W  C H A P I N  S T

E I S E N H O W E R  S T

M O O N L I G H T  L N

C A N D L E L I G H T
L N

K I M B E R L Y  L N

W  S C H U N I O R  S T

®
1 in = 500 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
CUBIC WALLS LLC

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

CITY LIMITS



231 5 W. Ch apin  St.

Se ction  237  Tex -Me x

Am an da G uttie rez

C.O.C NO . 20 09 -08 -01

E8 0'-W6 95'-S1 80' L OT 8 BLK 2 37,

GOLDEN CREST APARTMENT 

Hugo  Can tu & Azen eth  Cant u

C.O.C NO . 20 08 -02 -02
0.74  ac out of lo t 8, Se ction  23 7 Te x-M ex

-25

-22

-1
2

-10

-13

-12

-01

-00

-02

-10

-04 -05

-03

-21

CHAPIN ST.

-00-41 -40-35

-01

-01

-10 -01

-00

-00

23

135134133132131130129128127126

125 124 123 122 121 120 119 118 117 116

115114113112111110109108107106105104103

102 101100 99 98 97 96 95 94 93 92 91 90

89888786858483828180797877

67 66 65 64

63

62

61

60

59

58

57

9

8
7

6

5

4

3

2

36
35

34
33

32

31

30

29

28

27
26

25

24

22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10

1

-25

CHAPIN
 C

ROSSIN
G

74

D

C

B

A

73A B C D DC
72
BA DC

71
BA DC

70
BA DC

69
BA DC

68
BA DCBA 67

A

B75
C

D

A

B76
C

D

A

B77
C

D

78
A

B

C

D

108

107

106

105

104

103

9796

9895

9994

10093

10192

10291

84 85

83 86

82 87

81 88

80 89

9079
PH

. 4

122

123

124120

125119

118

127117

128116

115

126

130114

132

131
112

113

133111

134

135109

110

129

121

136108

137

81

80

79

78

77

76

75

74

73

727170

60

59

58

-05 -00

T2100-00-273-0004-
T2100-00-276-0002-

T2100-00-276-0007-
T2100-00-276-0006-

T2100-00-276-0003-

T2100-00-237-0016-T2100-00-237-0014-

T2100-00-237-0009-00
T2100-00-237-0011-

T2
10

0-
00

-2
37

-0
00

8-

T2100-00-237-0006-05

-00

-01

-0
4

-0
6-0

3

-0
1

-1
0

-11

-20

-09-08

-07

-00

-09

-00

               -05

T2100-00-276-0001-04

T2100-00-276-0001-03

-02

-03

-02

-03

-04

-05

-06

-00

-05       -05

-05

-01

-02

-14

-1
9

-1
8-41

-00

-06              -08          -07

-20                -13

-10

-09

-12

-15

T2100-00-237-0015-

-02

-2
4

-0
6

-2
0

-2
2

-1
8

-1
6-10     

-04

-03

-11

-30

-12

-02

27

42

41

454443 46 504847 49 545251 53

40

15

14

13
16 2345910 781112

323336 3435373839 3031 29 28

1816 17 19
232220 21

24 25 26

COMMUNITY SUBD. No. 2

GOLDEN CREST APARTMENT 

COMMUNITY SUBD. No. 1

PH. 2

LO
S

 M
O

LI
N

O
S

41 40

39

3837

36 35

34

3332

31

30

29

28

27

26

25

31 32

21 22

MILYCA SUBD

91011121314

87654

16

15

2
3

1

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

1

2

UNIV
ERSITY PARK

1

21

20

13

19 18

2 3 4

14

15

16

17

LOS MOLINOS

1718

19

20 7

2

3

4

21

22

23

24

6 5

1

16 15 14 13

12

1198 10

91 92

105

104

103

102

101

100

99

98

97

96

95

94

93

106 107

SUMMER W
IN

DS L.
T.C

.

D
C

18
A
B
C
D

19

D
C
B
A

17

D
C
B
A

16

D
C
B
A

15

D
C
B
A

14

D
C
B
A

13

D

65

64

63

62

61

60

57

58

5948

4937

36 47

46

3524

A B C D
66

INLAND GROVES ESTATES
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

3839

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 54 55 56 57

48 63

49

50

51

52

53

64

65

6658

59

60

61

62

C
H

E
YE

N
N

E
 C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L 

PA
R

K

1

38 39 40 41

313637

35

34 33

32

49

59

55

60 61
62

63

3267

6656

6557

6458

38

50 37

51 36

52 35

53 34

33

31

30

29

28

27

26

1

11 12 13 14

2 3

4

8910

3 2 1

1

11 12

16

9

8

16 1518 1719

2726252322

21

20

24

8910

121314

7 6 5
BALCONES TRAIL SUBD

11

7

15

10

2

M
cC

O
LL

 N
O

R
TH

 S
U

B
D

.

1

1 2

ZUÑIGA
SUBDIVISION

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25 26 27 28 29 30 31

32333435

36 37 38 39

40414243

44 45 46 47

48495051

52 53 54 55

McC
OLL

 ESTA
TES

6

14

11

6

3

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

12
-00

-10 -01

-01 -00 -03 -08 -09 -02

-04
-12

A

VAQUERO SUBD.

C E R V A N T E S  A V E

CH
ES

TN
U

T
D R

JA
SP

E R
 S

T

S P
A

N I
S H

O
A

K
 D

R

O
A

K
D R

W
IL

LO
W

O
A

K
 D

R

L I
V E

O
A

K
 D

R

M
IN

ER
AL

RI
G

H
TS

 L
N

N A
S S

A
U

 S
T

LA
 M

A
N C

H
A  

D
R

E N
T E

R
P R

I S
E  

S T

T O L E D O
A V E

S A L VA T I E R R A  D R

FA T I M A
AV E

J O A N  D R

P E R I D O T  S T

J E S S I C A
D R

P H O E N I X  S T

J A N E T  D R

JO
SC

EL
YN

 D
R

O
R

L A
N D

O
 S

T

TA
M

PA
S T

M A G N O L I A  O A K  D R

AG
AT

E
ST

N 
M

C
C

O
L L

 R
D

J A
D

E  
S T

S A L VA T I E R R A  D R

A N A C U A  D R

M
O

N
TE

M
AY

O
R  

L N

W  C H A P I N  S T

E I S E N H O W E R  S T

M O O N L I G H T  L N

C A N D L E L I G H T
L N

K I M B E R L Y  L N

W  S C H U N I O R  S T

®
1 in = 500 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
CUBIC WALLS LLC

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE

AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL

COMMERCIAL, GENERAL

COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD

DOWNTOWN DISTRICT

INDUSTRIAL

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH

SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL

URBAN RESIDENTIAL

URBAN UNIVERSITY

CITY LIMITS

dcolina
Rectangle



231 5 W. Ch apin  St.

Se ction  237  Tex -Me x

Am an da G uttie rez

C.O.C NO . 20 09 -08 -01

E8 0'-W6 95'-S1 80' L OT 8 BLK 2 37,

GOLDEN CREST APARTMENT 

Hugo  Can tu & Azen eth  Cant u

C.O.C NO . 20 08 -02 -02
0.74  ac out of lo t 8, Se ction  23 7 Te x-M ex

-25

-22

-1
2

-10

-13

-12

-01

-00

-02

-10

-04 -05

-03

-21

CHAPIN ST.

-00-41 -40-35

-01

-01

-10 -01

-00

-00

23

135134133132131130129128127126

125 124 123 122 121 120 119 118 117 116

115114113112111110109108107106105104103

102 101100 99 98 97 96 95 94 93 92 91 90

89888786858483828180797877

67 66 65 64

63

62

61

60

59

58

57

9

8
7

6

5

4

3

2

36
35

34
33

32

31

30

29

28

27
26

25

24

22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10

1

-25

CHAPIN
 C

ROSSIN
G

74

D

C

B

A

73A B C D DC
72
BA DC

71
BA DC

70
BA DC

69
BA DC

68
BA DCBA 67

A

B75
C

D

A

B76
C

D

A

B77
C

D

78
A

B

C

D

108

107

106

105

104

103

9796

9895

9994

10093

10192

10291

84 85

83 86

82 87

81 88

80 89

9079
PH

. 4

122

123

124120

125119

118

127117

128116

115

126

130114

132

131
112

113

133111

134

135109

110

129

121

136108

137

81

80

79

78

77

76

75

74

73

727170

60

59

58

-05 -00

T2100-00-273-0004-
T2100-00-276-0002-

T2100-00-276-0007-
T2100-00-276-0006-

T2100-00-276-0003-

T2100-00-237-0016-T2100-00-237-0014-

T2100-00-237-0009-00
T2100-00-237-0011-

T2
10

0-
00

-2
37

-0
00

8-

T2100-00-237-0006-05

-00

-01

-0
4

-0
6-0

3

-0
1

-1
0

-11

-20

-09-08

-07

-00

-09

-00

               -05

T2100-00-276-0001-04

T2100-00-276-0001-03

-02

-03

-02

-03

-04

-05

-06

-00

-05       -05

-05

-01

-02

-14

-1
9

-1
8-41

-00

-06              -08          -07

-20                -13

-10

-09

-12

-15

T2100-00-237-0015-

-02

-2
4

-0
6

-2
0

-2
2

-1
8

-1
6-10     

-04

-03

-11

-30

-12

-02

27

42

41

454443 46 504847 49 545251 53

40

15

14

13
16 2345910 781112

323336 3435373839 3031 29 28

1816 17 19
232220 21

24 25 26

COMMUNITY SUBD. No. 2

GOLDEN CREST APARTMENT 

COMMUNITY SUBD. No. 1

PH. 2

LO
S

 M
O

LI
N

O
S

41 40

39

3837

36 35

34

3332

31

30

29

28

27

26

25

31 32

21 22

MILYCA SUBD

91011121314

87654

16

15

2
3

1

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

1

2

UNIV
ERSITY PARK

1

21

20

13

19 18

2 3 4

14

15

16

17

LOS MOLINOS

1718

19

20 7

2

3

4

21

22

23

24

6 5

1

16 15 14 13

12

1198 10

91 92

105

104

103

102

101

100

99

98

97

96

95

94

93

106 107

SUMMER W
IN

DS L.
T.C

.

D
C

18
A
B
C
D

19

D
C
B
A

17

D
C
B
A

16

D
C
B
A

15

D
C
B
A

14

D
C
B
A

13

D

65

64

63

62

61

60

57

58

5948

4937

36 47

46

3524

A B C D
66

INLAND GROVES ESTATES
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

3839

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 54 55 56 57

48 63

49

50

51

52

53

64

65

6658

59

60

61

62

C
H

E
YE

N
N

E
 C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L 

PA
R

K

1

38 39 40 41

313637

35

34 33

32

49

59

55

60 61
62

63

3267

6656

6557

6458

38

50 37

51 36

52 35

53 34

33

31

30

29

28

27

26

1

11 12 13 14

2 3

4

8910

3 2 1

1

11 12

16

9

8

16 1518 1719

2726252322

21

20

24

8910

121314

7 6 5
BALCONES TRAIL SUBD

11

7

15

10

2

M
cC

O
LL

 N
O

R
TH

 S
U

B
D

.

1

1 2

ZUÑIGA
SUBDIVISION

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25 26 27 28 29 30 31

32333435

36 37 38 39

40414243

44 45 46 47

48495051

52 53 54 55

McC
OLL

 ESTA
TES

6

14

11

6

3

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

12
-00

-10 -01

-01 -00 -03 -08 -09 -02

-04
-12

A

VAQUERO SUBD.

C E R V A N T E S  A V E

CH
ES

TN
U

T
D R

JA
SP

E R
 S

T

S P
A

N I
S H

O
A

K
 D

R

O
A

K
D R

W
IL

LO
W

O
A

K
 D

R

L I
V E

O
A

K
 D

R

M
IN

ER
AL

RI
G

H
TS

 L
N

N A
S S

A
U

 S
T

LA
 M

A
N C

H
A  

D
R

E N
T E

R
P R

I S
E  

S T

T O L E D O
A V E

S A L VA T I E R R A  D R

FA T I M A
AV E

J O A N  D R

P E R I D O T  S T

J E S S I C A
D R

P H O E N I X  S T

J A N E T  D R

JO
SC

EL
YN

 D
R

O
R

L A
N D

O
 S

T

TA
M

PA
S T

M A G N O L I A  O A K  D R

AG
AT

E
ST

N 
M

C
C

O
L L

 R
D

J A
D

E  
S T

S A L VA T I E R R A  D R

A N A C U A  D R

M
O

N
TE

M
AY

O
R  

L N

W  C H A P I N  S T

E I S E N H O W E R  S T

M O O N L I G H T  L N

C A N D L E L I G H T
L N

K I M B E R L Y  L N

W  S C H U N I O R  S T

®
1 in = 500 ft

FUTURE LAND USE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
CUBIC WALLS LLC

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISON SITE

FUTURE LANDUSE
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
GENERAL COMMERCIAL
INDUSTRIAL
MOBILE HOME
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL
OFFICE BUSINESS PARK
SUBURBAN
URBAN
URBAN UNIVERSITY

CITY LIMITS



231 5 W. Ch apin  St.

Se ction  237  Tex -Me x

Am an da G uttie rez

C.O.C NO . 20 09 -08 -01

E8 0'-W6 95'-S1 80' L OT 8 BLK 2 37,

GOLDEN CREST APARTMENT 

Hugo  Can tu & Azen eth  Cant u

C.O.C NO . 20 08 -02 -02
0.74  ac out of lo t 8, Se ction  23 7 Te x-M ex

-25

-22

-1
2

-10

-13

-12

-01

-00

-02

-10

-04 -05

-03

-21

CHAPIN ST.

-00-41 -40-35

-01

-01

-10 -01

-00

-00

23

135134133132131130129128127126

125 124 123 122 121 120 119 118 117 116

115114113112111110109108107106105104103

102 101100 99 98 97 96 95 94 93 92 91 90

89888786858483828180797877

67 66 65 64

63

62

61

60

59

58

57

9

8
7

6

5

4

3

2

36
35

34
33

32

31

30

29

28

27
26

25

24

22 21 20 19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11 10

1

-25

CHAPIN
 C

ROSSIN
G

74

D

C

B

A

73A B C D DC
72
BA DC

71
BA DC

70
BA DC

69
BA DC

68
BA DCBA 67

A

B75
C

D

A

B76
C

D

A

B77
C

D

78
A

B

C

D

108

107

106

105

104

103

9796

9895

9994

10093

10192

10291

84 85

83 86

82 87

81 88

80 89

9079
PH

. 4

122

123

124120

125119

118

127117

128116

115

126

130114

132

131
112

113

133111

134

135109

110

129

121

136108

137

81

80

79

78

77

76

75

74

73

727170

60

59

58

-05 -00

T2100-00-273-0004-
T2100-00-276-0002-

T2100-00-276-0007-
T2100-00-276-0006-

T2100-00-276-0003-

T2100-00-237-0016-T2100-00-237-0014-

T2100-00-237-0009-00
T2100-00-237-0011-

T2
10

0-
00

-2
37

-0
00

8-

T2100-00-237-0006-05

-00

-01

-0
4

-0
6-0

3

-0
1

-1
0

-11

-20

-09-08

-07

-00

-09

-00

               -05

T2100-00-276-0001-04

T2100-00-276-0001-03

-02

-03

-02

-03

-04

-05

-06

-00

-05       -05

-05

-01

-02

-14

-1
9

-1
8-41

-00

-06              -08          -07

-20                -13

-10

-09

-12

-15

T2100-00-237-0015-

-02

-2
4

-0
6

-2
0

-2
2

-1
8

-1
6-10     

-04

-03

-11

-30

-12

-02

27

42

41

454443 46 504847 49 545251 53

40

15

14

13
16 2345910 781112

323336 3435373839 3031 29 28

1816 17 19
232220 21

24 25 26

COMMUNITY SUBD. No. 2

GOLDEN CREST APARTMENT 

COMMUNITY SUBD. No. 1

PH. 2

LO
S

 M
O

LI
N

O
S

41 40

39

3837

36 35

34

3332

31

30

29

28

27

26

25

31 32

21 22

MILYCA SUBD

91011121314

87654

16

15

2
3

1

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

1

2

UNIV
ERSITY PARK

1

21

20

13

19 18

2 3 4

14

15

16

17

LOS MOLINOS

1718

19

20 7

2

3

4

21

22

23

24

6 5

1

16 15 14 13

12

1198 10

91 92

105

104

103

102

101

100

99

98

97

96

95

94

93

106 107

SUMMER W
IN

DS L.
T.C

.

D
C

18
A
B
C
D

19

D
C
B
A

17

D
C
B
A

16

D
C
B
A

15

D
C
B
A

14

D
C
B
A

13

D

65

64

63

62

61

60

57

58

5948

4937

36 47

46

3524

A B C D
66

INLAND GROVES ESTATES
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

3839

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 54 55 56 57

48 63

49

50

51

52

53

64

65

6658

59

60

61

62

C
H

E
YE

N
N

E
 C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L 

PA
R

K

1

38 39 40 41

313637

35

34 33

32

49

59

55

60 61
62

63

3267

6656

6557

6458

38

50 37

51 36

52 35

53 34

33

31

30

29

28

27

26

1

11 12 13 14

2 3

4

8910

3 2 1

1

11 12

16

9

8

16 1518 1719

2726252322

21

20

24

8910

121314

7 6 5
BALCONES TRAIL SUBD

11

7

15

10

2

M
cC

O
LL

 N
O

R
TH

 S
U

B
D

.

1

1 2

ZUÑIGA
SUBDIVISION

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25 26 27 28 29 30 31

32333435

36 37 38 39

40414243

44 45 46 47

48495051

52 53 54 55

McC
OLL

 ESTA
TES

6

14

11

6

3

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

12
-00

-10 -01

-01 -00 -03 -08 -09 -02

-04
-12

A

VAQUERO SUBD.

C E R V A N T E S  A V E

CH
ES

TN
U

T
D R

JA
SP

E R
 S

T

S P
A

N I
S H

O
A

K
 D

R

O
A

K
D R

W
IL

LO
W

O
A

K
 D

R

L I
V E

O
A

K
 D

R

M
IN

ER
AL

RI
G

H
TS

 L
N

N A
S S

A
U

 S
T

LA
 M

A
N C

H
A  

D
R

E N
T E

R
P R

I S
E  

S T

T O L E D O
A V E

S A L VA T I E R R A  D R

FA T I M A
AV E

J O A N  D R

P E R I D O T  S T

J E S S I C A
D R

P H O E N I X  S T

J A N E T  D R

JO
SC

EL
YN

 D
R

O
R

L A
N D

O
 S

T

TA
M

PA
S T

M A G N O L I A  O A K  D R

AG
AT

E
ST

N 
M

C
C

O
L L

 R
D

J A
D

E  
S T

S A L VA T I E R R A  D R

A N A C U A  D R

M
O

N
TE

M
AY

O
R  

L N

W  C H A P I N  S T

E I S E N H O W E R  S T

M O O N L I G H T  L N

C A N D L E L I G H T
L N

K I M B E R L Y  L N

W  S C H U N I O R  S T

®
1 in = 500 ft

MAIL OUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
CUBIC WALLS LLC

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

300FT NOTIFICATION

CITY LIMITS







Rezoning Request Site Photo 
QUINTANILLA, HEADLEY & ASSOCIATES, INC. - CUBIC WALLS, LLC 

1000 North McColl Road 



   

City of Edinburg 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting:  February 8, 2022 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT AND REZONING REQUEST 

AGENDA ITEM 8C: 

Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Auto-Urban Uses to Urban Uses and the 

Rezoning Request from Commercial General (CG) District to Urban Residential (UR) District, a 

3.108 acre tract of land out of Lot 30, Kelly-Pharr Subdivision, located at 620 East Wisconsin 

Road, as requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc. on behalf of The Shoppes at Rio Grande Valley 

DESCRIPTION / SCOPE:  

The property is located on the south side of East Wisconsin Road, approximately 1,750 ft. west of 

the I-69C southbound frontage road. The tract consists of 3.108 acres and is vacant. The requested 

zoning designation is the highest intensity residential district. It is intended to permit a wide range 

of residential uses and encourage a variety of housing types. The proposed use is for a multifamily 

residential development. 

The property is currently zoned Commercial General (CG) District. The surrounding zoning is 

Neighborhood Conservation Manufactured Home (NC-MH) District to the north, Commercial 

General (CG) District to the south and east, and Urban Residential (UR) District to the west. 

Property immediately to the west of the subject property was rezoned from Commercial General 

(CG) District to Urban Residential (UR) District on May 4, 2021. Adjacent land uses are residential 

to the north, commercial to the south, and vacant land to the east and west. The future land use 

designation is for Auto-Urban Uses. 

Staff received a Zone Change Application for the subject property on December 21, 2021. The 

applicant indicated that the intended use is for a multifamily development. A Subdivision 

Application under the name of Aldea at the Shoppes was received on November 1, 2021, as part 

of this project. Rezoning is required to accommodate the intended use. 

Staff mailed a notice of the public hearing before to 23 neighboring property owners and received 

no comments in favor or against this request by the time this report was prepared.  

ESTIMATED TIMELINE:  
The recommendation of approval or denial of this public hearing is scheduled for consideration by 

the City Council on March 1, 2022. City Council’s decision is the final step in the zoning process 

for this property. If denied the applicant may not request the proposed zoning classification for a 

12 month period from the date of denial. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends approval of the Rezoning Request from Commercial General (CG) District to 

Urban Residential (UR) District based on the adjacent zoning and land uses. Zoning of the vacant 

land to the west of this location has already been zoned Urban Residential (UR) District. The  

zoning and uses in the surrounding area are transitioning to a mixed use development that will 

promote walkability and accessibility in the area. 



   

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all requirements during the permitting process 

including compliance with subdivision regulations, building and fire codes, fire protection, 

parking, landscape buffer-yards, solid waste services, utility, and any other City requirements, as 

applicable.  

JUSTIFICATION:  

Staff recommendation is based on adjacent zoning and land uses. The proposed multifamily use 

should not present a conflict with the existing residential and commercial uses in the area.  

 

D. Austin Colina Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  

Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning  

  



   

MEETING DATES:  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION – 2/08/2022 

CITY COUNCIL – 3/01/2022  

DATE PREPARED – 1/26/2022 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

APPLICATION: Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Auto-Urban Uses to Urban 

Uses and the Rezoning Request from Commercial General (CG) 

District to Urban Residential (UR) District 

 

APPLICANT: The Shoppes at Rio Grande Valley 

 

AGENT: Melden & Hunt, Inc. 

 

LEGAL: A 3.108 acre tract of land out of Lot 30, Kelly-Pharr Subdivision 

 

LOCATION: 620 East Wisconsin Road 

 

LOT/TRACT SIZE: 3.108 acres 

  

CURRENT USE: Vacant 

 

PROPOSED USE: Multifamily residential development 

 

EXISTING ZONING: Commercial General (CG) District 

 

ADJACENT ZONING: North – Neighborhood Conservation – Manufactured Home (NC-

MH) District 

 South – Commercial General (CG) District 

East – Commercial General (CG) District 

West – Urban Residential (UR) District 

 

LAND USE PLAN: Auto-Urban 

 

PUBLIC SERVICES: North Alamo WSC & City of Edinburg Sewer 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

from Auto-Urban Uses to Urban Uses and the Rezoning Request from 

Commercial General (CG) District to Urban Residential (UR) District. 

 

  



   

REZONING REQUEST 

THE SHOPPES AT RIO GRANDE VALLEY 

 

 

EVALUATION 
 

The following is staff’s evaluation of the request.  

 

1. The land use pattern for this area of the community consists of residential and 

commercial uses. 

 

2. The applicant is requesting the change of zone to construct a multifamily residential 

development.  

 

Staff recommends approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Auto-Urban Uses to 

Urban Uses and the Rezoning Request from Commercial General (CG) District to Urban 

Residential (UR) District based on the adjacent zoning and land uses. The intended use is 

compatible with existing zoning and land uses adjacent to the subject property. The development 

trend in the area is progressing toward mixed uses. 

 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all requirements during the permitting process 

including compliance with subdivision regulations, building and fire codes, fire protection, 

parking, landscape buffer-yards, solid waste services, utility, and any other City requirements, as 

applicable.  
 

Staff mailed a notice of the public hearing before to 23 neighboring property owners and received 

no comments in favor or against this request by the time this report was prepared. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Aerial Photo 

 Site Map 

 Zoning Map 

 Future Land Use Map  

 Photo of site  

 Exhibits  



E  T R E N T O N  R D

T H E L M A  D R

R O YA L  S T

S  I -
6 9 C

S  I -
6 9 C

DO
R

R
IS

 D
R

ST
U

AR
T 

D
R

VI
LL

A
AL

EG
R

E 
LN

RI
VE

R
RO

C
K

 D
R

ST
EP

H
EN

 D
R

LY N N  D R

CE
LE

ST
E 

D
R

S  F
R O N TA

G E  R
D

Q U A R T Z
S T

R O YA L  S T

S U M M I T
C I R

T H O R A  D R

R A C H E L
D R

M
EG

A
N

 D
R

E  T R E N T O N  R D

E  W I S C O N S I N  R D

AC
C E S

S  
R A

M
P

D A V I D  D R

AC C E S S  R
D

E  W I S C O N S I N  R D

E  T R E N T O N  R D

S  F
R O N TA

G E  R
D

®
1 in = 500 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
MELDEN AND HUNT/ ALDEA AT THE SHOPPES SUBDIVISION

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

CITY LIMITS



CORRAL & COMPANY

PH 1

-05 -07

-09

-04

-03

-02

-00

-03

U
.S

. B
U

S.
 H

W
Y.

 2
81

WISCONSIN RD.

-03

-02

-12

-25

THE SHOPPES @ RIO GRANDE VALLEY

-13

-08
-04-03

-20

ROBERT C
. V

ACKAR

LOT 3

LOT 2

LOT 1

215.00'

1

38.00'

57
.0

0'

225.00'

52
.0

0'
82

.0
0'10

50
.0

0'

225.00'

225.00'

G
O

M
E

Z 
A

C
R

ES

2

1

RIO GRANDE

34

CENTER
SAENZ BUS. 

# 11
TIGRE 

EL 

LOT 3LOT 2
LOT 1

-08

-04

-04

-05

-02

V.C. LOONEY

-04
-05

-03

OSCAR, SOTELO

BLISS-MOORE-GAYKEN DONALD P. GAYKEN

-03

HIDALGO COUNTY

-06

-01

-05

-06

-02

-11

-12

-05 -04

-03

-02

-20

-00 -11
-01

-09

-13

-15

-08

-17 -06

-14

-07

-12

-06

-05

-02
-11

-09

-15
TR-01 TR-2

-07 -10

-03

-01

-00

-16 -03 -35 -09
-10

RAUL, GUERRA

Juan Ortiz

     -15
-13

-05

BLISS-MOORE-GAYKEN

-07

-00

-01 -04

K2400-00-000-0013-00 K2400-00-000-0015-00

K2400-00-000-0020-00

K2400-00-000-0029- K2400-00-000-0031-

-09

-05

WIS
CONSIN

 M
.H

. C
OMMUNITY

1234567891011121314151617

123122

121

120

119

118

117

116

115

114

113

112

111

110

109

108

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

92

91

90

89

88

87

86

85

84

83

82

81

80

79

78

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

62

61

60

59

58

57

56

55

54

53

52

51

50

49

48

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33 40393837363534 47464544434241 8079787776757473727170696867

4546

47

48

49 50

63646566 5859606162

5554535251

4041424344

81

82

57

56

EDIN
BURG E

STA
TES

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24
25

39

26
30

31

32

33 34

272829

38373635

RI
VE

R
 R

O
CK

 S
U

BD
.

43 3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

42414039
38

37
36 35 34 33

232425

30 31 3229
28

27
26

131415

20 21 2219
18

17
16 12 11

14

21

22

10

1

2

34

5

6

7

8

9
1112

VI
LL

A 
AL

EG
RE

 S
U

BD

37 38
39

40

41

42

3

4

567

2

43

62

1

8

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

22

12 13 14 15 16 17

18192021

23

32 31

24

30

25

29

26

28

27

39
404142

36353433
37

38

43 44

48 47
46

45

20

13
14

18

15

31

36

29 30

281/TRENTON COMMERCIAL

1 2 3

TRENTON PARK PLAZA

1

17
2.

31
'

330.41 '

339.59 '

103.00 '79.57'

21
3.

00
'

154.41 '

100.00' 103.00 ' 103.00 '

2

11 10

346.45 '

104.74 '306.68 '

1

12

21
3.

00
'

17
6.

64
'

17
9.

33
'

22
4.

81
'

56.93'

38
5.

04
'

BIG HORN BUSINESS PARK
2

3

R
E-

SU
B 

O
F 

B
LK

. 2
, L

O
TS

 1
-3

7

A1

1

E  T R E N T O N  R D

T H E L M A  D R

R O YA L  S T

S  I -
6 9 C

S  I -
6 9 C

DO
R

R
IS

 D
R

ST
U

AR
T 

D
R

VI
LL

A
AL

EG
R

E 
LN

RI
VE

R
RO

C
K

 D
R

ST
EP

H
EN

 D
R

LY N N  D R

CE
LE

ST
E 

D
R

S  F
R O N TA

G E  R
D

Q U A R T Z
S T

R O YA L  S T

S U M M I T
C I R

T H O R A  D R

R A C H E L
D R

M
EG

A
N

 D
R

E  T R E N T O N  R D

E  W I S C O N S I N  R D

AC
C E S

S  
R A

M
P

D A V I D  D R

AC C E S S  R
D

E  W I S C O N S I N  R D

E  T R E N T O N  R D

S  F
R O N TA

G E  R
D

®
1 in = 500 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
MELDEN AND HUNT/ ALDEA AT THE SHOPPES SUBDIVISION

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE

AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL

COMMERCIAL, GENERAL

COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD

DOWNTOWN DISTRICT

INDUSTRIAL

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH

SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL

URBAN RESIDENTIAL

URBAN UNIVERSITY

CITY LIMITS



CORRAL & COMPANY

PH 1

-05 -07

-09

-04

-03

-02

-00

-03

U
.S

. B
U

S.
 H

W
Y.

 2
81

WISCONSIN RD.

-03

-02

-12

-25

THE SHOPPES @ RIO GRANDE VALLEY

-13

-08
-04-03

-20

ROBERT C
. V

ACKAR

LOT 3

LOT 2

LOT 1

215.00'

1

38.00'

57
.0

0'

225.00'

52
.0

0'
82

.0
0'10

50
.0

0'

225.00'

225.00'

G
O

M
E

Z 
A

C
R

ES

2

1

RIO GRANDE

34

CENTER
SAENZ BUS. 

# 11
TIGRE 

EL 

LOT 3LOT 2
LOT 1

-08

-04

-04

-05

-02

V.C. LOONEY

-04
-05

-03

OSCAR, SOTELO

BLISS-MOORE-GAYKEN DONALD P. GAYKEN

-03

HIDALGO COUNTY

-06

-01

-05

-06

-02

-11

-12

-05 -04

-03

-02

-20

-00 -11
-01

-09

-13

-15

-08

-17 -06

-14

-07

-12

-06

-05

-02
-11

-09

-15
TR-01 TR-2

-07 -10

-03

-01

-00

-16 -03 -35 -09
-10

RAUL, GUERRA

Juan Ortiz

     -15
-13

-05

BLISS-MOORE-GAYKEN

-07

-00

-01 -04

K2400-00-000-0013-00 K2400-00-000-0015-00

K2400-00-000-0020-00

K2400-00-000-0029- K2400-00-000-0031-

-09

-05

WIS
CONSIN

 M
.H

. C
OMMUNITY

1234567891011121314151617

123122

121

120

119

118

117

116

115

114

113

112

111

110

109

108

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

92

91

90

89

88

87

86

85

84

83

82

81

80

79

78

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

62

61

60

59

58

57

56

55

54

53

52

51

50

49

48

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33 40393837363534 47464544434241 8079787776757473727170696867

4546

47

48

49 50

63646566 5859606162

5554535251

4041424344

81

82

57

56

EDIN
BURG E

STA
TES

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24
25

39

26
30

31

32

33 34

272829

38373635

RI
VE

R
 R

O
CK

 S
U

BD
.

43 3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

42414039
38

37
36 35 34 33

232425

30 31 3229
28

27
26

131415

20 21 2219
18

17
16 12 11

14

21

22

10

1

2

34

5

6

7

8

9
1112

VI
LL

A 
AL

EG
RE

 S
U

BD

37 38
39

40

41

42

3

4

567

2

43

62

1

8

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

22

12 13 14 15 16 17

18192021

23

32 31

24

30

25

29

26

28

27

39
404142

36353433
37

38

43 44

48 47
46

45

20

13
14

18

15

31

36

29 30

281/TRENTON COMMERCIAL

1 2 3

TRENTON PARK PLAZA

1

17
2.

31
'

330.41 '

339.59 '

103.00 '79.57'

21
3.

00
'

154.41 '

100.00' 103.00 ' 103.00 '

2

11 10

346.45 '

104.74 '306.68 '

1

12

21
3.

00
'

17
6.

64
'

17
9.

33
'

22
4.

81
'

56.93'

38
5.

04
'

BIG HORN BUSINESS PARK
2

3

R
E-

SU
B 

O
F 

B
LK

. 2
, L

O
TS

 1
-3

7

A1

1

E  T R E N T O N  R D

T H E L M A  D R

R O YA L  S T

S  I -
6 9 C

S  I -
6 9 C

DO
R

R
IS

 D
R

ST
U

AR
T 

D
R

VI
LL

A
AL

EG
R

E 
LN

RI
VE

R
RO

C
K

 D
R

ST
EP

H
EN

 D
R

LY N N  D R

CE
LE

ST
E 

D
R

S  F
R O N TA

G E  R
D

Q U A R T Z
S T

R O YA L  S T

S U M M I T
C I R

T H O R A  D R

R A C H E L
D R

M
EG

A
N

 D
R

E  T R E N T O N  R D

E  W I S C O N S I N  R D

AC
C E S

S  
R A

M
P

D A V I D  D R

AC C E S S  R
D

E  W I S C O N S I N  R D

E  T R E N T O N  R D

S  F
R O N TA

G E  R
D

®
1 in = 500 ft

FUTURE LANDUSE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
MELDEN AND HUNT/ ALDEA AT THE SHOPPES SUBDIVISION

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISON SITE

FUTURE LANDUSE
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
GENERAL COMMERCIAL
INDUSTRIAL
MOBILE HOME
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL
OFFICE BUSINESS PARK
SUBURBAN
URBAN
URBAN UNIVERSITY

CITY LIMITS



CORRAL & COMPANY

PH 1

-05 -07

-09

-04

-03

-02

-00

-03

U
.S

. B
U

S.
 H

W
Y.

 2
81

WISCONSIN RD.

-03

-02

-12

-25

THE SHOPPES @ RIO GRANDE VALLEY

-13

-08
-04-03

-20

ROBERT C
. V

ACKAR

LOT 3

LOT 2

LOT 1

215.00'

1

38.00'

57
.0

0'

225.00'

52
.0

0'
82

.0
0'10

50
.0

0'

225.00'

225.00'

G
O

M
E

Z 
A

C
R

ES

2

1

RIO GRANDE

34

CENTER
SAENZ BUS. 

# 11
TIGRE 

EL 

LOT 3LOT 2
LOT 1

-08

-04

-04

-05

-02

V.C. LOONEY

-04
-05

-03

OSCAR, SOTELO

BLISS-MOORE-GAYKEN DONALD P. GAYKEN

-03

HIDALGO COUNTY

-06

-01

-05

-06

-02

-11

-12

-05 -04

-03

-02

-20

-00 -11
-01

-09

-13

-15

-08

-17 -06

-14

-07

-12

-06

-05

-02
-11

-09

-15
TR-01 TR-2

-07 -10

-03

-01

-00

-16 -03 -35 -09
-10

RAUL, GUERRA

Juan Ortiz

     -15
-13

-05

BLISS-MOORE-GAYKEN

-07

-00

-01 -04

K2400-00-000-0013-00 K2400-00-000-0015-00

K2400-00-000-0020-00

K2400-00-000-0029- K2400-00-000-0031-

-09

-05

WIS
CONSIN

 M
.H

. C
OMMUNITY

1234567891011121314151617

123122

121

120

119

118

117

116

115

114

113

112

111

110

109

108

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

92

91

90

89

88

87

86

85

84

83

82

81

80

79

78

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

62

61

60

59

58

57

56

55

54

53

52

51

50

49

48

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33 40393837363534 47464544434241 8079787776757473727170696867

4546

47

48

49 50

63646566 5859606162

5554535251

4041424344

81

82

57

56

EDIN
BURG E

STA
TES

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24
25

39

26
30

31

32

33 34

272829

38373635

RI
VE

R
 R

O
CK

 S
U

BD
.

43 3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

42414039
38

37
36 35 34 33

232425

30 31 3229
28

27
26

131415

20 21 2219
18

17
16 12 11

14

21

22

10

1

2

34

5

6

7

8

9
1112

VI
LL

A 
AL

EG
RE

 S
U

BD

37 38
39

40

41

42

3

4

567

2

43

62

1

8

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

22

12 13 14 15 16 17

18192021

23

32 31

24

30

25

29

26

28

27

39
404142

36353433
37

38

43 44

48 47
46

45

20

13
14

18

15

31

36

29 30

281/TRENTON COMMERCIAL

1 2 3

TRENTON PARK PLAZA

1

17
2.

31
'

330.41 '

339.59 '

103.00 '79.57'

21
3.

00
'

154.41 '

100.00' 103.00 ' 103.00 '

2

11 10

346.45 '

104.74 '306.68 '

1

12

21
3.

00
'

17
6.

64
'

17
9.

33
'

22
4.

81
'

56.93'

38
5.

04
'

BIG HORN BUSINESS PARK
2

3

R
E-

SU
B 

O
F 

B
LK

. 2
, L

O
TS

 1
-3

7

A1

1

E  T R E N T O N  R D

T H E L M A  D R

R O YA L  S T

S  I -
6 9 C

S  I -
6 9 C

DO
R

R
IS

 D
R

ST
U

AR
T 

D
R

VI
LL

A
AL

EG
R

E 
LN

RI
VE

R
RO

C
K

 D
R

ST
EP

H
EN

 D
R

LY N N  D R

CE
LE

ST
E 

D
R

S  F
R O N TA

G E  R
D

Q U A R T Z
S T

R O YA L  S T

S U M M I T
C I R

T H O R A  D R

R A C H E L
D R

M
EG

A
N

 D
R

E  T R E N T O N  R D

E  W I S C O N S I N  R D

AC
C E S

S  
R A

M
P

D A V I D  D R

AC C E S S  R
D

E  W I S C O N S I N  R D

E  T R E N T O N  R D

S  F
R O N TA

G E  R
D

®
1 in = 500 ft

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
MELDEN AND HUNT/ ALDEA AT THE SHOPPES SUBDIVISION

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

300FT NOTIFICATION

CITY LIMITS





dcolina
Rectangle



Rezoning Request Site Photo 
MELDEN & HUNT - THE SHOPPES AT RIO GRANDE VALLEY 

600 East Wisconsin Road 



   

City of Edinburg 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting:  February 8, 2022 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT AND REZONING REQUEST 

AGENDA ITEM 8D: 

Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Agriculture Uses to Auto-Urban Uses and 

the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) District to Auto-Urban Residential (AU) District, a 

4.985 acre tract of land out of Lot 14, Section 233, Texas-Mexican Railway Company’s Survey, 

located at 1013 North Depot Road, as requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc. on behalf of Rosendo and 

Stephanie V. Benitez 

DESCRIPTION / SCOPE:  

The property is located on the west side of North Depot Road, approximately 1,000 ft. north of 

West Schunior Street. The tract consists of 4.985 acres and is vacant. The requested zoning 

designation is the primary residential district. It is intended to permit a wide range of residential 

use and encourage a variety of housing types. The proposed use is for a single-family residential 

development. 

The property is currently zoned Agriculture (AG) District. The surrounding zoning is Agriculture 

(AG) District to the north, south, and east. Area to the west of this property is outside the City 

Limits. Surrounding land uses are low-density residential to the north, south, and east with 

agricultural uses to the west outside the City Limits. The future land use designation is for 

Agriculture Uses. 

Staff received a Zone Change Application for the subject property on January 6, 2022. The 

applicant indicated that the intended use is for a single-family residential development. No plat or 

site plan has yet been received. Rezoning is required to accommodate the intended use. 

Staff mailed a notice of the public hearing before to nine neighboring property owners and received 

no comments in favor or against this request by the time this report was prepared.  

ESTIMATED TIMELINE:  
The recommendation of approval or denial of this public hearing is scheduled for consideration by 

the City Council on March 1, 2022. City Council’s decision is the final step in the zoning process 

for this property. If denied the applicant may not request the proposed zoning classification for a 

12 month period from the date of denial. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends approval of the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) District to Auto-

Urban Residential (AU) District based on the adjacent land uses. The proposed use is compatible 

with the residential uses in the area of the subject property. City-imposed zoning of Agriculture 

(AG) District was applied when the area was annexed in 2013. 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all requirements during the permitting process 

including compliance with subdivision regulations, building and fire codes, fire protection, 

parking, landscape buffer-yards, solid waste services, utility, and any other City requirements, as 

applicable.  



   

JUSTIFICATION:  

Staff recommendation is based on adjacent land uses. The City-applied zoning of Agriculture (AG) 

District is not appropriate for existing uses which are mostly residential in nature.  

 

D. Austin Colina Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  

Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning  

  



   

MEETING DATES:  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION – 2/08/2022 

CITY COUNCIL – 3/01/2022  

DATE PREPARED – 1/27/2022 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

APPLICATION: Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Agriculture Uses to Auto-

Urban Uses and the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) District 

to Auto-Urban Residential (AU) District 

 

APPLICANT: Rosendo and Stephanie V. Benitez 

 

AGENT: Melden & Hunt, Inc. 

 

LEGAL: A 4.985 acre tract of land out of Lot 14, Section 233, Texas-Mexican 

Railway Company’s Survey 

 

LOCATION: 1013 North Depot Road 

 

LOT/TRACT SIZE: 4.985 acres 

  

CURRENT USE: Vacant 

 

PROPOSED USE: Single-family residential development 

 

EXISTING ZONING: Agriculture (AG) District 

 

ADJACENT ZONING: North – Agriculture (AG) District 

 South – Agriculture (AG) District 

East – Agriculture (AG) District 

West – Outside City Limits 

 

LAND USE PLAN: Agriculture 

 

PUBLIC SERVICES: Sharyland WSC & City of Edinburg Sewer 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

from Agriculture Uses to Auto-Urban Uses and the Rezoning Request 

from Agriculture (AG) District to Auto-Urban Residential (AU) 

District. 

 

  



   

REZONING REQUEST 

ROSENDO AND STEPHANIE V. BENITEZ 

 

 

EVALUATION 
 

The following is staff’s evaluation of the request.  

 

1. The land use pattern for this area of the community consists of low-density residential 

and agricultural uses with considerable areas of vacant land. 

 

2. The applicant is requesting the change of zone to construct a single-family residential 

development.  

 

Staff recommends approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment from Agriculture Uses to Auto-Urban Uses and the Rezoning Request from 

Agriculture (AG) District to Auto-Urban Residential (AU) District based on the adjacent land uses. 

The intended use is compatible with land uses adjacent to the subject property. The current zoning 

of Agriculture (AG) District was applied when the area was annexed in 2013. This zoning is not 

appropriate for existing uses. The proposed use is not in keeping with the Future Land Use Plan 

for this location and surrounding area. 

 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all requirements during the permitting process 

including compliance with subdivision regulations, building and fire codes, fire protection, 

parking, landscape buffer-yards, solid waste services, utility, and any other City requirements, as 

applicable.  
 

Staff mailed a notice of the public hearing before to nine neighboring property owners and received 

no comments in favor or against this request by the time this report was prepared. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Aerial Photo 

 Site Map 

 Zoning Map 

 Future Land Use Map  

 Photo of site  

 Exhibits  



N  
R O

O
T H

 R
D

C U
CO LN

R A
V E

NW
O

O
D  

D
R

N  
D E

P O
T  

R
D

B O L O R O  L N

W  S C H U N I O R  S T

W  C H A P I N  S T

S TAG S

L E A P  C T

C A S C A D A  D R

B O R O L O  D R

W  C H A P I N  S T

M I L E  8  R D

C H A P I N  S T

®
1 in = 600 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ROSENDO & STEPHANIE V. BENITEZ

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

CITY LIMITS



-12

-34

-32

-26

-22

-20
-00

-05

-03-01

-05

-03
-02

-00

SCHUNIOR RD.
-12        -02

-10            -01

-00

-03          -20

-04              -05

-13

-08

-08

-0002-14

-08

-0002-06

-07

T2
10

0-
00

-2
80

-0
00

1-

T2100-00-280-0002-00

T2100-00-233-0016-

T2100-00-233-0009-00

T2100-00-233-0008-

T2100-00-233-0015-

T2100-00-233-0010-

T2100-00-233-0002-00

T2100-00-233-0007-00T2100-00-233-0006-00

N
. 2

3r
d 

ST
.

G
. G

. S
U

BD
 N

o.
 1

2

1

GONZALEZ ESTATES32

1

4 5

LO
S

 N
A

G
A

LE
S 

ES
TA

TE
S

8

97

106

115

124

133

142

151

9876

12345

G.G. SUBD. #2

43

42

41403938

37

3635

34

33

32

31

30

29

28

27 26 25 24 23 22 21

20

19

18

17

16

15

14
13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6
5 4

3

2

1

1

16

2

7

7

2

H
O

N
EY

SU
C

KL
E 

1

2

3

C
O

R
N

E
R

 S
U

BD
.

11

14

RAVENSWOOD
SUBDIVISION

SUBDIVISION

RAVENSWOOD

6

3

10

15

Ram on G omez  &  W i fe A lm a G rim aldo

C.O .C N O . 2010- 12- 02
Tex as  M exic an Rai lway  C om pany  Sur vey

2.00 Ac res  out o f Lot2, Sec tion 280

N  
R O

O
T H

 R
D

C U
CO LN

R A
V E

NW
O

O
D  

D
R

N  
D E

P O
T  

R
D

B O L O R O  L N

W  S C H U N I O R  S T

W  C H A P I N  S T

S TAG S

L E A P  C T

C A S C A D A  D R

B O R O L O  D R

W  C H A P I N  S T

M I L E  8  R D

C H A P I N  S T

®
1 in = 600 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ROSENDO & STEPHANIE V. BENITEZ

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE

AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL

COMMERCIAL, GENERAL

COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD

DOWNTOWN DISTRICT

INDUSTRIAL

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH

SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL

URBAN RESIDENTIAL

URBAN UNIVERSITY

CITY LIMITS



-12

-34

-32

-26

-22

-20
-00

-05

-03-01

-05

-03
-02

-00

SCHUNIOR RD.
-12        -02

-10            -01

-00

-03          -20

-04              -05

-13

-08

-08

-0002-14

-08

-0002-06

-07

T2
10

0-
00

-2
80

-0
00

1-

T2100-00-280-0002-00

T2100-00-233-0016-

T2100-00-233-0009-00

T2100-00-233-0008-

T2100-00-233-0015-

T2100-00-233-0010-

T2100-00-233-0002-00

T2100-00-233-0007-00T2100-00-233-0006-00

N
. 2

3r
d 

ST
.

G
. G

. S
U

BD
 N

o.
 1

2

1

GONZALEZ ESTATES32

1

4 5

LO
S

 N
A

G
A

LE
S 

ES
TA

TE
S

8

97

106

115

124

133

142

151

9876

12345

G.G. SUBD. #2

43

42

41403938

37

3635

34

33

32

31

30

29

28

27 26 25 24 23 22 21

20

19

18

17

16

15

14
13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6
5 4

3

2

1

1

16

2

7

7

2

H
O

N
EY

SU
C

KL
E 

1

2

3

C
O

R
N

E
R

 S
U

BD
.

11

14

RAVENSWOOD
SUBDIVISION

SUBDIVISION

RAVENSWOOD

6

3

10

15

Ram on G omez  &  W i fe A lm a G rim aldo

C.O .C N O . 2010- 12- 02
Tex as  M exic an Rai lway  C om pany  Sur vey

2.00 Ac res  out o f Lot2, Sec tion 280

N  
R O

O
T H

 R
D

C U
CO LN

R A
V E

NW
O

O
D  

D
R

N  
D E

P O
T  

R
D

B O L O R O  L N

W  S C H U N I O R  S T

W  C H A P I N  S T

S TAG S

L E A P  C T

C A S C A D A  D R

B O R O L O  D R

W  C H A P I N  S T

M I L E  8  R D

C H A P I N  S T

®
1 in = 600 ft

FUTURE LANDUSE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ROSENDO & STEPHANIE V. BENITEZ

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISON SITE

FUTURE LANDUSE
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
GENERAL COMMERCIAL
INDUSTRIAL
MOBILE HOME
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL
OFFICE BUSINESS PARK
SUBURBAN
URBAN
URBAN UNIVERSITY

CITY LIMITS



N  
R O

O
T H

 R
D

C U
CO LN

R A
V E

NW
O

O
D  

D
R

N  
D E

P O
T  

R
D

B O L O R O  L N

W  S C H U N I O R  S T

W  C H A P I N  S T

S TAG S

L E A P  C T

C A S C A D A  D R

B O R O L O  D R

W  C H A P I N  S T

M I L E  8  R D

C H A P I N  S T

®
1 in = 600 ft

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
ROSENDO & STEPHANIE V. BENITEZ

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

300FT NOTIFICATION

CITY LIMITS







Rezoning Request Site Photo 
MELDEN & HUNT - ROSENDO AND STEPHANIE V. BENITEZ 

1013 North Depot Road 



   

City of Edinburg 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting:  February 8, 2022 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT AND REZONING REQUEST 

AGENDA ITEM 8E: 

Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Industrial Uses to Auto-Urban Uses and the 

Rezoning Request from Commercial General (CG) District to Auto-Urban Residential (AU) 

District, a 12.831 acre tract of land consisting of 5.872 acres out of Lot 11, all of Lot 12 and 1.429 

acres out of Lot 13, Subdivision “C”, Original Townsite, Amended City of Edinburg, located at 

221 East Schunior Street, as requested by Treviño Engineering on behalf of Mel Phillip, Tide 

Products, Inc. 

DESCRIPTION / SCOPE:  

The property is located on the north side of East Schunior Street, approximately 135 ft. east of 

North Closner Boulevard., The tract consists of 12.831 acres and is vacant. The requested zoning 

designation is the primary residential district. It is intended to permit a wide range of residential 

use and encourage a variety of housing types. The proposed use is for a multifamily residential 

development. 

The property is currently zoned Commercial General (CG) District. The surrounding zoning is 

Industrial (I) District to the north, Urban Residential (UR) and Commercial General (CG) Districts 

to the south, Urban Residential (UR) District to the east, and Commercial General (CG) District 

to the west. Adjacent land uses are light industrial to the north, residential and commercial to the 

south, multifamily residential to the east, and commercial to the west. The future land use 

designation is for industrial uses at this location. 

Staff received a Zone Change Application for the subject property on January 7, 2022. The 

applicant indicated that the intended use is for a multifamily residential development. A 

preliminary site plan was received on January 26 delineating a 12.831 acre area to be rezoned for 

the intended use. 

Staff mailed a notice of the public hearing before to 47 neighboring property owners and received 

no comments in favor or against this request by the time this report was prepared.  

ESTIMATED TIMELINE:  
The recommendation of approval or denial of this public hearing is scheduled for consideration by 

the City Council on March 1, 2022. City Council’s decision is the final step in the zoning process 

for this property. If denied the applicant may not request the proposed zoning classification for a 

12 month period from the date of denial. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends approval of the Rezoning Request from Commercial General (CG) District to 

Auto-Urban Residential (AU) District based on adjacent zoning and land uses.  

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all requirements during the permitting process 

including compliance with subdivision regulations, building and fire codes, fire protection, 

parking, landscape buffer-yards, solid waste services, utility, and any other City requirements, as 

applicable.  



   

 

JUSTIFICATION:  

Staff recommendation is based on adjacent zoning and land uses. The proposed multifamily use is 

compatible with existing multifamily and other high-density residential uses in the area. The 

proposed use should not create a conflict with adjacent commercial or light industrial uses.  

 

D. Austin Colina Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  

Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning  

  



   

MEETING DATES:  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION – 2/08/2022 

CITY COUNCIL – 3/01/2022  

DATE PREPARED – 1/27/2022 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

APPLICATION: Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Industrial Uses to Auto-Urban 

Uses and the Rezoning Request from Commercial General (CG) 

District to Auto-Urban Residential (AU) District 

 

APPLICANT: Mel Phillip, Tide Products, Inc. 

 

AGENT: Treviño Engineering 

 

LEGAL: 12.831 acre tract of land consisting of 5.872 acres out of Lot 11, all of 

Lot 12 and 1.429 acres out of Lot 13, Subdivision “C”, Original 

Townsite, Amended City of Edinburg 

 

LOCATION: 221 East Schunior Street 

 

LOT/TRACT SIZE: 12.831 acres 

  

CURRENT USE: Vacant 

 

PROPOSED USE: multifamily residential development 

 

EXISTING ZONING: Commercial General (CG) District 

 

ADJACENT ZONING: North – Industiral (I) District 

 South – Urban Residential (UR) and Commercial Genera (CG) 

Districts 

 East – Urban Residential (UR) 

West – Commercial General (CG) 

 

LAND USE PLAN: Industrial 

 

PUBLIC SERVICES: City of Edinburg Water and Sewer 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

from Industrial Uses to Auto-Urban Uses and the Rezoning Request 

from Commercial General (CG) District to Auto-Urban Residential 

(AU) District. 

  



   

REZONING REQUEST 

MEL PHILLIP, TIDE PRODUCTS, INC. 

 

 

EVALUATION 
 

The following is staff’s evaluation of the request.  

 

1. The land use pattern for this area of the community consists of high-density residential 

mixed with commercial and light industrial uses. 

 

2. The applicant is requesting the change of zone to construct a multifamily residential 

development.  

 

Staff recommends approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Industrial Uses to Auto-

Urban Uses and the Rezoning Request from Commercial General (CG) District to Auto-Urban 

Residential (AU) District based on the adjacent zoning and land uses. The intended use is 

compatible with the high-density residential land uses adjacent to the subject property. The 

requested zoning and proposed use should not present a conflict with nearby commercial and 

industrial uses. The proposed use is not in keeping with the Future Land Use Plan for this location. 

 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all requirements during the permitting process 

including compliance with subdivision regulations, building and fire codes, fire protection, 

parking, landscape buffer-yards, solid waste services, utility, and any other City requirements, as 

applicable.  
 

Staff mailed a notice of the public hearing before to 47 neighboring property owners and received 

no comments in favor or against this request by the time this report was prepared. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Aerial Photo 

 Site Map 

 Zoning Map 

 Future Land Use Map  

 Photo of site  

 Exhibits  



U P
A S

 D
R

E  S C H U N I O R  S T

E  V A N
W E E K  S T

E  L O V E T T  S T

E  K U H N  S T

E  M C I N T Y R E  S T

T E A K  D R

F I G  D R

E  W E L L S  S T

L O T T O  L N

N 
BU

SI
NE

S S
 H

I G
H

W
AY

 2
8 1

S C H A R L E T
O A K  D R

W  K U H N  S T

E  C H A P I N  S T

E  C H A V E Z  S T

W  C O O P E R  S T

W  P E T E R  S T

N 
14

TH
 A

VE

N 
CL

O
SN

ER
 B

LV
D

E  P E T E R  S T

N 
8T

H
 A

VE

E  L O E B  S T

N 
8T

H
 A

VE

N  
7 T

H
 A

V E

N 
9 T

H
 A

V E

N 
VE

TE
RA

N
S 

B
LV

D

W  L O V E T T  S T

N 
9T

H
 A

VE
N  

9 T
H

 A
V E

W  V A N  W E E K  S T

W  L O E B  S T

N 
15

TH
 A

VE

N 
13

TH
 A

VE

E  V A N  W E E K  S T

N 
16

TH
 A

VE

W  V A N  W E E K  S T

W  L O E B  S T

N 
7T

H
 A

VE

N 
17

TH
 A

VE

N 
19

TH
 A

VE

N  
1 0

T H
 A

V E

N  
1 2

T H
 A

V E

W  C H A P I N  S T

W  M C I N T Y R E  S T

W  S C H U N I O R  S T

W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

W  P E T E R  S T

W  K U H N  S T

E  S C H U N I O R  S T

W  C H A V E Z  S T

W  P E T E R  S T

BO
D

A
RK

 D
R

P I R U L  S T

ST
R

AW
B

ER
RY

 H
I L

L

D E
E R

 H
I L

L S

N 
1 4

T H
 P

L

N  
1 4

T H
 P

L

N  
6 T

H
 A

V E

E  C H A P I N  S T

®
1 in = 600 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
MEL PHILLIP / TREVINO ENGINEERING

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

CITY LIMITS



E3200-00-00D-0004-00

6 4 52 3

94
710 9 8

6

6

6

 4 53

127
79 8

 4 5

78

7

-01

-04

-07

-01

-02

-03

-04 -05

-06

-08

E3
20

0-
00

-0
0C

-0
00

0-
05

E3
20

0-
00

-0
0C

-0
00

0-
00

SUBD.

JUDY ANNE
21

-0
0

-01

-02

-0004-00

-0008-00
0009-00

-0
5

SUBDIVISION

TORRES DEL SOL

32 31 30 29 28 27

26252423222120

19 18 17 16 15 14

131211109
8

7
6

5

4

3

2

1

120 .53'

10
0

.0
6'

143 .38'
143 .38'

123 .05'

129 .24'

123 .05'

112.7
6'117.1 5'

12
0

.0
0'

112.7
6'

21
.1

7'

35
.3

6'129 .49'

89
.9

4'

151 .22'151 .22'

83
.0

0'

125 .43'125 .43'

83
.0

0'

120 .53'

33
.4

7'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

98.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

98.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

11
5.

0
0'

10
4

.3
8'

156 .91'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

10
4

.3
8'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

97.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

97.0 0'

97.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

97.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

60.1 7'

65
.6

4'

73.9 1'

11
5.

0
0'

93.5 1'
35.3 6'

75
.0

0'

103 .51'

11
5.

0
0'

95.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

95.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

90.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

90.0 0'

CHAPIN ST.

-00

00
01

-0
5

E3200-00-00C-0001-00

00
13

-0
0

E3200-00-00C-0011-00

23 22 212423 22 2124

-0
8

-03-04

-0
7

-06

-02

-09

-0
0

-10

-0
3

-01

3 4

-03

-01

-02

3

25

22

17

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

2

KI
N

G
 A

D
D

. S
U

BD
.

VA
N

C
E 

SU
B

D
.

M
IR

AT
R

EN
 S

U
BD

.

TWILIGHT PARK
111098765

4

3

2

1

1112

BUILD
IN

G

ECIS
D ADMIN

IS
TRATIO

N 

FO
UCHEK-M

EYER

SUBD. N
O. 3

A

12102 41 6 87

15 13141820 16

9 11

17

5

19

312102 41 6 87

15 13141820 16

9 11

17

5

19

3

2 41 6 87 95312102 41 6 87 9 115312102 41 6 87 9 115312102 41 6 87

23 22 21 20

9 11

24

53

T2100-00-241-0010-

T2100-00-241-0007-04

T2100-00-241-0009-00

T21
00

-00
-24

1-0
01

1-0
0

T2100-00-241-0006-

T2100-00-241-0012-00

T2100-00-241-0005-

T2
10

0-
00

-2
46

-0
01

2-
00

T2100-00-246-0005-

T2
10

0-
00

-2
41

-0
01

2-
04

-03

-0005-04

-12

-01
-11

-07

12 11

12 11

1

2

SUB

COONRAD

8101113 1214 9

7654321

8910111214 13

7654321

6

7

4 53

9 810

1 2

6

7

4 53

9 810

1 2

WILLIS

VECTOR ADDITI
ON

LOT 3

LOT 2

LOT 1

WALLACE INDUSTRIAL SUBD

18

17

16

15

14

13 12

11

10

9

8

7

6 5

4

3

2

1

8

5

8 7

1

4

3 5 4 6

89 7

3 5 4 6

89 7

2

3 5 4 6

89 7

3 5 4 6 1

1

12

89

199

2 3  43 5 4 6 1

242

11 10 9

2 3  4

89 7 12

3 5 4 6 1

89 7 1112 10 9

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 11

21 3

1112 10

108

 4

9

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 11

21 3

1112 10

113

 4

9

114

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

21 3

1112 10

21 3

152

 4

9

 4

8 7 12 11

5 6

1112 10

21 3

157
9

 4

151

8 7

5 6 1 2

1112 10

21 3

201

9

 4

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

1112 10

21 3

240

9

 4

202

239
1112 10 89 7 12 11

195

196

109

112

153

156

200

241

10

10

10

10

10

10

123456789

URBAN RENEWAL
INDUSTRIAL SUBDIVISION

12

7

S.F. AUSTIN
SCHOOL

1 2 3 4

5

6

7
8

9

10
11

12

13

1415

16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23
24

1

2

3

4

5

67

8

9

10
11

12

1

2

3

4

5

6
7

8
9

10

11

12

1314

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

10

7

8

9

12

11

6

5

4

3

2

1

5 6

7 8

5

7

 4

89

106

1 2 3 5 4 6

1012 11 89 7

115

1 2 3 5 4 6

1012 11 89 7

150

1 2 3 5 4 6

1012 11 89 7

1 2 3 5 4 6

159
1012 11 89 7

1 2 3 5 4 6

105

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

5 4 6

89 7

1

12

116

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

5 4 6

89 7

1

12

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 119

2 3

11 10

103

 4

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 119

2 3

11 10

118

 4

104

117

3

10

3

10

149

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

2 3  4 5 6

5 4 6

89 7

5 4 6

1

12

1

160
11 10 89 7

2 3  4 5 6

89 7

5 4 6

12

1

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

9

2 3

11 10

2 3

147

 4

 4

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

162

 4

148

161

3

10

3

10

3

203

1012 11 89 7

1 2 3 5 4 6

238

1012 11 89 7

204

11 10 89 7

2 3  4 5 6

89 7

5 4 6

12

1

237

11 10 89 789 7 12

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

206

 4

8 7 12 11911 10

205

10

3

10

250 249

191 192 193 194

1 2 3

4

5

LONGHORN
ACRES

911 12

8

10

9

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

13

1 2 3

9
8
7

6

5
4

2

4

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

AS
H

 P
AR

K 
AD

D
IT

IO
N

12

10

2
1

111213

7

6

7

1

6

7

1

6

7

6

1

1

7

6 1

7

1

102

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

101

21 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

119

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

120

21 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

100

32 4

67 5

 4

5

6

7

8

9 8

9

11

1

12

10

121
7 6 5

2 3 4

9

5

8

7

6

 4

8

11

9

1

12

10

12

12

146

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

1 2 3 5 4

145

21 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

21 3  4 5 6

163
1012 11 89

1 2 3 5 4

164
11 10 89 7

21 3  4 5 6

7 6 5

2 3 4

2 3 4

144

9

5

8

7

6

5

 4

8

11

9

1

12

10

12

7 6 5

62 543 7

9

8

7

6

8

11

9

8

10
9

11

7 1

10

21
22
23
24

165

C
LO

SN
ER

 B
LV

D
.

12

12

 4 1

207

1012 11 89

208

11 10 89 7

233

2 3 4 5 6 7

91213 1110 8

14

1

22 20
212324

1

14

16

18
17

15

13

16
17

15

24
23
22
21
20 209

19
18

13 12 1011 891415171819

10
11

9
8

16

12

251252

7 8 9 10 11 12

189 19012 20 188

HOUSE
COURT

PARKING

2

1

5

3

4

6

7

9

8

10

11 12 13

31 2

5
4

6
7

8
9

1

3

WELLS SUBDIVISION
2 15 34679 81019 16

18

17 15 14 1213 11

22
21

20
13 24 25 26 27 2928 30 31 32 33 34 35

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

HIGHLAND PARK SUBDIVISION
1716

9 1112101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

9 1112101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

9 11 12101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

913 11 1012 8

14

16
15

21

1
24

22

20

18
17

19

23 2 4 63 5 7

753 64223

19

17
18

20

22

24
1

21

15
16

14

812 101113 9

11

56

7

6

99

1 2 3

12 10111112 10 9 8

21 3 5 4

98

7

6

1112 10

21 3

1112 10 9 8

21 3 5 4

123

11 10 9 8 7

2 3 5 4 6

97
10 9 8 7

3 5 4 6 1

96
12

11 10 9 8 7

2 3 5 4 6

124

1

10 9 8 7

3 5 4 6

125
12

7

6

6

1112 10

21 3

21 3

12 1011 9 8

1 2  43 5

1 2 3  4 5

142

7

6

1112 10

1 2 3 4 5 6

12 1011 9 8

1 2  43 5

167

81011 9 7

532  4 6

52 3  4 6

141

 43 5 6 1

1

140
12

81011 9 7

532  4 6

168

1

12

122

143

166

32 54
7

6

7 24 22 20
2123 19

12 1011 9 8

211

13141718
19 15

16

230

81011 9 7

212

10 89 7

213

 43 5 6

12

229228

10 9 8 7

 43 5 6

255

1 2 3 5 64

274

256257

 43 5 6

10 9 8 7

273272

 43 5 6

10 9 8 7

10 9 8 7

210

184
185 186 187

1112

21

1112

21

21

1112

21

1112

21

21

1112

21

1112

1112

23

6

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 11121087654321 10 12119

9 1112101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

87654321 10 12119

161718192021222324 131415

9 1112101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

9 1112101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

13

18
17
16
15
14

12
11
10
9
8
7

321 4 65

21
22

23
24

19
20

13

18
17
16
15
14

12
11
10
9
8
7

321 4 65

21
22

23
24

19
20

HOUSE
COURT
COUNTY
HIDALGO

12

12

12

12

12

12

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

LAS PALMAS

SHOPPING CENTER

1

12

10

9 8 7

5 4 6

1112 10

21 3

95

6 4 5

79 8

1 2 3

1012 11

126

6 4 51 2 3

214
79 8

6 4 5

1012 11

2 3

227

6 4 5

79 8

3

10

258

6 4 5

78

71011 9 8

1

27

28
31

32

1

20

2 3

17

16

13

8

12

9

21

262728 24

19

22

18

15

14

11

4

10

7

5

25

R
O

SE
LA

N
D

 P
AR

KS

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

1

C
H

AP
IN

 IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L 
PA

R
K

-05

85
.0

0
'

165.0 0'
85

.0
0

'
85

.0
0

'
85

.0
0

'
77

.0
0

'

115.00'

78
.0

0
'

13
0.

0
0'

80.00 '80.00 ' 80.00 ' 84.00 '
82.00 '

80
.0

0
'

80
.0

0
'

120.0 0'

80
.0

0
'

11
0.

00
'

305.0 0'

80
.0

0
'

83
.0

0
'

140.0 0'

16
8.

0
0'

88.00 ' 135.0 0'

14
0.

0
0'

67
.0

0
'

13
0.

0
0'

80.00 ' 85.00 '

14
0.

0
0'

165.0 0'

80.00 '85.31 '

84.00 '

13
0.

0
0'

13
0.

0
0'

153.0 0'

13
0.

0
0'

10
9.

0
3'

105.9 7'

16
5.

0
0'

75
.0

0
'

305.0 0'

165.0 0'

165.3 1'

85
.0

0
'

85
.0

0
'

80.00 '80.00 '

85
.0

0
'

85
.0

0
'

85
.0

0
'

78
.0

0
'

85.00 '

85.00 '

77
.0

0
'

80
.0

0
'

80
.0

0
'

80
.0

0
'

13
0.

0
0'

80.00 '80.00 '

11
5.

00
'

69.00 ' 67.00 '

12
5.

0
0'

16
5.

0
0'

15
0.

0
0'

245.0 0'

57
.0

0
'

100.0 0'

80
.0

0
'

52
.7

0
'

L8

L7

116.72'

85
.0

0
'

95.00 '

100.0 0'
33

.7
0

'

70.00 '

11
5.

00
'

70.31 '

11
5.

00
'

12
5.

0
0'

69.00 '

64
.2

5
'

56.36 '

14
4

.9
3

'

165.3 1'

165.3 1'

80
.0

0
'

80
.0

0
'

120.0 0'

120.0 0'

120.0 0'

140.0 0'

140.0 0'

115.00'

115.00'

115.00'

14
0.

0
0'

14
0.

0
0'

77.00 '77.00 '92.31 '

77.00 '77.00 '68.34 '

61
.2

6
'

85
.0

0
'

85
.0

0
'

85
.0

0
'

40

39

38

37

41

67

3

4

2

1

A

31

32

33

29

30

5
36

35 34

28

27

24 25232221201918

44 43 4245

49 5148

47 52

46 53

12

13

14

15

11

10

9
8

16

17

26

B

50

60
.0

0
'

60
.6

9
'

79
.0

0
'

130.8 4'

87
.5

6
'

25
.5

0
'

36
.0

4
'

134.7 4'

25
.0

6
'

54
.1

0
'

135.0 0'

117.59'

54
.7

0
'

52
.8

8
'

135.0 0'

135.0 0'

79
.0

0
'

79
.0

0
'

79
.0

0
'

79
.0

0
'

80.00 '82.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 '198.0 0' 82.00 ' 155.6 6'

16
7.

1
3'

37.65 '

13
5.

0
7'

29.35 '

11
0.

95
'

13
5.

0
8'

13
5.

0
9'

13
5.

1
0'

13
5.

1
0'

13
5.

11
'

11
0.

99
'

80.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 '
29.35 '

115.49'

WEST O
AKS SUBD.

1

2

78

77

45

46

44

43

3 76 47 42

4 75 48 41

5 74 49 40

6 73 50 39

7 72 51 38

8 71 52 37

9 70 53 36

10 69 54 35

11 68 55 34

12 67 56 33

13 66 57 32

14 65 58 31

15 64 59 30

16 63 60 29

62 61 28
125 .00' 125 .00'

27

68
.8

2'
62

.0
0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

63
.8

2'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

120 .00'

10
1

.1
8'

10
0

.0
0'

63
.8

2'
62

.0
0'

125 .00'

110.0 0'

125 .00'

95.0 0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

53
.8

2'

53
.8

2'

50
.5

2'

50
.5

2'
76

.1
8'

110.0 0' 110.0 0'

95.0 0' 95.0 0' 95.0 0'

120 .00' 120 .00' 120 .00'

76
.1

8'

76
.1

8'

76
.1

8'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125.0 0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 62
.0

0'

125 .00'62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125.0 0' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125.0 0' 125 .00'62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125.0 0' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.2

0'

62
.2

0'

10
1

.1
8'

10
1

.1
8'

62
.2

0'

62
.2

0'

TH
E 

HI
LL

S 
AT

 C
H

AP
IN

 S
U

BD
.

TH
E 

HI
LL

S 
AT

 C
H

AP
IN

 II
 S

U
BD

.

13

18 19 20 21

12

11

10

8

9

6

7

4

5

3

1

2

48 47 22

49 46 23

50 45 24

51 44 25

52 43 26

53 42 27

54 41 28

55 40 29

56 39

3157 38

3258 37

3359 36

34

30

60 35

U P
A S

 D
R

E  S C H U N I O R  S T

E  V A N
W E E K  S T

E  L O V E T T  S T

E  K U H N  S T

E  M C I N T Y R E  S T

T E A K  D R

F I G  D R

E  W E L L S  S T

L O T T O  L N

N 
BU

SI
NE

S S
 H

I G
H

W
AY

 2
8 1

S C H A R L E T
O A K  D R

W  K U H N  S T

E  C H A P I N  S T

E  C H A V E Z  S T

W  C O O P E R  S T

W  P E T E R  S T

N 
14

TH
 A

VE

N 
CL

O
SN

ER
 B

LV
D

E  P E T E R  S T

N 
8T

H
 A

VE

E  L O E B  S T

N 
8T

H
 A

VE

N  
7 T

H
 A

V E

N 
9 T

H
 A

V E

N 
VE

TE
RA

N
S 

B
LV

D

W  L O V E T T  S T

N 
9T

H
 A

VE
N  

9 T
H

 A
V E

W  V A N  W E E K  S T

W  L O E B  S T

N 
15

TH
 A

VE

N 
13

TH
 A

VE

E  V A N  W E E K  S T

N 
16

TH
 A

VE

W  V A N  W E E K  S T

W  L O E B  S T

N 
7T

H
 A

VE

N 
17

TH
 A

VE

N 
19

TH
 A

VE

N  
1 0

T H
 A

V E

N  
1 2

T H
 A

V E

W  C H A P I N  S T

W  M C I N T Y R E  S T

W  S C H U N I O R  S T

W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

W  P E T E R  S T

W  K U H N  S T

E  S C H U N I O R  S T

W  C H A V E Z  S T

W  P E T E R  S T

BO
D

A
RK

 D
R

P I R U L  S T

ST
R

AW
B

ER
RY

 H
I L

L

D E
E R

 H
I L

L S

N 
1 4

T H
 P

L

N  
1 4

T H
 P

L

N  
6 T

H
 A

V E

E  C H A P I N  S T

®
1 in = 600 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
MEL PHILLIP / TREVINO ENGINEERING

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE

AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL

COMMERCIAL, GENERAL

COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD

DOWNTOWN DISTRICT

INDUSTRIAL

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH

SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL

URBAN RESIDENTIAL

URBAN UNIVERSITY

CITY LIMITS



E3200-00-00D-0004-00

6 4 52 3

94
710 9 8

6

6

6

 4 53

127
79 8

 4 5

78

7

-01

-04

-07

-01

-02

-03

-04 -05

-06

-08

E3
20

0-
00

-0
0C

-0
00

0-
05

E3
20

0-
00

-0
0C

-0
00

0-
00

SUBD.

JUDY ANNE
21

-0
0

-01

-02

-0004-00

-0008-00
0009-00

-0
5

SUBDIVISION

TORRES DEL SOL

32 31 30 29 28 27

26252423222120

19 18 17 16 15 14

131211109
8

7
6

5

4

3

2

1

120 .53'

10
0

.0
6'

143 .38'
143 .38'

123 .05'

129 .24'

123 .05'

112.7
6'117.1 5'

12
0

.0
0'

112.7
6'

21
.1

7'

35
.3

6'129 .49'

89
.9

4'

151 .22'151 .22'

83
.0

0'

125 .43'125 .43'

83
.0

0'

120 .53'

33
.4

7'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

98.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

98.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

11
5.

0
0'

10
4

.3
8'

156 .91'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

10
4

.3
8'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

97.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

97.0 0'

97.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

97.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

60.1 7'

65
.6

4'

73.9 1'

11
5.

0
0'

93.5 1'
35.3 6'

75
.0

0'

103 .51'

11
5.

0
0'

95.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

95.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

90.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

90.0 0'

CHAPIN ST.

-00

00
01

-0
5

E3200-00-00C-0001-00

00
13

-0
0

E3200-00-00C-0011-00

23 22 212423 22 2124

-0
8

-03-04

-0
7

-06

-02

-09

-0
0

-10

-0
3

-01

3 4

-03

-01

-02

3

25

22

17

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

2

KI
N

G
 A

D
D

. S
U

BD
.

VA
N

C
E 

SU
B

D
.

M
IR

AT
R

EN
 S

U
BD

.

TWILIGHT PARK
111098765

4

3

2

1

1112

BUILD
IN

G

ECIS
D ADMIN

IS
TRATIO

N 

FO
UCHEK-M

EYER

SUBD. N
O. 3

A

12102 41 6 87

15 13141820 16

9 11

17

5

19

312102 41 6 87

15 13141820 16

9 11

17

5

19

3

2 41 6 87 95312102 41 6 87 9 115312102 41 6 87 9 115312102 41 6 87

23 22 21 20

9 11

24

53

T2100-00-241-0010-

T2100-00-241-0007-04

T2100-00-241-0009-00

T21
00

-00
-24

1-0
01

1-0
0

T2100-00-241-0006-

T2100-00-241-0012-00

T2100-00-241-0005-

T2
10

0-
00

-2
46

-0
01

2-
00

T2100-00-246-0005-

T2
10

0-
00

-2
41

-0
01

2-
04

-03

-0005-04

-12

-01
-11

-07

12 11

12 11

1

2

SUB

COONRAD

8101113 1214 9

7654321

8910111214 13

7654321

6

7

4 53

9 810

1 2

6

7

4 53

9 810

1 2

WILLIS

VECTOR ADDITI
ON

LOT 3

LOT 2

LOT 1

WALLACE INDUSTRIAL SUBD

18

17

16

15

14

13 12

11

10

9

8

7

6 5

4

3

2

1

8

5

8 7

1

4

3 5 4 6

89 7

3 5 4 6

89 7

2

3 5 4 6

89 7

3 5 4 6 1

1

12

89

199

2 3  43 5 4 6 1

242

11 10 9

2 3  4

89 7 12

3 5 4 6 1

89 7 1112 10 9

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 11

21 3

1112 10

108

 4

9

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 11

21 3

1112 10

113

 4

9

114

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

21 3

1112 10

21 3

152

 4

9

 4

8 7 12 11

5 6

1112 10

21 3

157
9

 4

151

8 7

5 6 1 2

1112 10

21 3

201

9

 4

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

1112 10

21 3

240

9

 4

202

239
1112 10 89 7 12 11

195

196

109

112

153

156

200

241

10

10

10

10

10

10

123456789

URBAN RENEWAL
INDUSTRIAL SUBDIVISION

12

7

S.F. AUSTIN
SCHOOL

1 2 3 4

5

6

7
8

9

10
11

12

13

1415

16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23
24

1

2

3

4

5

67

8

9

10
11

12

1

2

3

4

5

6
7

8
9

10

11

12

1314

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

10

7

8

9

12

11

6

5

4

3

2

1

5 6

7 8

5

7

 4

89

106

1 2 3 5 4 6

1012 11 89 7

115

1 2 3 5 4 6

1012 11 89 7

150

1 2 3 5 4 6

1012 11 89 7

1 2 3 5 4 6

159
1012 11 89 7

1 2 3 5 4 6

105

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

5 4 6

89 7

1

12

116

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

5 4 6

89 7

1

12

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 119

2 3

11 10

103

 4

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 119

2 3

11 10

118

 4

104

117

3

10

3

10

149

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

2 3  4 5 6

5 4 6

89 7

5 4 6

1

12

1

160
11 10 89 7

2 3  4 5 6

89 7

5 4 6

12

1

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

9

2 3

11 10

2 3

147

 4

 4

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

162

 4

148

161

3

10

3

10

3

203

1012 11 89 7

1 2 3 5 4 6

238

1012 11 89 7

204

11 10 89 7

2 3  4 5 6

89 7

5 4 6

12

1

237

11 10 89 789 7 12

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

206

 4

8 7 12 11911 10

205

10

3

10

250 249

191 192 193 194

1 2 3

4

5

LONGHORN
ACRES

911 12

8

10

9

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

13

1 2 3

9
8
7

6

5
4

2

4

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

AS
H

 P
AR

K 
AD

D
IT

IO
N

12

10

2
1

111213

7

6

7

1

6

7

1

6

7

6

1

1

7

6 1

7

1

102

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

101

21 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

119

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

120

21 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

100

32 4

67 5

 4

5

6

7

8

9 8

9

11

1

12

10

121
7 6 5

2 3 4

9

5

8

7

6

 4

8

11

9

1

12

10

12

12

146

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

1 2 3 5 4

145

21 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

21 3  4 5 6

163
1012 11 89

1 2 3 5 4

164
11 10 89 7

21 3  4 5 6

7 6 5

2 3 4

2 3 4

144

9

5

8

7

6

5

 4

8

11

9

1

12

10

12

7 6 5

62 543 7

9

8

7

6

8

11

9

8

10
9

11

7 1

10

21
22
23
24

165

C
LO

SN
ER

 B
LV

D
.

12

12

 4 1

207

1012 11 89

208

11 10 89 7

233

2 3 4 5 6 7

91213 1110 8

14

1

22 20
212324

1

14

16

18
17

15

13

16
17

15

24
23
22
21
20 209

19
18

13 12 1011 891415171819

10
11

9
8

16

12

251252

7 8 9 10 11 12

189 19012 20 188

HOUSE
COURT

PARKING

2

1

5

3

4

6

7

9

8

10

11 12 13

31 2

5
4

6
7

8
9

1

3

WELLS SUBDIVISION
2 15 34679 81019 16

18

17 15 14 1213 11

22
21

20
13 24 25 26 27 2928 30 31 32 33 34 35

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

HIGHLAND PARK SUBDIVISION
1716

9 1112101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

9 1112101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

9 11 12101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

913 11 1012 8

14

16
15

21

1
24

22

20

18
17

19

23 2 4 63 5 7

753 64223

19

17
18

20

22

24
1

21

15
16

14

812 101113 9

11

56

7

6

99

1 2 3

12 10111112 10 9 8

21 3 5 4

98

7

6

1112 10

21 3

1112 10 9 8

21 3 5 4

123

11 10 9 8 7

2 3 5 4 6

97
10 9 8 7

3 5 4 6 1

96
12

11 10 9 8 7

2 3 5 4 6

124

1

10 9 8 7

3 5 4 6

125
12

7

6

6

1112 10

21 3

21 3

12 1011 9 8

1 2  43 5

1 2 3  4 5

142

7

6

1112 10

1 2 3 4 5 6

12 1011 9 8

1 2  43 5

167

81011 9 7

532  4 6

52 3  4 6

141

 43 5 6 1

1

140
12

81011 9 7

532  4 6

168

1

12

122

143

166

32 54
7

6

7 24 22 20
2123 19

12 1011 9 8

211

13141718
19 15

16

230

81011 9 7

212

10 89 7

213

 43 5 6

12

229228

10 9 8 7

 43 5 6

255

1 2 3 5 64

274

256257

 43 5 6

10 9 8 7

273272

 43 5 6

10 9 8 7

10 9 8 7

210

184
185 186 187

1112

21

1112

21

21

1112

21

1112

21

21

1112

21

1112

1112

23

6

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 11121087654321 10 12119

9 1112101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

87654321 10 12119

161718192021222324 131415

9 1112101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

9 1112101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

13

18
17
16
15
14

12
11
10
9
8
7

321 4 65

21
22

23
24

19
20

13

18
17
16
15
14

12
11
10
9
8
7

321 4 65

21
22

23
24

19
20

HOUSE
COURT
COUNTY
HIDALGO

12

12

12

12

12

12

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

LAS PALMAS

SHOPPING CENTER

1

12

10

9 8 7

5 4 6

1112 10

21 3

95

6 4 5

79 8

1 2 3

1012 11

126

6 4 51 2 3

214
79 8

6 4 5

1012 11

2 3

227

6 4 5

79 8

3

10

258

6 4 5

78

71011 9 8

1

27

28
31

32

1

20

2 3

17

16

13

8

12

9

21

262728 24

19

22

18

15

14

11

4

10

7

5

25

R
O

SE
LA

N
D

 P
AR

KS

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

1

C
H

AP
IN

 IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L 
PA

R
K

-05

85
.0

0
'

165.0 0'
85

.0
0

'
85

.0
0

'
85

.0
0

'
77

.0
0

'

115.00'

78
.0

0
'

13
0.

0
0'

80.00 '80.00 ' 80.00 ' 84.00 '
82.00 '

80
.0

0
'

80
.0

0
'

120.0 0'

80
.0

0
'

11
0.

00
'

305.0 0'

80
.0

0
'

83
.0

0
'

140.0 0'

16
8.

0
0'

88.00 ' 135.0 0'

14
0.

0
0'

67
.0

0
'

13
0.

0
0'

80.00 ' 85.00 '

14
0.

0
0'

165.0 0'

80.00 '85.31 '

84.00 '

13
0.

0
0'

13
0.

0
0'

153.0 0'

13
0.

0
0'

10
9.

0
3'

105.9 7'

16
5.

0
0'

75
.0

0
'

305.0 0'

165.0 0'

165.3 1'

85
.0

0
'

85
.0

0
'

80.00 '80.00 '

85
.0

0
'

85
.0

0
'

85
.0

0
'

78
.0

0
'

85.00 '

85.00 '

77
.0

0
'

80
.0

0
'

80
.0

0
'

80
.0

0
'

13
0.

0
0'

80.00 '80.00 '

11
5.

00
'

69.00 ' 67.00 '

12
5.

0
0'

16
5.

0
0'

15
0.

0
0'

245.0 0'

57
.0

0
'

100.0 0'

80
.0

0
'

52
.7

0
'

L8

L7

116.72'

85
.0

0
'

95.00 '

100.0 0'
33

.7
0

'

70.00 '

11
5.

00
'

70.31 '

11
5.

00
'

12
5.

0
0'

69.00 '

64
.2

5
'

56.36 '

14
4

.9
3

'

165.3 1'

165.3 1'

80
.0

0
'

80
.0

0
'

120.0 0'

120.0 0'

120.0 0'

140.0 0'

140.0 0'

115.00'

115.00'

115.00'

14
0.

0
0'

14
0.

0
0'

77.00 '77.00 '92.31 '

77.00 '77.00 '68.34 '

61
.2

6
'

85
.0

0
'

85
.0

0
'

85
.0

0
'

40

39

38

37

41

67

3

4

2

1

A

31

32

33

29

30

5
36

35 34

28

27

24 25232221201918

44 43 4245

49 5148

47 52

46 53

12

13

14

15

11

10

9
8

16

17

26

B

50

60
.0

0
'

60
.6

9
'

79
.0

0
'

130.8 4'

87
.5

6
'

25
.5

0
'

36
.0

4
'

134.7 4'

25
.0

6
'

54
.1

0
'

135.0 0'

117.59'

54
.7

0
'

52
.8

8
'

135.0 0'

135.0 0'

79
.0

0
'

79
.0

0
'

79
.0

0
'

79
.0

0
'

80.00 '82.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 '198.0 0' 82.00 ' 155.6 6'

16
7.

1
3'

37.65 '

13
5.

0
7'

29.35 '

11
0.

95
'

13
5.

0
8'

13
5.

0
9'

13
5.

1
0'

13
5.

1
0'

13
5.

11
'

11
0.

99
'

80.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 '
29.35 '

115.49'

WEST O
AKS SUBD.

1

2

78

77

45

46

44

43

3 76 47 42

4 75 48 41

5 74 49 40

6 73 50 39

7 72 51 38

8 71 52 37

9 70 53 36

10 69 54 35

11 68 55 34

12 67 56 33

13 66 57 32

14 65 58 31

15 64 59 30

16 63 60 29

62 61 28
125 .00' 125 .00'

27

68
.8

2'
62

.0
0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

63
.8

2'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

120 .00'

10
1

.1
8'

10
0

.0
0'

63
.8

2'
62

.0
0'

125 .00'

110.0 0'

125 .00'

95.0 0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

53
.8

2'

53
.8

2'

50
.5

2'

50
.5

2'
76

.1
8'

110.0 0' 110.0 0'

95.0 0' 95.0 0' 95.0 0'

120 .00' 120 .00' 120 .00'

76
.1

8'

76
.1

8'

76
.1

8'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125.0 0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 62
.0

0'

125 .00'62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125.0 0' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125.0 0' 125 .00'62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125.0 0' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.2

0'

62
.2

0'

10
1

.1
8'

10
1

.1
8'

62
.2

0'

62
.2

0'

TH
E 

HI
LL

S 
AT

 C
H

AP
IN

 S
U

BD
.

TH
E 

HI
LL

S 
AT

 C
H

AP
IN

 II
 S

U
BD

.

13

18 19 20 21

12

11

10

8

9

6

7

4

5

3

1

2

48 47 22

49 46 23

50 45 24

51 44 25

52 43 26

53 42 27

54 41 28

55 40 29

56 39

3157 38

3258 37

3359 36

34

30

60 35

U P
A S

 D
R

E  S C H U N I O R  S T

E  V A N
W E E K  S T

E  L O V E T T  S T

E  K U H N  S T

E  M C I N T Y R E  S T

T E A K  D R

F I G  D R

E  W E L L S  S T

L O T T O  L N

N 
BU

SI
NE

S S
 H

I G
H

W
AY

 2
8 1

S C H A R L E T
O A K  D R

W  K U H N  S T

E  C H A P I N  S T

E  C H A V E Z  S T

W  C O O P E R  S T

W  P E T E R  S T

N 
14

TH
 A

VE

N 
CL

O
SN

ER
 B

LV
D

E  P E T E R  S T

N 
8T

H
 A

VE

E  L O E B  S T

N 
8T

H
 A

VE

N  
7 T

H
 A

V E

N 
9 T

H
 A

V E

N 
VE

TE
RA

N
S 

B
LV

D

W  L O V E T T  S T

N 
9T

H
 A

VE
N  

9 T
H

 A
V E

W  V A N  W E E K  S T

W  L O E B  S T

N 
15

TH
 A

VE

N 
13

TH
 A

VE

E  V A N  W E E K  S T

N 
16

TH
 A

VE

W  V A N  W E E K  S T

W  L O E B  S T

N 
7T

H
 A

VE

N 
17

TH
 A

VE

N 
19

TH
 A

VE

N  
1 0

T H
 A

V E

N  
1 2

T H
 A

V E

W  C H A P I N  S T

W  M C I N T Y R E  S T

W  S C H U N I O R  S T

W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

W  P E T E R  S T

W  K U H N  S T

E  S C H U N I O R  S T

W  C H A V E Z  S T

W  P E T E R  S T

BO
D

A
RK

 D
R

P I R U L  S T

ST
R

AW
B

ER
RY

 H
I L

L

D E
E R

 H
I L

L S

N 
1 4

T H
 P

L

N  
1 4

T H
 P

L

N  
6 T

H
 A

V E

E  C H A P I N  S T

®
1 in = 600 ft

FUTURE LANDUSE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
MEL PHILLIP / TREVINO ENGINEERING

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISON SITE

FUTURE LANDUSE
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
GENERAL COMMERCIAL
INDUSTRIAL
MOBILE HOME
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL
OFFICE BUSINESS PARK
SUBURBAN
URBAN
URBAN UNIVERSITY

CITY LIMITS



E3200-00-00D-0004-00

6 4 52 3

94
710 9 8

6

6

6

 4 53

127
79 8

 4 5

78

7

-01

-04

-07

-01

-02

-03

-04 -05

-06

-08

E3
20

0-
00

-0
0C

-0
00

0-
05

E3
20

0-
00

-0
0C

-0
00

0-
00

SUBD.

JUDY ANNE
21

-0
0

-01

-02

-0004-00

-0008-00
0009-00

-0
5

SUBDIVISION

TORRES DEL SOL

32 31 30 29 28 27

26252423222120

19 18 17 16 15 14

131211109
8

7
6

5

4

3

2

1

120 .53'

10
0

.0
6'

143 .38'
143 .38'

123 .05'

129 .24'

123 .05'

112.7
6'117.1 5'

12
0

.0
0'

112.7
6'

21
.1

7'

35
.3

6'129 .49'

89
.9

4'

151 .22'151 .22'

83
.0

0'

125 .43'125 .43'

83
.0

0'

120 .53'

33
.4

7'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

83.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

98.0 0'

12
0

.0
0'

98.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

11
5.

0
0'

10
4

.3
8'

156 .91'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

10
4

.3
8'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

97.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

97.0 0'

97.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

97.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

60.1 7'

65
.6

4'

73.9 1'

11
5.

0
0'

93.5 1'
35.3 6'

75
.0

0'

103 .51'

11
5.

0
0'

95.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

95.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

83.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

90.0 0'

11
5.

0
0'

90.0 0'

CHAPIN ST.

-00

00
01

-0
5

E3200-00-00C-0001-00

00
13

-0
0

E3200-00-00C-0011-00

23 22 212423 22 2124

-0
8

-03-04

-0
7

-06

-02

-09

-0
0

-10

-0
3

-01

3 4

-03

-01

-02

3

25

22

17

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

2

KI
N

G
 A

D
D

. S
U

BD
.

VA
N

C
E 

SU
B

D
.

M
IR

AT
R

EN
 S

U
BD

.

TWILIGHT PARK
111098765

4

3

2

1

1112

BUILD
IN

G

ECIS
D ADMIN

IS
TRATIO

N 

FO
UCHEK-M

EYER

SUBD. N
O. 3

A

12102 41 6 87

15 13141820 16

9 11

17

5

19

312102 41 6 87

15 13141820 16

9 11

17

5

19

3

2 41 6 87 95312102 41 6 87 9 115312102 41 6 87 9 115312102 41 6 87

23 22 21 20

9 11

24

53

T2100-00-241-0010-

T2100-00-241-0007-04

T2100-00-241-0009-00

T21
00

-00
-24

1-0
01

1-0
0

T2100-00-241-0006-

T2100-00-241-0012-00

T2100-00-241-0005-

T2
10

0-
00

-2
46

-0
01

2-
00

T2100-00-246-0005-

T2
10

0-
00

-2
41

-0
01

2-
04

-03

-0005-04

-12

-01
-11

-07

12 11

12 11

1

2

SUB

COONRAD

8101113 1214 9

7654321

8910111214 13

7654321

6

7

4 53

9 810

1 2

6

7

4 53

9 810

1 2

WILLIS

VECTOR ADDITI
ON

LOT 3

LOT 2

LOT 1

WALLACE INDUSTRIAL SUBD

18

17

16

15

14

13 12

11

10

9

8

7

6 5

4

3

2

1

8

5

8 7

1

4

3 5 4 6

89 7

3 5 4 6

89 7

2

3 5 4 6

89 7

3 5 4 6 1

1

12

89

199

2 3  43 5 4 6 1

242

11 10 9

2 3  4

89 7 12

3 5 4 6 1

89 7 1112 10 9

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 11

21 3

1112 10

108

 4

9

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 11

21 3

1112 10

113

 4

9

114

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

21 3

1112 10

21 3

152

 4

9

 4

8 7 12 11

5 6

1112 10

21 3

157
9

 4

151

8 7

5 6 1 2

1112 10

21 3

201

9

 4

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

1112 10

21 3

240

9

 4

202

239
1112 10 89 7 12 11

195

196

109

112

153

156

200

241

10

10

10

10

10

10

123456789

URBAN RENEWAL
INDUSTRIAL SUBDIVISION

12

7

S.F. AUSTIN
SCHOOL

1 2 3 4

5

6

7
8

9

10
11

12

13

1415

16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23
24

1

2

3

4

5

67

8

9

10
11

12

1

2

3

4

5

6
7

8
9

10

11

12

1314

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

10

7

8

9

12

11

6

5

4

3

2

1

5 6

7 8

5

7

 4

89

106

1 2 3 5 4 6

1012 11 89 7

115

1 2 3 5 4 6

1012 11 89 7

150

1 2 3 5 4 6

1012 11 89 7

1 2 3 5 4 6

159
1012 11 89 7

1 2 3 5 4 6

105

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

5 4 6

89 7

1

12

116

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

5 4 6

89 7

1

12

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 119

2 3

11 10

103

 4

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 119

2 3

11 10

118

 4

104

117

3

10

3

10

149

2 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

2 3  4 5 6

5 4 6

89 7

5 4 6

1

12

1

160
11 10 89 7

2 3  4 5 6

89 7

5 4 6

12

1

5 6 1 2

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

9

2 3

11 10

2 3

147

 4

 4

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

162

 4

148

161

3

10

3

10

3

203

1012 11 89 7

1 2 3 5 4 6

238

1012 11 89 7

204

11 10 89 7

2 3  4 5 6

89 7

5 4 6

12

1

237

11 10 89 789 7 12

8 7 12 11

5 6 1 2

911 10

2 3

206

 4

8 7 12 11911 10

205

10

3

10

250 249

191 192 193 194

1 2 3

4

5

LONGHORN
ACRES

911 12

8

10

9

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

13

1 2 3

9
8
7

6

5
4

2

4

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

AS
H

 P
AR

K 
AD

D
IT

IO
N

12

10

2
1

111213

7

6

7

1

6

7

1

6

7

6

1

1

7

6 1

7

1

102

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

101

21 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

119

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

120

21 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

100

32 4

67 5

 4

5

6

7

8

9 8

9

11

1

12

10

121
7 6 5

2 3 4

9

5

8

7

6

 4

8

11

9

1

12

10

12

12

146

1 2 3 5 4

1012 11 89

1 2 3 5 4

145

21 3  4 5 6

11 10 89 7

21 3  4 5 6

163
1012 11 89

1 2 3 5 4

164
11 10 89 7

21 3  4 5 6

7 6 5

2 3 4

2 3 4

144

9

5

8

7

6

5

 4

8

11

9

1

12

10

12

7 6 5

62 543 7

9

8

7

6

8

11

9

8

10
9

11

7 1

10

21
22
23
24

165

C
LO

SN
ER

 B
LV

D
.

12

12

 4 1

207

1012 11 89

208

11 10 89 7

233

2 3 4 5 6 7

91213 1110 8

14

1

22 20
212324

1

14

16

18
17

15

13

16
17

15

24
23
22
21
20 209

19
18

13 12 1011 891415171819

10
11

9
8

16

12

251252

7 8 9 10 11 12

189 19012 20 188

HOUSE
COURT

PARKING

2

1

5

3

4

6

7

9

8

10

11 12 13

31 2

5
4

6
7

8
9

1

3

WELLS SUBDIVISION
2 15 34679 81019 16

18

17 15 14 1213 11

22
21

20
13 24 25 26 27 2928 30 31 32 33 34 35

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

HIGHLAND PARK SUBDIVISION
1716

9 1112101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

9 1112101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

9 11 12101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

913 11 1012 8

14

16
15

21

1
24

22

20

18
17

19

23 2 4 63 5 7

753 64223

19

17
18

20

22

24
1

21

15
16

14

812 101113 9

11

56

7

6

99

1 2 3

12 10111112 10 9 8

21 3 5 4

98

7

6

1112 10

21 3

1112 10 9 8

21 3 5 4

123

11 10 9 8 7

2 3 5 4 6

97
10 9 8 7

3 5 4 6 1

96
12

11 10 9 8 7

2 3 5 4 6

124

1

10 9 8 7

3 5 4 6

125
12

7

6

6

1112 10

21 3

21 3

12 1011 9 8

1 2  43 5

1 2 3  4 5

142

7

6

1112 10

1 2 3 4 5 6

12 1011 9 8

1 2  43 5

167

81011 9 7

532  4 6

52 3  4 6

141

 43 5 6 1

1

140
12

81011 9 7

532  4 6

168

1

12

122

143

166

32 54
7

6

7 24 22 20
2123 19

12 1011 9 8

211

13141718
19 15

16

230

81011 9 7

212

10 89 7

213

 43 5 6

12

229228

10 9 8 7

 43 5 6

255

1 2 3 5 64

274

256257

 43 5 6

10 9 8 7

273272

 43 5 6

10 9 8 7

10 9 8 7

210

184
185 186 187

1112

21

1112

21

21

1112

21

1112

21

21

1112

21

1112

1112

23

6

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 11121087654321 10 12119

9 1112101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

87654321 10 12119

161718192021222324 131415

9 1112101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

9 1112101 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

15 14 1324 23 22 21 20 19 18 17 16

13

18
17
16
15
14

12
11
10
9
8
7

321 4 65

21
22

23
24

19
20

13

18
17
16
15
14

12
11
10
9
8
7

321 4 65

21
22

23
24

19
20

HOUSE
COURT
COUNTY
HIDALGO

12

12

12

12

12

12

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

LAS PALMAS

SHOPPING CENTER

1

12

10

9 8 7

5 4 6

1112 10

21 3

95

6 4 5

79 8

1 2 3

1012 11

126

6 4 51 2 3

214
79 8

6 4 5

1012 11

2 3

227

6 4 5

79 8

3

10

258

6 4 5

78

71011 9 8

1

27

28
31

32

1

20

2 3

17

16

13

8

12

9

21

262728 24

19

22

18

15

14

11

4

10

7

5

25

R
O

SE
LA

N
D

 P
AR

KS

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

1

C
H

AP
IN

 IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L 
PA

R
K

-05

85
.0

0
'

165.0 0'
85

.0
0

'
85

.0
0

'
85

.0
0

'
77

.0
0

'

115.00'

78
.0

0
'

13
0.

0
0'

80.00 '80.00 ' 80.00 ' 84.00 '
82.00 '

80
.0

0
'

80
.0

0
'

120.0 0'

80
.0

0
'

11
0.

00
'

305.0 0'

80
.0

0
'

83
.0

0
'

140.0 0'

16
8.

0
0'

88.00 ' 135.0 0'

14
0.

0
0'

67
.0

0
'

13
0.

0
0'

80.00 ' 85.00 '

14
0.

0
0'

165.0 0'

80.00 '85.31 '

84.00 '

13
0.

0
0'

13
0.

0
0'

153.0 0'

13
0.

0
0'

10
9.

0
3'

105.9 7'

16
5.

0
0'

75
.0

0
'

305.0 0'

165.0 0'

165.3 1'

85
.0

0
'

85
.0

0
'

80.00 '80.00 '

85
.0

0
'

85
.0

0
'

85
.0

0
'

78
.0

0
'

85.00 '

85.00 '

77
.0

0
'

80
.0

0
'

80
.0

0
'

80
.0

0
'

13
0.

0
0'

80.00 '80.00 '

11
5.

00
'

69.00 ' 67.00 '

12
5.

0
0'

16
5.

0
0'

15
0.

0
0'

245.0 0'

57
.0

0
'

100.0 0'

80
.0

0
'

52
.7

0
'

L8

L7

116.72'

85
.0

0
'

95.00 '

100.0 0'
33

.7
0

'

70.00 '

11
5.

00
'

70.31 '

11
5.

00
'

12
5.

0
0'

69.00 '

64
.2

5
'

56.36 '

14
4

.9
3

'

165.3 1'

165.3 1'

80
.0

0
'

80
.0

0
'

120.0 0'

120.0 0'

120.0 0'

140.0 0'

140.0 0'

115.00'

115.00'

115.00'

14
0.

0
0'

14
0.

0
0'

77.00 '77.00 '92.31 '

77.00 '77.00 '68.34 '

61
.2

6
'

85
.0

0
'

85
.0

0
'

85
.0

0
'

40

39

38

37

41

67

3

4

2

1

A

31

32

33

29

30

5
36

35 34

28

27

24 25232221201918

44 43 4245

49 5148

47 52

46 53

12

13

14

15

11

10

9
8

16

17

26

B

50

60
.0

0
'

60
.6

9
'

79
.0

0
'

130.8 4'

87
.5

6
'

25
.5

0
'

36
.0

4
'

134.7 4'

25
.0

6
'

54
.1

0
'

135.0 0'

117.59'

54
.7

0
'

52
.8

8
'

135.0 0'

135.0 0'

79
.0

0
'

79
.0

0
'

79
.0

0
'

79
.0

0
'

80.00 '82.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 '198.0 0' 82.00 ' 155.6 6'

16
7.

1
3'

37.65 '

13
5.

0
7'

29.35 '

11
0.

95
'

13
5.

0
8'

13
5.

0
9'

13
5.

1
0'

13
5.

1
0'

13
5.

11
'

11
0.

99
'

80.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 ' 80.00 '
29.35 '

115.49'

WEST O
AKS SUBD.

1

2

78

77

45

46

44

43

3 76 47 42

4 75 48 41

5 74 49 40

6 73 50 39

7 72 51 38

8 71 52 37

9 70 53 36

10 69 54 35

11 68 55 34

12 67 56 33

13 66 57 32

14 65 58 31

15 64 59 30

16 63 60 29

62 61 28
125 .00' 125 .00'

27

68
.8

2'
62

.0
0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

63
.8

2'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

120 .00'

10
1

.1
8'

10
0

.0
0'

63
.8

2'
62

.0
0'

125 .00'

110.0 0'

125 .00'

95.0 0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

53
.8

2'

53
.8

2'

50
.5

2'

50
.5

2'
76

.1
8'

110.0 0' 110.0 0'

95.0 0' 95.0 0' 95.0 0'

120 .00' 120 .00' 120 .00'

76
.1

8'

76
.1

8'

76
.1

8'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125.0 0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 62
.0

0'

125 .00'62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125.0 0' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125.0 0' 125 .00'62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125.0 0' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

125 .00' 125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

125 .00'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.0

0'

62
.2

0'

62
.2

0'

10
1

.1
8'

10
1

.1
8'

62
.2

0'

62
.2

0'

TH
E 

HI
LL

S 
AT

 C
H

AP
IN

 S
U

BD
.

TH
E 

HI
LL

S 
AT

 C
H

AP
IN

 II
 S

U
BD

.

13

18 19 20 21

12

11

10

8

9

6

7

4

5

3

1

2

48 47 22

49 46 23

50 45 24

51 44 25

52 43 26

53 42 27

54 41 28

55 40 29

56 39

3157 38

3258 37

3359 36

34

30

60 35

U P
A S

 D
R

E  S C H U N I O R  S T

E  V A N
W E E K  S T

E  L O V E T T  S T

E  K U H N  S T

E  M C I N T Y R E  S T

T E A K  D R

F I G  D R

E  W E L L S  S T

L O T T O  L N

N 
BU

SI
NE

S S
 H

I G
H

W
AY

 2
8 1

S C H A R L E T
O A K  D R

W  K U H N  S T

E  C H A P I N  S T

E  C H A V E Z  S T

W  C O O P E R  S T

W  P E T E R  S T

N 
14

TH
 A

VE

N 
CL

O
SN

ER
 B

LV
D

E  P E T E R  S T

N 
8T

H
 A

VE

E  L O E B  S T

N 
8T

H
 A

VE

N  
7 T

H
 A

V E

N 
9 T

H
 A

V E

N 
VE

TE
RA

N
S 

B
LV

D

W  L O V E T T  S T

N 
9T

H
 A

VE
N  

9 T
H

 A
V E

W  V A N  W E E K  S T

W  L O E B  S T

N 
15

TH
 A

VE

N 
13

TH
 A

VE

E  V A N  W E E K  S T

N 
16

TH
 A

VE

W  V A N  W E E K  S T

W  L O E B  S T

N 
7T

H
 A

VE

N 
17

TH
 A

VE

N 
19

TH
 A

VE

N  
1 0

T H
 A

V E

N  
1 2

T H
 A

V E

W  C H A P I N  S T

W  M C I N T Y R E  S T

W  S C H U N I O R  S T

W  U N I V E R S I T Y  D R

W  P E T E R  S T

W  K U H N  S T

E  S C H U N I O R  S T

W  C H A V E Z  S T

W  P E T E R  S T

BO
D

A
RK

 D
R

P I R U L  S T

ST
R

AW
B

ER
RY

 H
I L

L

D E
E R

 H
I L

L S

N 
1 4

T H
 P

L

N  
1 4

T H
 P

L

N  
6 T

H
 A

V E

E  C H A P I N  S T

®
1 in = 600 ft

SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
MEL PHILLIP / TREVINO ENGINEERING

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

300FT NOTIFICATION

CITY LIMITS









Rezoning Request Site Photo 
TREVIÑO ENGINEERING - MEL PHILLIP, TIDE PRODUCTS, INC. 

221 East Schunior Street 



   

 

City of Edinburg 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting:  February 8, 2022 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT AND REZONING REQUEST 

AGENDA ITEM 8F: 

Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from General Commercial Uses to Auto-Urban 

Uses and the Rezoning Request from Suburban Residential (S) District to Auto-Urban Residential 

(AU) District, a 6.87 acre tract of land, more or less, being a portion of Lot 15, Section 277, Texas-

Mexican Railway Company’s Survey, located at 4401 West Sprague Street, as requested by 

Realtex Development on behalf of BBB & J Investments, LTD 

DESCRIPTION / SCOPE:  

The property is located at the northeast corner of West Sprague Street and State Highway 336. The 

property consists of 6.87 acres and is currently vacant. The requested zoning designation is the 

primary residential district. It is intended to permit a wide range of residential uses and encourages 

a variety of housing types. The proposed use is for a multifamily residential development. 

The property is currently zoned Suburban Residential (S) District. The surrounding zoning is 

Commerical General (CG) District to the north, Urban Residential (UR) and Commercial 

Neighborhood (CN) Districts to the south, and Urban Residential (UR) District east. Area to the 

west of this property is outside the City Limits. Surrounding land uses are vacant land to the north, 

commercial and residential to the south, multifamily to the east, and light industrial uses to the 

west outside the City Limits. The future land use designation is for General Commercial Uses. 

Staff received a Zone Change Application for the subject property on January 11, 2022. The 

applicant indicated that the intended use is for a multifamily residential development. Preliminary 

plans call for 100 apartment units. Rezoning is required to accommodate the intended use. 

Staff mailed a notice of the public hearing before to 19 neighboring property owners and received 

no comments in favor and one against this request by the time this report was prepared.  

ESTIMATED TIMELINE:  
The recommendation of approval or denial of this public hearing is scheduled for consideration by 

the City Council on March 1, 2022. City Council’s decision is the final step in the zoning process 

for this property. If denied the applicant may not request the proposed zoning classification for a 

12 month period from the date of denial. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends approval of the Rezoning Request from Suburban Residential (S) District to 

Auto-Urban Residential (AU) District based on the adjacent zoning, land uses, and development 

trends in the area.  

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all requirements during the permitting process 

including compliance with subdivision regulations, building and fire codes, fire protection, 

parking, landscape buffer-yards, solid waste services, utility, and any other City requirements, as 

applicable.  



   

JUSTIFICATION:  

Staff recommendation is based on adjacent zoning and land uses. The proposed use is compatible 

with the adjacent multifamily residential uses. The proposed multifamily use is permitted in the 

requested zoning designation. 

 

D. Austin Colina Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  

Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning  

  



   

MEETING DATES:  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION – 2/08/2022 

CITY COUNCIL – 3/01/2022  

DATE PREPARED – 1/31/2022 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

APPLICATION: Comprehensive Plan Amendment from General Commercial Uses to 

Auto-Urban Uses and the Rezoning Request from Suburban 

Residential (S) District to Auto-Urban Residential (AU) District 

 

APPLICANT: BBB & J Investments, LTD 

 

AGENT: Realtex Development 

 

LEGAL: A 6.87 acre tract of land, more or less, being a portion of Lot 15, 

Section 277, Texas-Mexican Railway Company’s Survey 

 

LOCATION: 4401 West Sprague Street 

 

LOT/TRACT SIZE: 6.87 acres 

  

CURRENT USE: Vacant 

 

PROPOSED USE: Multifamily residential development 

 

EXISTING ZONING: Suburban Residential (S) District 

 

ADJACENT ZONING: North – Commercial General (CG) District 

 South – Urban Residential (UR) and Commercial Neighborhood 

(CN) Districts 

 East – Urban Residential (UR) District 

West – Outside City Limits 

 

LAND USE PLAN: General Commercial 

 

PUBLIC SERVICES: City of Edinburg Water and Sewer 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

from General Commercial Uses to Auto-Urban Uses and the Rezoning 

Request from Suburban Residential (S) District to Auto-Urban 

Residential (AU) District. 

 

  



   

REZONING REQUEST 

BBB & J INVESTMENTS, LTD 

 

 

EVALUATION 
 

The following is staff’s evaluation of the request.  

 

1. Zoning to the south and east of the subject property allows for multifamily residential 

uses 

 

2. The land use pattern for this area of the community consists of largely of multifamily 

residential uses, with some light commercial and industrial uses and considerable areas 

of vacant land. 

 

2. The applicant is requesting the change of zone to construct a multifamily residential 

development.  

 

Staff recommends approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from General Commercial 

Uses to Auto-Urban Uses and the Rezoning Request from Suburban Residential (S) District to 

Auto-Urban Residential (AU) District based on the adjacent zoning and land uses. The proposed 

use is compatible with the adjacent multifamily residential uses. The proposed use should not 

create a conflict with other existing uses in the area. The proposed use is not in keeping with the 

Future Land Use Plan which anticipated General Commercial Use for this location. 

 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all requirements during the permitting process 

including compliance with subdivision regulations, building and fire codes, fire protection, 

parking, landscape buffer-yards, solid waste services, utility, and any other City requirements, as 

applicable.  
 

Staff mailed a notice of the public hearing before to 19 neighboring property owners and received 

no comments in favor and one against this request by the time this report was prepared. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Aerial Photo 

 Site Map 

 Zoning Map 

 Future Land Use Map  

 Photo of site  

 Exhibits  



YA L E
AV E

H A W T H O R N E  A V E

W  S P R A G U E  S T

O R A  S T

L U L A
S T

IM
A 

STSA
K

E R
 S

T

M
A

LT
ES

E 
ST

S E
G

U
L A

AV
E

T I N S L E Y
A V E

G A R F I E L D
A V E

Q
U

A
M

A
SI

A
AV

E

SE
G

U
LA

AV
E

W  L A  G U A R D I A  L N

DF
W

 D
R

LO
G

A
N

 D
R

O
 H

A
R

E 
D

R

P E
A

B
O

D
Y  

AV
E

S 
ST

AT
E 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 3

36

L U L A  S T

W  S TA T E  H I G H W AY  1 0 7
W  S TA T E  H I G H W AY  1 0 7

S P R A G U E  S T

N 
10

TH
 S

T

®
1 in = 500 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
REALTEX DEVELOPMENT / BBB & J INVESTMENTS, LTD

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

CITY LIMITS



0001-10

T2100-00-278-0002-

-04

-08 -07 -05-01-01

Texas -Me xican  Railwa y Com pan y Sur vey
acre  tra ct o ut o f Lo t 2,  Sectio n 27 8,

Elvin  Gala rza

C.O.C NO . 08 -0 5-0 1

2.0 acre  be ing a  pr otio n of  a ce rta in 3 .0
421 0 West  Spra gue  Stre et

T2100-00-278-0001-

-07

-04

-24

-22

-30

-18

-17

-16
-15

-14

-13

-12
-11

-10

-09

-08

-05-03

-02

-01
-00

-05

LOMAS Y LAGOS SUBD.LOT 2

LOT 3

-14 -01

-00

-06

SECTION 1

S.H. 107

SUBD.

SPRAGUE LANDING

54

53

52

51

50

49

48 47

46

45

44

43

42

41 40

39

38

37

36

35

34
33

32

31

30

29

28

27 26

25

24

23

22

21

20

19181716151413121110
9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

71
70

69

68

67

66
65 64

2726
25

24

23

22

21
20 19 18

PH. 1

20LA
S

18

192

1

-00

-12

-11

-0
1

-0
5

23

22

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

15 14 13 12 11 10 9
8 7

21 SECTION 2

21

8584

70

71
72

86

87

88

89

90

21

22

8382818079787776757473

6

7

8

65

66

67

68

69

5

126 125 124 123 122 121 120 119 118 117 116 115

103 104 105 106 107 108 109 110 111 112 113 114

102 101 100 99 98 97 96 95 94 93 92 91

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

64 63 62

21

CIRCLE K No. 9132

O
U

TL
O

T 
A

16151413121110987654321

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 1

6789101112131415

6789101112131415
16

17

18

19

20

654321

1 2 3 4 5 6

12 11 10 9 8 7

654321

29

28

27

26

25

24

21

20

19

1815

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

1

8

2 3 4 5

6

7

8

9
26

27

28

49

50

2

15

10

1
82

1

51

5265

6667

68

EXPRESS

CHILI PEPPER

24

22

1716

PA
LM

 E
S

TA
TE

S 
S

/D

2

1

3

4

5

4

5

BRANDY ESTATES

SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

TR
I-T

E
C

H

LO
T 

1

N
U

R
SE

R
Y

BA
R

R
IO

S

6

8

7

TRIPLE "B" MOBILE PARK II

RACQUET CLUB

SUBDIVISION

TRIPLE "B" MOBILE PARK

12

13

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

70

69

68

67

66

65

64

63

61

62

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

80

79

90

89

88

87

86

85

84

83

81

82

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

101

100

91

106105104103102

MON M
ACK LA

NDIN
G

SUBDIVISIO
N

22

23

97
.3

3'

63.00' 51.04'

124.49'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

53
.0

0'

15
4.

28
'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

15
4.

39
'

74.00'156.09' 74.00' 74.00' 155.91'

125.09'

115.00'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

E

35.44' 35
.27

' 193.58'

78
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

74
.0

0'
40

.3
3'

15
4.

67
'

74.00'13.98' 13.97'

53.00' 74.00'

154.80'

10
0.

00
'

10
0.

00
'

10
0.

00
'

10
0.

00
'

D
C
B
A

1

2

3

4

5

6

7
8 9 10 12

13

14

15

16

17

18
192021

11

35
.6

7'

18
0.9

0'

181.73'11
3.

09
'

13
7.

33
'

13
7.

33
'

11
3.

13
'

115.65'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

115.63'

18
1.21'

12
1.

15
'

13
7.

33
'

115.55'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

198.70'

198.70'

198.70'

198.70'

52
.5

0'
30

.0
0'

30
.0

0'
30

.0
0'

52
.5

0'

52
.5

0'
30

.0
0'

30
.0

0'
30

.0
0'

52
.5

0'

SPRAGUE

GARDENS

147146145144143

158159160161162163

184 185182 183180 181178 179177176175174173172

170171 169 168 167 166 165 164

136135 137 138 139 140 141 142

134 133 132 131 130 129 128 127 126 125 124 123 122 121

SPRAGUE VILLAGE

SUBDIVISION

YA L E
AV E

H A W T H O R N E  A V E

W  S P R A G U E  S T

O R A  S T

L U L A
S T

IM
A 

STSA
K

E R
 S

T

M
A

LT
ES

E 
ST

S E
G

U
L A

AV
E

T I N S L E Y
A V E

G A R F I E L D
A V E

Q
U

A
M

A
SI

A
AV

E

SE
G

U
LA

AV
E

W  L A  G U A R D I A  L N

DF
W

 D
R

LO
G

A
N

 D
R

O
 H

A
R

E 
D

R

P E
A

B
O

D
Y  

AV
E

S 
ST

AT
E 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 3

36

L U L A  S T

W  S TA T E  H I G H W AY  1 0 7
W  S TA T E  H I G H W AY  1 0 7

S P R A G U E  S T

N 
10

TH
 S

T

®
1 in = 500 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
REALTEX DEVELOPMENT / BBB & J INVESTMENTS, LTD

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE

AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL

COMMERCIAL, GENERAL

COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD

DOWNTOWN DISTRICT

INDUSTRIAL

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH

SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL

URBAN RESIDENTIAL

URBAN UNIVERSITY

CITY LIMITS



0001-10

T2100-00-278-0002-

-04

-08 -07 -05-01-01

Texas -Me xican  Railwa y Com pan y Sur vey
acre  tra ct o ut o f Lo t 2,  Sectio n 27 8,

Elvin  Gala rza

C.O.C NO . 08 -0 5-0 1

2.0 acre  be ing a  pr otio n of  a ce rta in 3 .0
421 0 West  Spra gue  Stre et

T2100-00-278-0001-

-07

-04

-24

-22

-30

-18

-17

-16
-15

-14

-13

-12
-11

-10

-09

-08

-05-03

-02

-01
-00

-05

LOMAS Y LAGOS SUBD.LOT 2

LOT 3

-14 -01

-00

-06

SECTION 1

S.H. 107

SUBD.

SPRAGUE LANDING

54

53

52

51

50

49

48 47

46

45

44

43

42

41 40

39

38

37

36

35

34
33

32

31

30

29

28

27 26

25

24

23

22

21

20

19181716151413121110
9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

71
70

69

68

67

66
65 64

2726
25

24

23

22

21
20 19 18

PH. 1

20LA
S

18

192

1

-00

-12

-11

-0
1

-0
5

23

22

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

15 14 13 12 11 10 9
8 7

21 SECTION 2

21

8584

70

71
72

86

87

88

89

90

21

22

8382818079787776757473

6

7

8

65

66

67

68

69

5

126 125 124 123 122 121 120 119 118 117 116 115

103 104 105 106 107 108 109 110 111 112 113 114

102 101 100 99 98 97 96 95 94 93 92 91

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

64 63 62

21

CIRCLE K No. 9132

O
U

TL
O

T 
A

16151413121110987654321

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 1

6789101112131415

6789101112131415
16

17

18

19

20

654321

1 2 3 4 5 6

12 11 10 9 8 7

654321

29

28

27

26

25

24

21

20

19

1815

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

1

8

2 3 4 5

6

7

8

9
26

27

28

49

50

2

15

10

1
82

1

51

5265

6667

68

EXPRESS

CHILI PEPPER

24

22

1716

PA
LM

 E
S

TA
TE

S 
S

/D

2

1

3

4

5

4

5

BRANDY ESTATES

SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

TR
I-T

E
C

H

LO
T 

1

N
U

R
SE

R
Y

BA
R

R
IO

S

6

8

7

TRIPLE "B" MOBILE PARK II

RACQUET CLUB

SUBDIVISION

TRIPLE "B" MOBILE PARK

12

13

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

70

69

68

67

66

65

64

63

61

62

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

80

79

90

89

88

87

86

85

84

83

81

82

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

101

100

91

106105104103102

MON M
ACK LA

NDIN
G

SUBDIVISIO
N

22

23

97
.3

3'

63.00' 51.04'

124.49'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

53
.0

0'

15
4.

28
'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

15
4.

39
'

74.00'156.09' 74.00' 74.00' 155.91'

125.09'

115.00'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

E

35.44' 35
.27

' 193.58'

78
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

74
.0

0'
40

.3
3'

15
4.

67
'

74.00'13.98' 13.97'

53.00' 74.00'

154.80'

10
0.

00
'

10
0.

00
'

10
0.

00
'

10
0.

00
'

D
C
B
A

1

2

3

4

5

6

7
8 9 10 12

13

14

15

16

17

18
192021

11

35
.6

7'

18
0.9

0'

181.73'11
3.

09
'

13
7.

33
'

13
7.

33
'

11
3.

13
'

115.65'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

115.63'

18
1.21'

12
1.

15
'

13
7.

33
'

115.55'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

198.70'

198.70'

198.70'

198.70'

52
.5

0'
30

.0
0'

30
.0

0'
30

.0
0'

52
.5

0'

52
.5

0'
30

.0
0'

30
.0

0'
30

.0
0'

52
.5

0'

SPRAGUE

GARDENS

147146145144143

158159160161162163

184 185182 183180 181178 179177176175174173172

170171 169 168 167 166 165 164

136135 137 138 139 140 141 142

134 133 132 131 130 129 128 127 126 125 124 123 122 121

SPRAGUE VILLAGE

SUBDIVISION

YA L E
AV E

H A W T H O R N E  A V E

W  S P R A G U E  S T

O R A  S T

L U L A
S T

IM
A 

STSA
K

E R
 S

T

M
A

LT
ES

E 
ST

S E
G

U
L A

AV
E

T I N S L E Y
A V E

G A R F I E L D
A V E

Q
U

A
M

A
SI

A
AV

E

SE
G

U
LA

AV
E

W  L A  G U A R D I A  L N

DF
W

 D
R

LO
G

A
N

 D
R

O
 H

A
R

E 
D

R

P E
A

B
O

D
Y  

AV
E

S 
ST

AT
E 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 3

36

L U L A  S T

W  S TA T E  H I G H W AY  1 0 7
W  S TA T E  H I G H W AY  1 0 7

S P R A G U E  S T

N 
10

TH
 S

T

®
1 in = 500 ft

FUTURE LANDUSE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
REALTEX DEVELOPMENT / BBB & J INVESTMENTS, LTD

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISON SITE

FUTURE LANDUSE
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
GENERAL COMMERCIAL
INDUSTRIAL
MOBILE HOME
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL
OFFICE BUSINESS PARK
SUBURBAN
URBAN
URBAN UNIVERSITY

CITY LIMITS



0001-10

T2100-00-278-0002-

-04

-08 -07 -05-01-01

Texas -Me xican  Railwa y Com pan y Sur vey
acre  tra ct o ut o f Lo t 2,  Sectio n 27 8,

Elvin  Gala rza

C.O.C NO . 08 -0 5-0 1

2.0 acre  be ing a  pr otio n of  a ce rta in 3 .0
421 0 West  Spra gue  Stre et

T2100-00-278-0001-

-07

-04

-24

-22

-30

-18

-17

-16
-15

-14

-13

-12
-11

-10

-09

-08

-05-03

-02

-01
-00

-05

LOMAS Y LAGOS SUBD.LOT 2

LOT 3

-14 -01

-00

-06

SECTION 1

S.H. 107

SUBD.

SPRAGUE LANDING

54

53

52

51

50

49

48 47

46

45

44

43

42

41 40

39

38

37

36

35

34
33

32

31

30

29

28

27 26

25

24

23

22

21

20

19181716151413121110
9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

71
70

69

68

67

66
65 64

2726
25

24

23

22

21
20 19 18

PH. 1

20LA
S

18

192

1

-00

-12

-11

-0
1

-0
5

23

22

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

15 14 13 12 11 10 9
8 7

21 SECTION 2

21

8584

70

71
72

86

87

88

89

90

21

22

8382818079787776757473

6

7

8

65

66

67

68

69

5

126 125 124 123 122 121 120 119 118 117 116 115

103 104 105 106 107 108 109 110 111 112 113 114

102 101 100 99 98 97 96 95 94 93 92 91

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

64 63 62

21

CIRCLE K No. 9132

O
U

TL
O

T 
A

16151413121110987654321

BLOCK 2

BLOCK 1

6789101112131415

6789101112131415
16

17

18

19

20

654321

1 2 3 4 5 6

12 11 10 9 8 7

654321

29

28

27

26

25

24

21

20

19

1815

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

1

8

2 3 4 5

6

7

8

9
26

27

28

49

50

2

15

10

1
82

1

51

5265

6667

68

EXPRESS

CHILI PEPPER

24

22

1716

PA
LM

 E
S

TA
TE

S 
S

/D

2

1

3

4

5

4

5

BRANDY ESTATES

SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

TR
I-T

E
C

H

LO
T 

1

N
U

R
SE

R
Y

BA
R

R
IO

S

6

8

7

TRIPLE "B" MOBILE PARK II

RACQUET CLUB

SUBDIVISION

TRIPLE "B" MOBILE PARK

12

13

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

70

69

68

67

66

65

64

63

61

62

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

80

79

90

89

88

87

86

85

84

83

81

82

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

101

100

91

106105104103102

MON M
ACK LA

NDIN
G

SUBDIVISIO
N

22

23

97
.3

3'

63.00' 51.04'

124.49'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

53
.0

0'

15
4.

28
'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

15
4.

39
'

74.00'156.09' 74.00' 74.00' 155.91'

125.09'

115.00'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

E

35.44' 35
.27

' 193.58'

78
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

74
.0

0'
74

.0
0'

74
.0

0'
40

.3
3'

15
4.

67
'

74.00'13.98' 13.97'

53.00' 74.00'

154.80'

10
0.

00
'

10
0.

00
'

10
0.

00
'

10
0.

00
'

D
C
B
A

1

2

3

4

5

6

7
8 9 10 12

13

14

15

16

17

18
192021

11

35
.6

7'

18
0.9

0'

181.73'11
3.

09
'

13
7.

33
'

13
7.

33
'

11
3.

13
'

115.65'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

115.63'

18
1.21'

12
1.

15
'

13
7.

33
'

115.55'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

140.00'

198.70'

198.70'

198.70'

198.70'

52
.5

0'
30

.0
0'

30
.0

0'
30

.0
0'

52
.5

0'

52
.5

0'
30

.0
0'

30
.0

0'
30

.0
0'

52
.5

0'

SPRAGUE

GARDENS

147146145144143

158159160161162163

184 185182 183180 181178 179177176175174173172

170171 169 168 167 166 165 164

136135 137 138 139 140 141 142

134 133 132 131 130 129 128 127 126 125 124 123 122 121

SPRAGUE VILLAGE

SUBDIVISION

YA L E
AV E

H A W T H O R N E  A V E

W  S P R A G U E  S T

O R A  S T

L U L A
S T

IM
A 

STSA
K

E R
 S

T

M
A

LT
ES

E 
ST

S E
G

U
L A

AV
E

T I N S L E Y
A V E

G A R F I E L D
A V E

Q
U

A
M

A
SI

A
AV

E

SE
G

U
LA

AV
E

W  L A  G U A R D I A  L N

DF
W

 D
R

LO
G

A
N

 D
R

O
 H

A
R

E 
D

R

P E
A

B
O

D
Y  

AV
E

S 
ST

AT
E 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 3

36

L U L A  S T

W  S TA T E  H I G H W AY  1 0 7
W  S TA T E  H I G H W AY  1 0 7

S P R A G U E  S T

N 
10

TH
 S

T

®
1 in = 500 ft

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
REALTEX DEVELOPMENT / BBB & J INVESTMENTS, LTD

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

300FT NOTIFICATION

CITY LIMITS











Rezoning Request Site Photo 
REALTEX DEVELOPMENT - BBB & J INVETSTMENTS, LTD 

4401 West Sprague Street 



OVER THE RIO APARTMENTS

A PROPOSED SENIOR DEVELOPMENT IN EDINBURG, TEXAS

1114 Lost Creek Blvd., Suite G20, 
Austin, Texas 78746
P(512) 306-9206 | F (512) 306-9010

LEADERS IN THE CREATION OF HIGH-QUALITY

APARTMENT COMMUNITIES



TABLE OF CONTENTS

 Corporate Profile – Realtex Development Corporation

 Texas Housing Tax Credit Program Requirements

 Over The Rio Apartments - Development Summary & Amenities

 Site Location Map & Preliminary Site Plan

 Recommendations



 Realtex Development Corporation (“Realtex”) was founded in 1998

 Fully integrated advocate for affordable and market rate housing:
 Development

 Construction

 Property Management

 Asset Management

 Nationally awarded and recognized company

 Luxury apartment homes with superior amenities at affordable rental rates

 Vast Experience

 National relationships with State and Federal Housing agencies, non-profit organizations, and leaders in finance

 Extensive familiarity with income and affordability requirements

 Firmly established relationships with the nation’s largest debt and equity providers for market rate and affordable housing

 Dedicated team of experienced professionals knowledgeable of planning and development guidelines, city codes, and rules and 

regulations

 Affordable communities are completely esthetically indistinguishable in comparison to our market rate luxury communities

 Principals possess a combined experience of over 70 years in the real estate industry

 Successful experience with sustainable green building.

REALTEX DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

CORPORATE PROFILE



REALTEX DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

RECENT COMPLETED DEVELOPMENTS

Year Name Location Units MF/SR TC/MR

2021 The Enchanted Gardens Victoria, TX 168 Family TC

2020 Gulf Shore Villas Rockport, TX 56 Family TC

2019 Villas at Pine Grove Lufkin, TX 68 Senior TC

2017 Legacy at Southpark Austin, TX 250 Family MR

2017 The Cosmopolitan Corpus Christi, TX 165 Family MR

2016 Emma Finke Villas Beeville, TX 76 Family TC

2016 Windy Ridge Apts Austin, TX 120 Family TC

2015 Pine Lake Estates Nacogdoches, TX 100 Senior TC

2015 Estates at Ellington Houston, TX 72 Family TC

2013 La Joya Villages Lake Worth, FL 55 Family TC

2013 Campbell Landings St. Petersburg, FL 96 Senior TC

2012 Heartland Village Sulphur Sprgs, TX 80 Family TC

2012 Franklin Place Waco, TX 63 Family MR

2011 Amber Stone Apts Beeville, TX 54 Family TC



TAX CREDIT APPLICATION

 Texas Department of Housing & Community Affairs (“TDHCA”) administers the affordable 

housing tax credit program for the State of Texas.

 A pre-application for this development was submitted January 7th, 2022 

 The proposed score is competitive with other applicants in this region and will be moving 

forward to submit a full application in March 2022

 Two significant scoring items per TDHCA’s Qualified Allocation Plan (“QAP”), Realtex 

requests: 

 Resolution of Support from the Edinburg City Council along with Commitment of no more than 

$500 cash or fee waivers

 Official TDHCA board approval of 2022 Tax Credits is July 2022



Location: 10900 N. 10th Street, Edinburg, Texas

Site Size: +/- 6.87 acres

Development Cost: Approximately $21.97 Million

Property Type: 100-unit new construction mixed income development

Buildings: 5 Residential Buildings and 1 Clubhouse

Target Population: Seniors age 55 years and older

Density: Approximately 14.56 units per acre

THE VENETIAN VILLAS

THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT



 Energy-star or equivalently rated appliances including 
frost-free Refrigerator's w/ Icemaker and Dishwasher 

 Phone and Cable TV Access: RG-6 COAX or better and 
CAT5 phone cables or better, wired to each bedroom, 
dining and living room 

 Built in Microwave 

 Oven with Range Top 

 Faux Wood, Carpet and/ or Tile Flooring 

 Granite Countertops in Kitchen 

 Island Kitchen Arrangements 

 Energy-Star or equivalently rated efficient ceiling fans in 
living areas and bedrooms 

 Energy-Star or equivalently rated efficient lighting fixtures 
in all units (may include compact florescent bulbs) 

 Insulation: R-15 Walls/R-30 Ceilings 

 Washer/Dryer Connections in Every Unit 

 Font Porches and Covered Entries into Every Unit 

 Covered Patios 

 Walk in Closets in Every Bedroom 

UNIT FEATURES:

OVER THE RIO APARTMENTS

THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT



PROPERTY FEATURES:
 Clubhouse Facility – Fully Furnished 

 Community and Activities Room – Fully Furnished 

 Fitness Center – Fully Furnished 

 Business Center / Library – Fully Furnished 

 Completely Gated and Fenced Community 

 Resort-Style Swimming Pool 

 Covered Parking Available 

 Gazebo’s with Seating Areas 

 Barbecue Grills & Picnic Tables 

 Fenced Dog Park 

 Garden Area 

 Green Feature Amenities 

 Onsite walking paths 

 Arranged Transportation 

 Onsite Activities Director 

OVER THE RIO APARTMENTS

THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT



OVER THE RIO APARTMENTS

TYPICAL BUILDING ELEVATION & PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN



OVER THE RIO APARTMENTS

SITE LOCATION MAP



RECOMMENDATION

 City Council approve the Resolution of Support for Over The Rio Apartments– a 

competitive housing tax credit application. 

 City Council provides a commitment of no more than $500 cash or fee waivers 

contributed to this proposed project.



   

City of Edinburg 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting:  February 8, 2022 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT AND REZONING REQUEST 

AGENDA ITEM 8G: 

Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Industrial Uses to General Commercial Uses 

and the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) District to Commercial General (CG) District, 

15.336 acres out of Lot 1, Section 244, Texas-Mexican Railway Company’s Survey, located at 

500 East Monte Cristo Road, as requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc. on behalf of Garman 

Investments, LP 

DESCRIPTION / SCOPE:  

The property is located on the south side of East Monte Cristo Road, approximately 1,225 ft. east 

of North Closner Boulevard. The tract consists of 15.336 and is vacant. The requested zoning 

designation is the primary commercial district and allows for a wide range of commercial uses on 

the subject property. The applicant is requesting the change of zone to accommodate a proposed 

self-service storage business and laundromat. 

The property is currently zoned Agriculture (AG) District. The surrounding zoning is Industrial (I) 

District to the north, Auto Urban (AU) District to the south, and Industrial (I) and Commercial 

General (CG) Districts to the east and west. Adjacent land uses consist of industrial uses to the 

north, residential uses and vacant land to the south, and industrial uses and vacant land to the east 

and west. 

Staff received a revised Zone Change Application for the subject property on January 26, 2021. 

The applicant originally intended multifamily use at the subject property. This rezoning request 

was tabled by the Planning and Zoning Board on January 17, 2022. Subsequently, the developer 

is now proposing commercial uses. No subdivision plat or site plan had been received at the time 

this report was prepared. 

Staff mailed a notice of the public hearing before to 14 neighboring property owners and received 

no comments in favor or against this request by the time this report was prepared.  

ESTIMATED TIMELINE:  
The recommendation of approval or denial of this public hearing is scheduled for consideration by 

the City Council on March 1, 2022. City Council’s decision is the final step in the zoning process 

for this property. If denied the applicant may not request the proposed zoning classification for a 

12 month period from the date of denial. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends approval of the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) District to 

Commercial General (CG) District. There are existing commercial uses to the west of the industrial 

uses adjacent to the subject property. The requested zoning does not conform to the City’s Future 

Land Use Plan that anticipated industrial uses at this location. 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all requirements during the permitting process 



   

including compliance with subdivision regulations, building and fire codes, fire protection, 

parking, landscape buffer-yards, solid waste services, utility, and any other City requirements, as 

applicable.  

JUSTIFICATION:  

Staff recommendation is based on existing land uses in the area. 

 

D. Austin Colina Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA  

Planner I Director of Planning & Zoning  

  



   

MEETING DATES:  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION – 2/08/2022 

CITY COUNCIL – 3/01/2022  

DATE PREPARED – 1/27/2022 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

APPLICATION: Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Industrial Uses to General 

Commercial Uses and the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) 

District to Commercial General (CG) District 

 

APPLICANT: Garman Investments, LP 

 

AGENT: Melden & Hunt, Inc. 

 

LEGAL: 15.336 acres out of Lot 1, Section 244, Texas-Mexican Railway 

Company’s Survey 

 

LOCATION: 500 East Monte Cristo Road 

 

LOT/TRACT SIZE: 15.336 acres 

  

CURRENT USE: Vacant 

 

PROPOSED USE: Commercial 

 

EXISTING ZONING: Agriculture (AG) District 

 

ADJACENT ZONING: North – Industrial (I) District 

South – Auto Urban (AU) District 

East – Industrial (I) and Commercial General (CG) Districts 

West – Industrial (I) and Commercial General (CG) Districts 

 

LAND USE PLAN: Industrial 

 

PUBLIC SERVICES: North Alamo Water & City of Edinburg Sewer 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Industrial Uses to General 

Commercial Uses and the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) 

District to Commercial General (CG) District 

 

  



   

REZONING REQUEST 

MELDEN & HUNT – GARMAN INVESTMENTS, LP 

 

EVALUATION 
 

The following is staff’s evaluation of the request.  

 

1. The land use at this location is vacant. 

 

2. The applicant is requesting the change of zone to construct a self-service storage facility 

and laundromat. 

 

3. Adjacent and uses to the north, east, and west of this location are industrial in nature. 

 

4. Land uses further west and west are more commercial in nature.  

 

Staff recommends approval of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Industrial Uses to 

General Commercial Uses and the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) District to 

Commercial General (CG) District. The proposed use is sufficiently compatible with surrounding 

uses.  

 

If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all requirements during the permitting process 

including compliance with subdivision regulations, building and fire codes, fire protection, 

parking, landscape buffer-yards, solid waste services, utility, and any other City requirements, as 

applicable.  
 

Staff mailed a notice of the public hearing before to 14 neighboring property owners and received 

no comments in favor or against this request by the time this report was prepared. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Aerial Photo 

 Site Map 

 Zoning Map 

 Future Land Use Map  

 Photo of site  

 Exhibits  



S T
O

N
E C

R
E

S T

S T
O

N
E V

I E
W

S T

S T O
N E V I E W

S T O N E H I L L

K E Y S T O N E  S T

N  B
U S I N

E S S  H
I G

H W AY  2 8 1
N  F R O

N T A G
E  R D

ST
O

N
EV

IE
W

 S
T

S A
N

D
S T

O
N

E
S T

N
 F R

O
N

T A
G

E  R
D

W  R O G E R S  R D

B U R N S  B L V D

N
 R

O
EG

IE
R

S
 R

D

E  R O G E R S  R D

W  M O N T E  C R I S T O  R D

N
 B

U
S I

N
E S

S  
H

I G
H

W
AY

 2
8 1

M
O

N T E  C R
I S T O

 R
D  E X I T

E  M O N T E  C R I S T O  R D

C U L L E N  S T

N  A C C E S S  R D

G L A S S C O C K  A V E

R
O

G
ER

S  
R

D
 E

X I
T

E  R O G E R S  R D

N
 I - 6 9 C

N
 I - 6 9 C

®
1 in = 544 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
MELDEN AND HUNT / MONTE CRISTO DEVELOPMENT

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

CITY LIMITS



LOT 5B

Te x as -M ex ic an R ai lw ay  C om pa ny  Su rv ey s

Eric a E di th  A lonz o

C.O .C  N O . 0 8-06- 03

Lot 11 and  1.77 ac  o f Lot 12

12
9

T2
10

0-
00

-2
44

-0
01

0- OUT PARCEL "A"LOT 5A

LOT 4

LOT 3

LOT 1

8-
04 8-

11

8-
02

7-02
7-04

7-03

7-18

7-00

7-
01

S1600-00-001-0007-05

8-09

8-068-07

-03

-06

-05

-04

-01

-00

-00

-03

-01

-04

-09

-15

ROGERS RD.

-06 -10

-04

6

5

LA
 S

IE
NN

A 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T

-05

-04 -06

-01

-00
-04

-11
-10

-08
-06

-05

-04

-03

-02
-01-00

-17

-20

-18

-00

-02

0006-12

R
O

EG
IE

R
S 

R
D

.

SUBDIVISION

FELIX CHAVEZ JR.
21

PL
AZ

A 
SU

BD
.

JU
NI

O
R'

S 
BU

SI
NE

SS
 

4

1

2

3

FLYING "J" TRAVEL PLAZA

SUBDIVISION

LOT 2

T2100-00-243-0004-

T2100-00-243-0005-

T2100-00-244-0001-T2100-00-244-0002-

T2100-00-244-0008-

T2100-00-244-0010-

-04-06

-12

-15

-07

-02

-04

-14

-13

-12

-04

-04

-03

-05
-00

-03

U
.S

. H
W

Y.
 2

81
 E

XP
W

Y.

10

9

8

7

6

5

1

4

3

2

STONECREST

424140 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9

10

39

38

37 43 54 55 66 67 78

36 5344 77686556 11

35 5245 76696457 12

34 5146 75706358 13

33 5047 74716259 14

32 4948 73726160 15

31

30 18 17

16

1920212223242526272829

H
G

22

21

20

191817

23

16

24

15

25

14

26

13

27

12

28

11

29

10

30

9

31

8

32

7

33

6

34

5

35

1

2

3

4

GLASSCOCK SUBD.

D & D
SUBD

5

4
1

8

1 2 3 4

GATEWAY INDUSTRIAL
SUBDIVISION

10

2

6

3

-01

1A

ARGUIN
DEGUI

COMMERCIAL

SUBD.

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

S T
O

N
E C

R
E

S T

S T
O

N
E V

I E
W

S T

S T O
N E V I E W

S T O N E H I L L

K E Y S T O N E  S T

N  B
U S I N

E S S  H
I G

H W AY  2 8 1
N  F R O

N T A G
E  R D

ST
O

N
EV

IE
W

 S
T

S A
N

D
S T

O
N

E
S T

N
 F R

O
N

T A
G

E  R
D

W  R O G E R S  R D

B U R N S  B L V D

N
 R

O
EG

IE
R

S
 R

D

E  R O G E R S  R D

W  M O N T E  C R I S T O  R D

N
 B

U
S I

N
E S

S  
H

I G
H

W
AY

 2
8 1

M
O

N T E  C R
I S T O

 R
D  E X I T

E  M O N T E  C R I S T O  R D

C U L L E N  S T

N  A C C E S S  R D

G L A S S C O C K  A V E

R
O

G
ER

S  
R

D
 E

X I
T

E  R O G E R S  R D

N
 I - 6 9 C

N
 I - 6 9 C

®
1 in = 544 ft

ZONING MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
MELDEN AND HUNT / MONTE CRISTO DEVELOPMENT

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE

AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL

COMMERCIAL, GENERAL

COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD

DOWNTOWN DISTRICT

INDUSTRIAL

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1

NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH

SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL

URBAN RESIDENTIAL

URBAN UNIVERSITY

CITY LIMITS



LOT 5B

Te x as -M ex ic an R ai lw ay  C om pa ny  Su rv ey s

Eric a E di th  A lonz o

C.O .C  N O . 0 8-06- 03

Lot 11 and  1.77 ac  o f Lot 12

12
9

T2
10

0-
00

-2
44

-0
01

0- OUT PARCEL "A"LOT 5A

LOT 4

LOT 3

LOT 1

8-
04 8-

11

8-
02

7-02
7-04

7-03

7-18

7-00

7-
01

S1600-00-001-0007-05

8-09

8-068-07

-03

-06

-05

-04

-01

-00

-00

-03

-01

-04

-09

-15

ROGERS RD.

-06 -10

-04

6

5

LA
 S

IE
NN

A 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T

-05

-04 -06

-01

-00
-04

-11
-10

-08
-06

-05

-04

-03

-02
-01-00

-17

-20

-18

-00

-02

0006-12

R
O

EG
IE

R
S 

R
D

.

SUBDIVISION

FELIX CHAVEZ JR.
21

PL
AZ

A 
SU

BD
.

JU
NI

O
R'

S 
BU

SI
NE

SS
 

4

1

2

3

FLYING "J" TRAVEL PLAZA

SUBDIVISION

LOT 2

T2100-00-243-0004-

T2100-00-243-0005-

T2100-00-244-0001-T2100-00-244-0002-

T2100-00-244-0008-

T2100-00-244-0010-

-04-06

-12

-15

-07

-02

-04

-14

-13

-12

-04

-04

-03

-05
-00

-03

U
.S

. H
W

Y.
 2

81
 E

XP
W

Y.

10

9

8

7

6

5

1

4

3

2

STONECREST

424140 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9

10

39

38

37 43 54 55 66 67 78

36 5344 77686556 11

35 5245 76696457 12

34 5146 75706358 13

33 5047 74716259 14

32 4948 73726160 15

31

30 18 17

16

1920212223242526272829

H
G

22

21

20

191817

23

16

24

15

25

14

26

13

27

12

28

11

29

10

30

9

31

8

32

7

33

6

34

5

35

1

2

3

4

GLASSCOCK SUBD.

D & D
SUBD

5

4
1

8

1 2 3 4

GATEWAY INDUSTRIAL
SUBDIVISION

10

2

6

3

-01

1A

ARGUIN
DEGUI

COMMERCIAL

SUBD.

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

S T
O

N
E C

R
E

S T

S T
O

N
E V

I E
W

S T

S T O
N E V I E W

S T O N E H I L L

K E Y S T O N E  S T

N  B
U S I N

E S S  H
I G

H W AY  2 8 1
N  F R O

N T A G
E  R D

ST
O

N
EV

IE
W

 S
T

S A
N

D
S T

O
N

E
S T

N
 F R

O
N

T A
G

E  R
D

W  R O G E R S  R D

B U R N S  B L V D

N
 R

O
EG

IE
R

S
 R

D

E  R O G E R S  R D

W  M O N T E  C R I S T O  R D

N
 B

U
S I

N
E S

S  
H

I G
H

W
AY

 2
8 1

M
O

N T E  C R
I S T O

 R
D  E X I T

E  M O N T E  C R I S T O  R D

C U L L E N  S T

N  A C C E S S  R D

G L A S S C O C K  A V E

R
O

G
ER

S  
R

D
 E

X I
T

E  R O G E R S  R D

N
 I - 6 9 C

N
 I - 6 9 C

®
1 in = 544 ft

FUTURE LANDUSE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
MELDEN AND HUNT / MONTE CRISTO DEVELOPMENT

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISON SITE

FUTURE LANDUSE
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
GENERAL COMMERCIAL
INDUSTRIAL
MOBILE HOME
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL
OFFICE BUSINESS PARK
SUBURBAN
URBAN
URBAN UNIVERSITY

CITY LIMITS



LOT 5B

Te x as -M ex ic an R ai lw ay  C om pa ny  Su rv ey s

Eric a E di th  A lonz o

C.O .C  N O . 0 8-06- 03

Lot 11 and  1.77 ac  o f Lot 12

12
9

T2
10

0-
00

-2
44

-0
01

0- OUT PARCEL "A"LOT 5A

LOT 4

LOT 3

LOT 1

8-
04 8-

11

8-
02

7-02
7-04

7-03

7-18

7-00

7-
01

S1600-00-001-0007-05

8-09

8-068-07

-03

-06

-05

-04

-01

-00

-00

-03

-01

-04

-09

-15

ROGERS RD.

-06 -10

-04

6

5

LA
 S

IE
NN

A 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T

-05

-04 -06

-01

-00
-04

-11
-10

-08
-06

-05

-04

-03

-02
-01-00

-17

-20

-18

-00

-02

0006-12

R
O

EG
IE

R
S 

R
D

.

SUBDIVISION

FELIX CHAVEZ JR.
21

PL
AZ

A 
SU

BD
.

JU
NI

O
R'

S 
BU

SI
NE

SS
 

4

1

2

3

FLYING "J" TRAVEL PLAZA

SUBDIVISION

LOT 2

T2100-00-243-0004-

T2100-00-243-0005-

T2100-00-244-0001-T2100-00-244-0002-

T2100-00-244-0008-

T2100-00-244-0010-

-04-06

-12

-15

-07

-02

-04

-14

-13

-12

-04

-04

-03

-05
-00

-03

U
.S

. H
W

Y.
 2

81
 E

XP
W

Y.

10

9

8

7

6

5

1

4

3

2

STONECREST

424140 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9

10

39

38

37 43 54 55 66 67 78

36 5344 77686556 11

35 5245 76696457 12

34 5146 75706358 13

33 5047 74716259 14

32 4948 73726160 15

31

30 18 17

16

1920212223242526272829

H
G

22

21

20

191817

23

16

24

15

25

14

26

13

27

12

28

11

29

10

30

9

31

8

32

7

33

6

34

5

35

1

2

3

4

GLASSCOCK SUBD.

D & D
SUBD

5

4
1

8

1 2 3 4

GATEWAY INDUSTRIAL
SUBDIVISION

10

2

6

3

-01

1A

ARGUIN
DEGUI

COMMERCIAL

SUBD.

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

S T
O

N
E C

R
E

S T

S T
O

N
E V

I E
W

S T

S T O
N E V I E W

S T O N E H I L L

K E Y S T O N E  S T

N  B
U S I N

E S S  H
I G

H W AY  2 8 1
N  F R O

N T A G
E  R D

ST
O

N
EV

IE
W

 S
T

S A
N

D
S T

O
N

E
S T

N
 F R

O
N

T A
G

E  R
D

W  R O G E R S  R D

B U R N S  B L V D

N
 R

O
EG

IE
R

S
 R

D

E  R O G E R S  R D

W  M O N T E  C R I S T O  R D

N
 B

U
S I

N
E S

S  
H

I G
H

W
AY

 2
8 1

M
O

N T E  C R
I S T O

 R
D  E X I T

E  M O N T E  C R I S T O  R D

C U L L E N  S T

N  A C C E S S  R D

G L A S S C O C K  A V E

R
O

G
ER

S  
R

D
 E

X I
T

E  R O G E R S  R D

N
 I - 6 9 C

N
 I - 6 9 C

®
1 in = 544 ft

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
MELDEN AND HUNT / MONTE CRISTO DEVELOPMENT

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

300FT NOTIFICATION

CITY LIMITS







Rezoning Request Site Photo 
MELDEN & HUNT - GARMAN INVESTMENTS, LP 

500 East Monte Cristo Road 



 

 
415 W. University Drive  •  Edinburg, Texas 78539  •  Phone (956) 388-8202 Fax 292-2080 

www.cityofedinburg.com 

STAFF REPORT: CARMEN AVILA SUBDIVISION PHASE VI 

Date Prepared:    January 24, 2022 
Planning and Zoning Meeting: February 8, 2022 
Agenda Item: 9A              Preliminary Plat 
 

Subject:   Consider the Preliminary Plat of CARMEN AVILA SUBDIVISION PHASE VI, 
being a 37.64 acre tract of land out of Tract 156, San Salvador del Tule Grant, located 
at 9101 Carmen Avila Rd, as requested by Quintinilla, Headley, and Associates, Inc.  

Location:   The property is located 2,644 ft. north of East FM 2812 Road (Redbird Street) 
and 850 ft. west of North Alamo Road, and is within the City of Edinburg’s 
Extra Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), approximately 3,000 feet from the closest 
(northeast) boundary line. 

Zoning:   Setbacks established prior to final plat as per Hidalgo County requirements. 

Analysis: The Preliminary Plat is proposed as a single-family residential development 
with a total of 139 lots averaging approximately 8,125 square feet. 

Utilities: Water Distribution System and Sanitary Sewer Collection System are within 
North Alamo Water Supply Corporation - CCN.  All utility improvements 
within the proposed subdivision that are not limited to water, sewer, curb & 
gutter, and fire hydrants will be installed by the developer in accordance with 
the approved 2014 Standards Manual. 

 

Recommendations:    

City of Edinburg Planning & Zoning Department:  
Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat, subject to compliance with the Unified 
Development Code, General Notes; on FEMA flood zone, zoning, setbacks, finish floor elevation, 
benchmark, drainage detention, parkland fees, limited access, SWP3 requirements, sidewalks, and 
other notes as required based on development. 

City of Edinburg Engineering / Utilites Department: 
Preliminary Phase Submittal comments for this subivision are included in the packet.  As per 
Engineering, the plat shall be Preliminarily Approved until all comments have been addressed by the 
project engineer. 



 

 
415 W. University Drive  •  Edinburg, Texas 78539  •  Phone (956) 388-8202 Fax 292-2080 

www.cityofedinburg.com 

City of Edinburg Fire Department: 
The following are the preliminary phase submittal comments as noted by the Fire Department:   

1. Provide street names to the City of Edinburg Engineering Department for approval. 
2. Fire lane 15 ft. in width shall be painted in front of all fire hydrants. 
3. Provide double face blue fire hydrant street marker on center on the street in front of the fire 

hydrant. 
4. Fire hydrant shall be every 600 ft. for one and two family dwellings as per Section 507.5.1 of 

2012 IFC. 
5. All streets should be 32 ft. B-B paving section according to Table 8.204 of the Edinburg 

Unified Development Code. 

City of Edinburg Storm Water: 
The following are the preliminary phase submittal comments as noted by Storm Water: 

1. SW3P (Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan)  
2. NOI (Notice of Intent, Per TCEQ)  
3. Large Construction Notice (Per TCEQ Inventory)  
4. Detailed Erosion Control Plan (Silt Fence, Construction Entrance, Inlet Protection, 

Concrete Washout)  
5. Detailed Post Construction BMP’s Plan (70% Vegetation or Silt Fence back of curb)  
6. Plat Note (All construction shall comply with Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SW3P) 

requirements. Erosion and Sedimentation Controls constructed in accordance with the 
Stormwater Ordinance 98.30 of the City of Edinburg are required for all construction on each 
lot including single family and duplex/multi-family construction)  

7. NOT (Notice of Termination, Per TCEQ) will now be required before the final walk through.  
8. Comments:  

• SW3P Plat note has been revised. Please see the note for your reference.  
• NOT will need to be submitted before the final walk through.  
• Stormwater is now requiring a Post Construction Plan on plans that are submitted, either 70% 

vegetation or Install Silt Fence behind the back of curb.  
• Silt Fence around the entire project.  
• Large Construction Notice needs to be submitted with contractors contact information.  
• All items must be submitted before the NTP is issued.  
• Please email pending items to rvalenzuela@cityofedinburg.com  

 

City of Edinburg Solid Waste: 
Single Family Residential Development within the City of Edinburg - ETJ. 

mailto:rvalenzuela@cityofedinburg.com


415 W. University Drive  �  P.O. Box 1079  �  Edinburg, Texas 78540  �  Phone (956) 388-8211 
www.cityofedinburg.com 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
Preliminary Staff Review 

January 27, 2022 

Alfonso Quintanilla, P.E. 
Quintanilla, Headley and Associates 
124 E. Stubbs St. 
Edinburg, TX 78539 
(956) 381-6480

RE:  CARMEN AVILA PHASE VI SUBDIVISION � PRELIMINARY REVIEW

Mr. Quintanilla, 

Attached are the Preliminary Phase Submittal comments for Carmen Avila Phase VI Subdivision. 
Submittal is adequate as presented and recommended for preliminary approval. 

Any questions feel free to contact us. 

Thanks, 

Peter Hermida E.I.T. 
Email: phermida@cityofedinburg.com 
415 W. University Drive 
Edinburg, Texas 78539 

Cc: Mardoqueo Hinojosa, P.E., CFM, City Engineer, Patrizia Longoria, Engineer III, Roberto 
Hernandez, Engineer I, Abel Beltran, Planner I, Vince Romero, Director of Public Works, Robert 
Valenzuela, Storm Water Specialist, Kimberly Mendoza, Director of Planning and Zoning, Rita Lee 
Guerrero, Planner I, Jaime Xavier Ayala, Planner II, Gerardo Carmona P.E., Director of Utilities, 
Jose Flores, Systems Superintendent, Omar Garza, Fire Marshal, Ramiro Gomez, Director of Solid 
Waste 

REFERENCES: 
City of Edinburg � 2014 Standard Manual � Construction and Development Requirements; 
Unified Development Code; and if required a TX-Dot Permitting UIR permitting process.









1
. P

ro
vid

e S
an

ita
ry S

ew
e

r T
o

p
s, C

o
ve

r sh
a

ll b
e a m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 3

 LF fro
m

 C
rest o

f P
ip

e  
2

. A
ll p

ro
p

. casin
g

s o
n

 th
e S

S
 lin

e
s are to

 m
eet th

e fo
llo

w
in

g
 criteria

:  
   a) A

ll casin
g

s are to
 b

e g
reen

 D
R

-2
5

 P
V

C
, G

reen
.  

   b
) A

ll casin
g

s are to
 b

e 2
0

 LF an
d

 cen
tered

 at th
e S

S
 an

d
 w

ater cro
ssin

g
s. If o

n
e en

d
 

o
f th

e p
ip

e falls u
n

d
ern

eath
 th

e p
ro

p
. p

a
ve

m
en

t, th
en

 th
e casin

g
 is to

 ex
ten

d
 2

' p
a

st 
th

e b
ack o

f cu
rb

.  
3

. A
ll m

aterials sh
a

ll b
e d

o
m

e
stic.  

4
. D

o
 n

o
t co

n
n

e
ct S

S
 se

rvices in
to

 p
ro

p
o

sed
 S

S
 m

an
h

o
les.  

5
. P

ro
vid

e P
la

n
 an

d
 P

ro
files  

6
. S

h
o

w
 all S

S
 sta

n
d

ard
 D

etails.  
7

. A
ll S

an
ita

ry S
ew

e
r lin

e
s sh

a
ll b

e g
reen

.  
8

. S
an

ita
ry S

ew
e

r M
an

h
o

le sp
acin

g
 sh

a
ll n

o
t ex

ce
ed

 4
0

0
 LF. 

9
. If S

an
ita

ry S
ew

e
rlin

e
 falls u

n
d

er a R
C

P
 S

to
rm

 lin
e

, S
an

ita
ry S

ew
e

r Lin
e sh

a
ll b

e 
en

case
d

 in
 stee

l. 
1

0
. A

n
y T

ren
ch

 E
xca

va
tio

n
 D

eep
er th

an
 5

LF sh
a

ll R
eq

u
ire "S

u
p

p
o

rt, S
h

o
rin

g
 o

r 
S

h
ield

in
g

" system
 ap

p
ro

ved
 b

y O
S

H
A



1
. T

h
e lo

w
e

st to
p

 o
f cu

rb
 elevatio

n
 o

f th
e su

b
d

ivisio
n

 is to
 b

e at to
p

 o
f d

itch
 elevatio

n
. 

A
fter th

is ch
an

g
e is d

o
n

e, th
e g

rad
in

g
 p

la
n

 w
ill b

e ch
ecked

. 
2

. A
ll lo

ts m
u

st h
ave a 1

%
 slo

p
e fro

m
 re

ar to
 fro

n
t o

f lo
ts. 

3
. La

b
el S

treet w
id

th
 

4
. P

ro
vid

e S
treet Lig

h
t La

yo
u

t P
la

n
. S

treet lig
h

ts are to
 b

e sp
aced

 2
5

0
' m

ax
. 

5
. P

ro
vid

e trip
 g

e
n

e
ratio

n
 w

o
rk

sh
eet (see attach

ed
 w

o
rk

sh
eet).  

6
. P

ro
vid

e ap
p

ro
ved

 d
rain

ag
e re

p
o

rt p
rio

r to
 re

co
rd

in
g

 o
f th

e p
la

t. 
7

. S
h

o
w

 street p
ro

files w
ith

 an
y re

q
u

ired
 vertical cu

rves. 
8

. S
h

o
w

 C
O

E
 sta

n
d

ard
 D

etails. 
9

. A
ll street slo

p
es m

u
st h

ave a m
in

. slo
p

e o
f 0

.2
%

. 























LY
D I

A  
D R

T A S A J I L L O  D R

A D R I E L  D R

B A R R Y  D R

RA
N

CH
O

 A
LT

O
 D

R

N O P A L E R A  D R

SU
NR

IS
E 

LN

N  
C E

S A
R  

C H
AV

E Z
 R

D

C A
R

M
EN

 A
V I

L A
 R

D

®
1 in = 600 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
JEFFERSON ROAD PROPERTY INVESTMENTS / CARMEN AVILA SUBDIVISION PHASE VI

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

CITY LIMITS



E.
C

.I.
S.

D
. M

ID
D

LE
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
N

o.
 6

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

1110

9

8

7

6

5

4

3
406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417 418

419

420

421

422

423

424

425

426

427

428

AL
AM

O
  R

D
.

J.
J.

 A
VI

LA
 S

U
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

CARMEN AVILA ELEM. SCHOOL

LOT 1

6 7 8

ED
IN

BU
R

G
 A

C
R

ES

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

81

6

7

8

9

LY
D I

A  
D R

T A S A J I L L O  D R

A D R I E L  D R

B A R R Y  D R

RA
N

CH
O

 A
LT

O
 D

R

N O P A L E R A  D R

SU
NR

IS
E 

LN

N  
C E

S A
R  

C H
AV

E Z
 R

D

C A
R

M
EN

 A
V I

L A
 R

D

®
1 in = 600 ft

SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
JEFFERSON ROAD PROPERTY INVESTMENTS / CARMEN AVILA SUBDIVISION PHASE VI

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

300FT NOTIFICATION

CITY LIMITS







 Date :

Date P&Z  City  
Filed: Final: Council:  

 
Reviewed 365  Days Expires :  

By: 0  Days Expires 1:   
0  Days Expires 2:  

 Planning & Zoning Department: Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA Email : kmendoza@cityofedinburg.com City Office #: (956) 388-8202
 Utility Department Gerardo Carmona, P.E. Email : gcarmona@cityofedinburg.com City Office #: (956) 388-8212
 Dircetor of Public Works Vincent Romero Email : layala@cityofedinburg.com City Office #: (956) 388-8210
 Director of Engineering Mardoqueo Hinojosa, P.E., CPM Email : mhinojosa@cityofedinburg.com City Office #: (956) 388-8211

 P
ro

vi
de

d

N
ee

d 
to

 
Pr

ov
id

e

N
ot

 
A

pp
lic

ab
le

N
ee

d 
to

 
R

ev
is

e

  Subdivision Process:

√    

√  
√  

 Drainage Report Submittal (As Per City Drainage Policy) √  Date: Pending Approval

 Zoning : City Limits - Commercial General √   
 Flood Zone √  
  Preliminary Submittals:  

√  
√  
 √  
 √  
√   
√   
√   

 Variances Appeals Request:  (Date) √  Results City Council Meeting

 Street Widening Improvements   √   

  Street 5-ft Sidewalk Improvements   √   

  Drainage Improvements √     
  Construction Plans Review Submittals:   (See Section 4 Construction Plans Submittals Policy, 2014 STANDARD POLICY MANUAL)
 Cover Sheet √
 Topography Sheet (Utilities, Bench Marks) √
 Sanitary Sewer Improvements: On-Site & Off-Site √
 Sanitary Sewer Detail Sheets √
 Water Distribution Improvements: On-Site & Off-Site √
 Water Distribution Detail Sheet (Fire Hydrant Assembly) √

√
 Drainage Detail Sheets √
 Minor/Major Collector Streets Improvements: √
 Street Sign Sheet: √
 Street Detail Sheets √
 Street Lighting Sheet: √
 Traffic Control Plan: √
 Erosion Control Plan √
 Erosion Control Plan Detail Sheet √
CARMEN AVILA VI SUBDIVISION Page 1  of  2 

PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT
 

SUBDIVISION WITHIN CITY LIMITS CHECK LIST PRELIMINARY STAGE
  PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT (956) 388-8202 SUBDIVISION PROCESS January 5, 2022

 

Staff Review : January 20, 2022 Time Line :
Abel Beltran, Subd. Coor. Staff / Engineer : January 27, 2022  1st Extension :

 P&Z  
December 23, 2021 Preliminary: February 8, 2022

CARMEN AVILA SUBDIVISION PHASE VI Consultant : Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, Inc.

DESCRIPTION COMMENTS

 Subdivision Plat Submittal

 Warranty Deed  

abeltran@cityofedinburg.com 2nd Extension :

Owner: Jefferson Road Property P. O. Box 2604 Edinburg, TX 78540  Alfonso Quintanilla, P.E., Project Engineer

 Water Distribution System Provider:  North Alamo Water Supply Corporation - Distribution System

 Existing & Proposed Sewer Collection Layout  City of Edinburg Sanitary Sewer Collection System

 Sanitary Sewer Collection System Provider:  City of Edinburg Sanitary Sewer Collection System

 Topography Survey  

 Approved by H.C.D.D.#1

 

  Zone "X" (Un-Shaded)

 Existing & Proposed Water Distribution Layout  North Alamo Water Supply Corporation - Distribution System

 Planning & Zoning Meeting

 

 

 

 Existing and Proposed Drainage Layout System:  Private Drainage System onto H.C.D.D. # 1

 MPO Collector / Arterial Right-of-way Dedication  Proposed Private Streets

 Minor / Major Collector Street Pavement Section  In Accordance to Standard Street Policy

 City of Edinburg Sanitary Sewer Standard Policy's

 See Section 3 Utility Policy, 2014 Standard Policy Manual

 North Alamo Water Supply Standard Policy's

 See Section 3 Utility Policy, 2014 Standard Policy Manual

 Drainage Improvements:

 See Section 1 Drainage Policy, 2014 Standard Policy Manual

 See Section 2 Streets Policy, 2014 Standard Policy Manual

 See Section 2 Streets Policy, 2014 Standard Policy Manual

 

 See Storm Water Management, 2014 Standard Policy Manual



 P
ro

vi
de

d

N
ee

d 
to

 
Pr

ov
id

e

N
ot

 
A

pp
lic

ab
le

N
ee

d 
to

 
R

ev
is

e

Pre-Construction Meeting:

 Notice To Proceed √ Dated:

 Roadway Open-Cut or Bore Permit Application √ Dated:

 TX-Dot Water UIR Permit   √  

 TX-Dot Sewer UIR Permit   √  

 N.O.I. Submittal √ Dated:

 SWPP Booklet Submittal √ Dated:

 RFI #1 Request √ Dated:

 Change Orders √ Dated:

 Final Walk Though √ Dated:

 Punch List √ Dated:

 Punch List (Completed and Approved) √ Dated:

 Letter of Acceptance √ Dated:

 1-year Warranty (Water/Sewer/Paving/Drainage) √ Dated:

 Backfill Testing Results √ Dated:

 As-Builts (Revised Original Submittal) √ Dated:

  Recording Process:  

 Public Improvements with (Letter of Credit) √   Dated: Expires:  

 Recording Fees √  
 Copy of H.C.D.D. #1 of invoice √  

√  0 EA. @ -$                         

 √ 0 EA. @ -$                         

 Sidewalk Escrow (Road)  √ 0 LF @ 25.00$                     

 Total Developer's  Construction Cost: (Letter of Credit)     Date : Lender :

 Laboratory Testing Fee: 3%  √   Estimated Construction Cost

 Inspection Fee: 2%  √   Final Construction Cost

 Park Land Fees: Park Zone # 4  √ 139 Lots @ 300.00$          Full rate within the ETJ

0 Residential 300.00$              √  50% Development 50% Building Stage

0 Multi-Family -$                    √ 0% Development 0% Building Stage

 Water Rights: NAWSC - CCN  √ Acres 2,896.81$                
 Water 30-year Letter (Residential)  √ 139 Lots @ 5.00$              TRANSFER NAWSC WATER-CCN

 Water 30-year Letter (Multi-Family) √ 0 Lots @ -$                  

 Sewer 30-year Letter COE - CCN  √ 139 Lots @ 90.00$            COE SEWER-CCN

TOTAL OF FEES:  
  Reimbursements:  

 Developer Sewer Improvements  √   Off-Site System: 0.000 AC -$                         

 Developer Water Improvements  √   Off-Site System 0.00 AC -$                         
TOTAL OF REINBURSEMENTS: 

  Buyouts:

 North Alamo Water Supply Corporation √    Required Buyout 0.00 AC. -$                         

 Sharyland Water Supply Corporation √  Not Applicable

 

 County of Hidalgo / School District √
 Water District √  Hidalgo County Irrigation District # 1

  Total of Escrows, Fees, Reimbursements and Buyouts:

 Escrows   Street & Sidewalk Improvements for Trenton Road (Not Required)

 Inspections other Fees   Parkland Fees, Water/Sewer 30-year Agreement/Water Rights

 Reimbursements

City of Edinburg 15%

To the Developer of Record 85%

 Buyouts  Based on Subdivision (Need Request and Approval rate from ? Broad)

TOTAL :  Developer Total Cost of Fees, Escrows, Reimbursements &  Buyouts

CARMEN AVILA VI SUBDIVISION Page 2 of 2   

DESCRIPTION COMMENTS

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

106.00$                   As required by County Clerks office

 

 

 

 

 

 

  TOTAL OF ESCROWS: -$                       

-$                       -$                                               

   Required to be paid prior to Final Stages

 Street Light Escrow -$                       Required:

 Street Escrow (Road) -$                       Required:

-$                       -$                                               

41,700.00$            

-$                       

-$                       

-$                       37.640

-$                       Required:

-$                       

-$                       

  Tax Certificates

-$                                     

54,905.00$                          

-$                                     

695.00$                 

-$                       

12,510.00$            
54,905.00$            

-$                       

-$                       

54,905.00$                          

  Reimbursement to the Developer of Subdivision

-$                                       Payable to the City of Edinburg for Administrative Fee

-$                                       Payable to the Developer of Record Owner / Developer

 -$                                     



 

 
415 W. University Drive  •  Edinburg, Texas 78539  •  Phone (956) 388-8202 Fax 292-2080 

www.cityofedinburg.com 

STAFF REPORT: LA RESERVA PHASE I-C SUBDIVISION 

Date Prepared:    January 28, 2022 
Planning and Zoning Meeting: February 8, 2022 
Agenda Item: 9B              Preliminary Plat 
 

Subject:   Consider the Preliminary Plat of LA RESERVA PHASE I-C SUBDIVISION, being 
4.048 acre out of Lots 6 & 11, Block 73, Engelman, Re-Subdivision, of the Missouri-
Texas and Irrigation Company’s Subdivision in Las Mesteñas Grant, located at 23501 
Uresti Street as requested by HALFF Associates, Inc. 

Location:   The property is located on the west side of Uresti Street at Benito A. Ramirez 
Road and is within the City of Edinburg’s Extra Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), 
approximately 3.4 miles from the closest (northeast) boundary line. 

Zoning:   Setbacks established prior to final plat as per Hidalgo County requirements. 

Analysis: The Preliminary Plat proposes single-family residential development with a 
total of six (6) lots averaging approximately 24,716 square feet.  

Utilities: Water Distribution System and Sanitary Sewer Collection System are within 
North Alamo Water Supply Corporation - CCN.  All utility improvements 
within the proposed subdivision that are not limited to water, sewer, curb & 
gutter, and fire hydrants will be installed by the developer in accordance with 
the approved 2014 Standards Manual. 

 

Recommendations:    

City of Edinburg Planning & Zoning Department:  
Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat, subject to the compliance with the Unified 
Development Code, General Notes; on FEMA flood zone, zoning, setbacks, finish floor elevation, 
benchmark, drainage detention, parkland fees, limited access, SWP3 requirements, sidewalks, and 
other notes as required based on development. 

City of Edinburg Engineering / Utilites Department: 
Preliminary Phase Submittal comments for this subivision are included in the packet.  As per 
Engineering, the plat shall be Preliminarily Approved until all comments have been addressed by the 
project engineer. 



 

 
415 W. University Drive  •  Edinburg, Texas 78539  •  Phone (956) 388-8202 Fax 292-2080 

www.cityofedinburg.com 

City of Edinburg Fire Department: 
The following are the preliminary phase submittal comments as noted by the Fire Department:   

1. Provide street names to the City of Edinburg Engineering Department for approval. 
2. Fire lane 15 ft. in width shall be painted in front of all fire hydrants. 
3. Provide double face blue fire hydrant street marker on center on the street in front of the fire 

hydrant. 
4. Fire hydrant shall be every 600 ft. for one and two family dwellings as per Section 507.5.1 of 

2012 IFC. 
5. All streets should be 32 ft. B-B paving section according to Table 8.204 of the Edinburg 

Unified Development Code. 

City of Edinburg Storm Water: 
The following are the preliminary phase submittal comments as noted by Storm Water: 

1. SW3P (Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan)  
2. NOI (Notice of Intent, Per TCEQ)  
3. Large Construction Notice (Per TCEQ Inventory)  
4. Detailed Erosion Control Plan (Silt Fence, Construction Entrance, Inlet Protection, 

Concrete Washout)  
5. Detailed Post Construction BMP’s Plan (70% Vegetation or Silt Fence back of curb)  
6. Plat Note (All construction shall comply with Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SW3P) 

requirements. Erosion and Sedimentation Controls constructed in accordance with the 
Stormwater Ordinance 98.30 of the City of Edinburg are required for all construction on each 
lot including single family and duplex/multi-family construction)  

7. NOT (Notice of Termination, Per TCEQ) will now be required before the final walk through.  
8. Comments:  

• SW3P Plat note has been revised. Please see the note for your reference.  
• NOT will need to be submitted before the final walk through.  
• Stormwater is now requiring a Post Construction Plan on plans that are submitted, either 70% 

vegetation or Install Silt Fence behind the back of curb.  
• Silt Fence around the entire project.  
• Large Construction Notice needs to be submitted with contractors contact information.  
• All items must be submitted before the NTP is issued.  
• Please email pending items to rvalenzuela@cityofedinburg.com  

 

City of Edinburg Solid Waste: 
Single Family Residential Development within the City of Edinburg - ETJ. 
 

mailto:rvalenzuela@cityofedinburg.com


415 W. University Drive  •  P.O. Box 1079  •  Edinburg, Texas 78540  •  Phone (956) 388-8211  
www.cityofedinburg.com 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
Preliminary Staff Review 

February 4, 2022 

Raul Garcia, P.E. 
Halff and Associates 
5000 W. Military STE 100 
McAllen, TX, 78503 
(956) 664-0286

RE:  LA RESERVA PHASE I-C – PRELIMINARY REVIEW 

Mr. Garcia, 

Attached are the Preliminary Phase Submittal comments for La Reserva Phase I-C Subdivision. 
Submittal is adequate as presented and recommended for preliminary approval. 

Any questions feel free to contact us. 

Thanks, 

Peter Hermida E.I.T. 
Email: phermida@cityofedinburg.com 
415 W. University Drive 
Edinburg, Texas 78539 

Cc: Mardoqueo Hinojosa, P.E., CFM, City Engineer, Patrizia Longoria, Engineer III, Roberto 
Hernandez, Engineer I, Abel Beltran, Planner I, Vince Romero, Director of Public Works, Robert 
Valenzuela, Storm Water Specialist, Kimberly Mendoza, Director of Planning and Zoning, Rita Lee 
Guerrero, Planner I, Jaime Xavier Ayala, Planner II, Gerardo Carmona P.E., Director of Utilities, 
Jose Flores, Systems Superintendent, Omar Garza, Fire Marshal, Ramiro Gomez, Director of Solid 
Waste 

REFERENCES: 
City of Edinburg – 2014 Standard Manual – Construction and Development Requirements; 
Unified Development Code; and if required a TX-Dot Permitting UIR permitting process. 

Digitally signed by Peter 
Hermida
Date: 2022.02.04 
11:47:30 -06'00'



Modify to only include the workign as per 
FEMA floodmaps. include revision LOMR 
May 14,2001 information 
 
Has the BFE been stablish for the lots in 
zone A? if so, provide FEMA approval 
documentation might want to change the 

easements that are 10-ft wide 
and change it to match the 
other subdivisions

remove. repeats 
with #15

Change to 24" . 
Elevation 
certificates will 
bee required. 



Corner clips 
need to be 
30x30

1. Additional ROW will have to be 
widen or escrow.









PA V O  R E A L  L N

UR
ES

TI
 S

T

®
1 in = 500 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
HALFF ASSOCIATES, INC. / LA RESERVA PHASE IC 

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

CITY LIMITS



127 0.2

127 0.2

122 0.2

13
05

.6
0

1320.19

1320.19

25
9

.8

170 .0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 9 3- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 9 2- 0 0

120 .02'

39
3

.7
8'

12
7

.9
2'

12
7

.9
3' 193 192

101 9.00 '

D3800-01-000-0126-08

D3800-01-000-0021-00

MILE 21 NORTH RD.

L28 45 -0 4-0 00 -00 58 -0 0

L28 45 -0 4-0 00 -00 57 -0 0

L28 45 -0 4-0 00 -00 56 -0 0

L28 45 -0 4-0 00 -00 55 -0 0

L28 45 -0 4-0 00 -00 54 -0 0

L28 45 -0 4-0 00 -00 53 -0 0

L28 45 -0 4-0 00 -00 52 -0 0

L28 45 -0 4-0 00 -00 51 -0 0

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

LOT 106

N.E. COR.

R026100

R&D

LOT 1

Delta Orchards Company Unit No. 1

123 119

106

108

110

112

114

116

118

117

115

113

111

109

107

105

12
5

12
0

12
6

12
1

12
7

12
2

12
4

28

27

26

25

24

23

22

73

3

6

11

14

4

5

12

13

PA V O  R E A L  L N

UR
ES

TI
 S

T

®
1 in = 500 ft

SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
HALFF ASSOCIATES, INC. / LA RESERVA PHASE IC 

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

CITY LIMITS







Date Prepared : 

  Application P&Z  City  

  Filed: Final: Council:  
 

Reviewed 365  Days Expires : January 10, 2023

By: 0  Days Expires 1:   
0  Days Expires 2:  

 Director of Planning & Zoning : Kimberly A. Mendoza Email : kmendosa@cityofedinburg.com City Office :  (956) 388-8202

 Director of Utilities Arturo Martinez Email : amartinez@cityofedinburg.com City Office :  (956) 388-8212

 Dircetor of Public Works Vincent Romero Email : layala@cityofedinburg.com City Office :  (956) 388-8210

 Director of Engineering Mardoqueo Hinojosa, P.E., CPM Email : mhinojosa@cityofedinburg.com City Office :  (956) 388-8211

 P
ro

vi
de

d

N
ee

d 
to

 
Pr

ov
id

e

N
ot

 
A

pp
lic

ab
le

N
ee

d 
to

 
R

ev
is

e

  Subdivision Process:
√  Date : 
√  
√  

 Drainage Report Submittal (As Per City Drainage Policy) √  Date:  
 Zoning : City Limits - Residential √   
 Flood Zone √  

  Preliminary Submittals:  
√  
√  
√   
  √
√   
√  
√  

 Variances Appeals Request:  Results City Council Meeting
  √   
   √   
  √   
  Construction Plans Review Submittals:
 Cover Sheet √   
 Topography Sheet (Utilities, Bench Marks) √   
 Sanitary Sewer Improvements: On-Site & Off-Site √   
 Sanitary Sewer Detail Sheets √   
 Water Distribution Improvements: On-Site & Off-Site √   
 Water Distribution Detail Sheet √   

 √
 Drainage Detail Sheets  √
 Minor/Major Collector Streets Improvements:   √
 Street Sign Sheet:   √
 Street Detail Sheets   √
 Street Lighting Sheet: √  
 Traffic Control Plan: √  
 Erosion Control Plan √  
 Erosion Control Plan Detail Sheet √  
LA RESERVA I-C SUBDIVISION Page 1  of  2 

PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT
 

SUBDIVISION WITHIN CITY LIMITS CHECK LIST PRELIMINARY STAGE
  ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT (956) 388-8211 SUBDIVISION PROCESS February 2, 2022

Staff Review : January 20, 2022 Time Line :

Abel Beltran, Subd. Coor. Staff / Engineer : January 27, 2022  1st Extension :

P&Z  

January 10, 2022 Preliminary: February 8, 2022 March 1, 2022

LA RESERVA SUBDIVISION PHASE I-C Consultant : HALFF Associates, Inc.

DESCRIPTION COMMENTS

 Subdivision Plat Submittal May 4, 2021

abeltran@cityofedinburg.com 2nd Extension :

Owner: William A. Schwarz, Member 900 E. Lakeshore Drive, McAllen, TX. Raul Garcia, JR., P.E., Project Engineer

  Zone "X" (Shaded)

 Existing & Proposed Water Distribution Layout  North Alamo Water Supply Corporation - Distribution System
 Water Distribution System Provider:  North Alamo Water Supply Corporation - Distribution System
 Existing & Proposed Sewer Collection Layout  City of Edinburg Sanitary Sewer Collection System

 Warranty Deed  
 Topography Survey  

 Approved by H.C.D.D.#1
 

 Minor / Major Collector Street pavement Section  Street Section of 0-ft Back-Back

 Planning & Zoning Meeting
 
 
 

 Sanitary Sewer Collection System Provider:  
 Existing and Proposed Drainage Layout System:  Hidalgo County Drainage District # 1
 MPO Collector / Arterial Right-of-way Dedication  Right-of-Way Dedication as per MPO requiremenets (0-Feet)

 North Alamo Water Supply Corporation Standard Policys
 Drainage Improvements:

 See Section 1 Drainage Policy, 2014 Standard Policy Manual
 See Section 2 Streets Policy, 2014 Standard Policy Manual

 See Section 2 Streets Policy, 2014 Standard Policy Manual

(See Section 4 Construction Plans Submittals Policy, 2014 STANDARD POLICY MANUAL)

 County of Hidalgo Offsite Septic System Faciality
 County of Hidalgo Offsite Septic System Faciality
 North Alamo Water Supply Corporation Standard Policys

 
 See Storm Water Management, 2014 Standard Policy Manual

ALL REQUIRED FEES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT RECORDING STAGE



 P
ro

vi
de

d

N
ee

d 
to

 
Pr

ov
id

e

N
ot

 
A

pp
lic

ab
le

N
ee

d 
to

 
R

ev
is

e

Pre-Construction Meeting:

 Notice To Proceed √   Dated:

 Roadway Open-Cut or Bore Permit Application √   Dated:

 TX-Dot Water UIR Permit   √ Dated:

 TX-Dot Sewer UIR Permit   √ Dated:

 N.O.I. Submittal √  Dated:

 SWPP Booklet Submittal √  Dated:

 RFI #1 Request √  Dated:

 Change Orders √  Dated:

 Final Walk Though √  Dated:

 Punch List √  Dated:

 Punch List (Completed and Approved) √  Dated:

 Letter of Acceptance √  Dated:

 1-year Warranty (Water/Sewer/Paving/Drainage) √  Dated:

 Backfill Testing Results √  Dated:

 As-Builts (Revised Original Submittal) √  Dated:

  Recording Process:   

 Public Improvements with (Letter of Credit)   √  Dated: Expires:  

 Recording Fees (Copy of Receipt)  √  
 Copy of H.C.D.D. #1 of PAID invoice  √  

 √  0 EA. @ -$                             

 √  0 EA. @ -$                             

 S/W Escrow (Uresti & Mile 20 Road)  √  1515 LF @ 25.00$                         

   

 Total Developer's  Construction Cost: (Letter of Credit)   √  Date : Lender :

 Laboratory Testing Fee: 3%  √  Estimated Construction Cost

 Inspection Fee: 2%   √  Final Construction Cost

 Park Land Fees: Within City ETJ  √  0 Lots @ -$           

6 Residential 300.00$              √  50% Development 50% Building Stage

0 Multi-Family -$                    √ 0% Development 0% Building Stage

 Total Water Rights Fees : NAWSC - CCN  √  6.39 Acre(s) 2,896.81$                    
 Water 30-year Letter NAWSC - CCN  √  12 Lots @ -$           NAWSC WATER-CCN  

 Sewer 30-year Letter COE - CCN  √  12 Lots @ -$           OSSF SEPTIC SYSTEM  

TOTAL OF FEES:   
  Reimbursements:  
 Developer Sewer Improvements  √   Off-Site System: 0.00 AC -$                             
 Developer Water Improvements  √   Off-Site System 0.00 AC -$                             
 Developer Drainage Improvements  √   Off-Site System 0.00 TOTAL -$                             

TOTAL OF REINBURSEMENTS: 
  Buyouts:
 North Alamo Water Supply Corporation √  Not Applicable
 Sharyland Water Supply Corporation √  Not Applicable

 
 County of Hidalgo / School District √
 Water District √  Hidalgo County Irrigation District # 2
  Total of Escrows, Fees, Reimbursements and Buyouts:

 Escrows   Street & Sidewalk Improvements for Russell Road

 Inspections other Fees   Parkland Fees, Water/Sewer 30-year Agreement/Water Rights

 Reimbursements

City of Edinburg 0%

To the Developer of Record 0%

 Buyouts  

TOTAL :  Developer Total Cost of Fees, Escrows, Reimbursements &  Buyouts
LA RESERVA I-C SUBDIVISION Page 2 of 2   

 

 

 

 

 

DESCRIPTION COMMENTS

 

 

 

 

106.00$                      As required by County Clerks office

250.00$                      Required to be paid prior to Final Stages

 

 

 

 

 

 

37,875.00$               Required:

  TOTAL OF ESCROWS: 37,875.00$                

 Street Light Escrow -$                          Required:

 Fire Hydrant Escrow -$                          Required:

RGRWA 2020 Fees :
-$                          

-$                          

-$                          -$                                          

-$                          -$                                          

-$                           

1,800.00$                 

-$                          
-$                          
-$                          
-$                          

  Tax Certificates

1,800.00$                 

-$                          

-$                          

-$                                          Payable to the Developer of Record Owner / Developer

-$                                        

39,675.00$                             
ALL REQUIRED FEES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT RECORDING STAGE

37,875.00$                             

1,800.00$                               

-$                                          Riembursement to the Developer of Subdivision

-$                                          Payable to the City of Edinburg for Administrative Fee



 

 

415 W. University Drive  •  Edinburg, Texas 78539  •  Phone (956) 388-8202 Fax 292-2080 

www.cityofedinburg.com 

STAFF REPORT: LA RESERVA PHASE I-D SUBDIVISION 

Date Prepared:    January 28, 2022 

Planning and Zoning Meeting: February 8, 2022 

Agenda Item: 9C              Preliminary Plat 

 

Subject:   Consider the Preliminary Plat of LA RESERVA PHASE I-D SUBDIVISION, being 

a 4.652 acre tract out of Lot 14, Block 73, Engelman, Re-Subdivision, of the Missouri-

Texas and Irrigation Company’s Subdivision in Las Mesteñas Grant, located at 23001 

Uresti Street as requested by HALFF Associates, Inc. 

Location:   The property is located on the south side of FM 2812 Road and the north side  

of Mile 20 North Road. The property is approximately 3,100 ft. east of  

Brushline Road and is within the City of Edinburg’s Extra Territorial  

Jurisdiction (ETJ), approximately 3.4 miles from the closest (northeast) 

boundary line. 

Zoning:   Setbacks will be determined by Hidalgo County. 

Analysis: The Preliminary Plat proposes single-family residential development with a 

total of six (6) lots averaging approximately 25,383 square feet.  

Utilities: Water Distribution System and Sanitary Sewer Collection System are within 

North Alamo Water Supply Corporation - CCN.  All utility improvements 

within the proposed subdivision that are not limited to water, sewer, curb & 

gutter, and fire hydrants will be installed by the developer in accordance with 

the approved 2014 Standards Manual. 

 

Recommendations:    

City of Edinburg Planning & Zoning Department:  

Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat, subject to the compliance with the Unified 

Development Code, General Notes; on FEMA flood zone, zoning, setbacks, finish floor elevation, 

benchmark, drainage detention, parkland fees, limited access, SWP3 requirements, sidewalks, and 

other notes as required based on development. 

City of Edinburg Engineering / Utilites Department: 

Preliminary Phase Submittal comments for this subivision are included in the packet.  As per 

Engineering, the plat shall be Preliminarily Approved until all comments have been addressed by the 



 

 

415 W. University Drive  •  Edinburg, Texas 78539  •  Phone (956) 388-8202 Fax 292-2080 

www.cityofedinburg.com 

project engineer. 

City of Edinburg Fire Department: 

The following are the preliminary phase submittal comments as noted by the Fire Department:   

1. Provide street names to the City of Edinburg Engineering Department for approval. 

2. Fire lane 15 ft. in width shall be painted in front of all fire hydrants. 

3. Provide double face blue fire hydrant street marker on center on the street in front of the fire 

hydrant. 

4. Fire hydrant shall be every 600 ft. for one and two family dwellings as per Section 507.5.1 of 

2012 IFC. 

5. All streets should be 32 ft. B-B paving section according to Table 8.204 of the Edinburg 

Unified Development Code. 

City of Edinburg Storm Water: 

The following are the preliminary phase submittal comments as noted by Storm Water: 

1. SW3P (Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan)  

2. NOI (Notice of Intent, Per TCEQ)  

3. Large Construction Notice (Per TCEQ Inventory)  

4. Detailed Erosion Control Plan (Silt Fence, Construction Entrance, Inlet Protection, 

Concrete Washout)  

5. Detailed Post Construction BMP’s Plan (70% Vegetation or Silt Fence back of curb)  

6. Plat Note (All construction shall comply with Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SW3P) 

requirements. Erosion and Sedimentation Controls constructed in accordance with the 

Stormwater Ordinance 98.30 of the City of Edinburg are required for all construction on each 

lot including single family and duplex/multi-family construction)  

7. NOT (Notice of Termination, Per TCEQ) will now be required before the final walk through.  

8. Comments:  

• SW3P Plat note has been revised. Please see the note for your reference.  

• NOT will need to be submitted before the final walk through.  

• Stormwater is now requiring a Post Construction Plan on plans that are submitted, either 70% 

vegetation or Install Silt Fence behind the back of curb.  

• Silt Fence around the entire project.  

• Large Construction Notice needs to be submitted with contractors contact information.  

• All items must be submitted before the NTP is issued.  

• Please email pending items to rvalenzuela@cityofedinburg.com  

 

City of Edinburg Solid Waste: 

mailto:rvalenzuela@cityofedinburg.com


 

 

415 W. University Drive  •  Edinburg, Texas 78539  •  Phone (956) 388-8202 Fax 292-2080 

www.cityofedinburg.com 

Single Family Residential Development within the City of Edinburg - ETJ. 

 

 

 



415 W. University Drive  •  P.O. Box 1079  •  Edinburg, Texas 78540  •  Phone (956) 388-8211   
www.cityofedinburg.com 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
Preliminary Staff Review 

 
February 4, 2022 
 
 
Raul Garcia, P.E. 
Halff and Associates 
5000 W. Military STE 100 
McAllen, TX, 78503 
(956) 664-0286 
 
RE:  LA RESERVA PHASE I-D – PRELIMINARY REVIEW 

Mr. Garcia, 
 
Attached are the Preliminary Phase Submittal comments for La Reserva Phase I-D Subdivision. 
Submittal is adequate as presented and recommended for preliminary approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
Any questions feel free to contact us. 
 
Thanks, 
 
 
 
Peter Hermida E.I.T. 
Email: phermida@cityofedinburg.com     
415 W. University Drive      
Edinburg, Texas 78539      
 
Cc: Mardoqueo Hinojosa, P.E., CFM, City Engineer, Patrizia Longoria, Engineer III, Roberto 

Hernandez, Engineer I, Abel Beltran, Planner I, Vince Romero, Director of Public Works, Robert 
Valenzuela, Storm Water Specialist, Kimberly Mendoza, Director of Planning and Zoning, Rita Lee 
Guerrero, Planner I, Jaime Xavier Ayala, Planner II, Gerardo Carmona P.E., Director of Utilities, 
Jose Flores, Systems Superintendent, Omar Garza, Fire Marshal, Ramiro Gomez, Director of Solid 
Waste 

  
REFERENCES: 
City of Edinburg – 2014 Standard Manual – Construction and Development Requirements; 
Unified Development Code; and if required a TX-Dot Permitting UIR permitting process. 



Modify to only include the workign as per 
FEMA floodmaps. include revision LOMR 
May 14,2001 information 
 
Has the BFE been stablish for the lots in 
zone A? if so, provide FEMA approval 
documentation

Change to 24" . 
Elevation 
certificates will 
bee required. 

might want to change the 
easements that are 10-ft wide 
and change it to match the 
other subdivisions

remove. repeats 
with #15

Add; 
Sidewalks with ADA ramps will be required 
along Mile 20 and Uresti Rd during subdivision 
construction phase. 
If road widen will be escrow, this will have to be 
part of the escrows too.

add note for lot 137 and 135 shall not 
have access of mile 20 north road



Mile 20 is a 120-ROW [60-ft from 
centerline] street. 
Widen must be widen or escrowed.

Corner clips need to 
be 50x50

Uresti/ [N 3rd street] is a 80-ft ROW 
(40-ft from Centerline). 
Additional ROW must be widen or 
escrowed.









PA V O
R E A L  L N

M I L E  2 0  N

UR
ES

TI
 S

T

®
1 in = 500 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
HALFF ASSOCIATES, INC. / LA RESERVA PHASE I-D SUBDIVISION

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

CITY LIMITS



13
05

.6
0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 5 4- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 5 3- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 5 2- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 5 1- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 5 0- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 4 9- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 4 8- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 4 7- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 2 8- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 2 7- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 2 6- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 2 5- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 2 4- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 2 3- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 2 2- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 2 1- 0 0
E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 2 0- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 1 9- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 1 8- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 1 7- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 1 6- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 1 5- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 1 4- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 1 3- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 1 2- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 11 - 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 1 0- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 0 9- 0 0

12
5

.0
0'

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 3 0- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 2 9- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 7 9- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 7 8- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 7 7- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 7 6- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 7 5- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 7 4- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 7 3- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 7 2- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 7 1- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 8 0- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 0 6- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 0 5- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 0 4- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 0 3- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 0 2- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 0 1- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 2 0 0- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 9 9- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 9 8- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 9 7- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 9 6- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 9 5- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 9 4- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 9 3- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 9 2- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 9 1- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 9 0- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 8 9- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 8 8- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 8 7- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 8 6- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 8 5- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 8 4- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 8 3- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 8 2- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 8 1- 0 0
E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 0 0 A -0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 0 0- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 0 1- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 0 2- 0 0
E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 0 3- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 0 4- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 0 5- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 0 6- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 0 7- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 0 8- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 0 9- 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 11 0 - 0 0 E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 11 1 - 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 11 2 - 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 11 3 - 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 11 4 - 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 11 5 - 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 11 6 - 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 2 1- 0 0E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 1 2 0- 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 11 7 - 0 0

E 8 25 0 - 0 2 -0 0 0 - 0 11 9 - 0 0

13
5

.0
0'

11
0.

0
3'

348 .50'

348 .50' 80.7 0'80.7 0'80.7 0' 80.7 0'80.7 0'80.7 0'80.7 0' 80.7 0'80.7 0' 80.7 0' 80.7 0' 44.0 5'

39.9 5' 87.2 0'

27
0

.0
3'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

19
0

.3
6'

128 0.25 '

128 0.25 '

100 .00'

34
3

.7
8'

39
3

.7
8'

39
3

.7
8'

105 .25'102 .50'102 .50'102 .50'102 .50'102 .50'102 .50'102 .50'102 .50'102 .50'102 .50'150 .00'

25
0

.0
0'

25
0

.0
0'

27
0

.7
2'

174 .40' 119.5 0'87.2 0'87.2 0'87.2 0'87.2 0'87.2 0'87.2 0'87.2 0'87.2 0'87.2 0'87.2 0'87.2 0'87.2 0'87.2 0'87.2 0'87.2 0'87.2 0'87.2 0'87.2 0'

10
0

.0
0'

323 .50'

348 .50'

348 .50'

12
5

.0
0'

12
5

.0
0'

12
5

.0
0'

13
5

.3
6'

128 0.25 '

128 0.25 '

15
9

.1
4'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

128 0.25 '

128 0.25 '

128 0.25 '

120 .02'

51
5

.2
8'

170 .02'100 .93'100 .93'100 .93'100 .93'100 .93'100 .93' 100 .93'100 .93'100 .93'100 .93'100 .93'

56
5

.2
8'

56
5

.2
8'

56
5

.2
8'

39
3

.7
8'

39
3

.7
8'

103 .00'108 .25'

19
0

.3
6'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

128 0.25 '

128 0.25 '

77
.9

2'

12
7

.9
2'

12
7

.9
3'

12
7

.9
3'

106 9.00 '

106 9.00 '

3R
D

 S
TR

EE
T

DAVIS ROAD

194

195

196

197

198

199

200

201

202

203

193 192

190191 187188189

180

179

178

177

176

175

174

173

172

171

204

205

206

251252254 253 250 247248 246249

230

229

228227226225223222 224221219 220218217216215214213212211210209

186 185 184 183 182 181 A

100 101 102 103 104 105 106 108107 109 110 111

112

113

114

115

116

122121120119

118

117

101 9.00 '

EVERGREEN VALLEY ESTATES PH 2

M5500-00-090-0005-05

E8 250 -0 1-0 00 -0 067 -0 0

E8 250 -0 1-0 00 -0 066 -0 0

E8 250 -0 1-0 00 -0 065 -0 0

E8 250 -0 1-0 00 -0 064 -0 0

E8 250 -0 1-0 00 -0 063 -0 0

E8 250 -0 1-0 00 -0 062 -0 0

E8 250 -0 1-0 00 -0 061 -0 0

E8 250 -0 1-0 00 -0 060 -0 0

E8 250 -0 1-0 00 -0 059 -0 0

E8 250 -0 1-0 00 -0 058 -0 0

E8 250 -0 1-0 00 -0 057 -0 0

E8 250 -0 1-0 00 -0 056 -0 0 E8 250 -0 1-0 00 -0 055 -0 0 E8 250 -0 1-0 00 -0 054 -0 0 E8 250 -0 1-0 00 -0 053 -0 0
E8 250 -0 1-0 00 -0 052 -0 0 E8 250 -0 1-0 00 -0 050 -0 0

BL K 90

67

66

65

64

63

62

61

60

59

58

57

56 55 54 53 52 50

169 .50'169 .50'113.0 0'113.0 0'113.0 0'

39
3

.7
8'

144 .15'

17
1

.5
0'

127 0.25 '

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

127 0.25 '

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

17
1

.5
0'

LOT  1,
N.W.  CORNER

EVERGREEN VALLEY ESTATES PHASE I

D3800-01-000-0126-08

D3800-01-000-0021-00

57

58

123 119

12
5

12
0

12
6

12
1

12
7

12
2

12
4

23

22

21

73

11

14

12

13

5

4

6

3

7

2

8

1

PA V O
R E A L  L N

M I L E  2 0  N

UR
ES

TI
 S

T

®
1 in = 500 ft

SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:

HALFF ASSOCIATES, INC. / LA RESERVA PHASE I-D SUBDIVISION

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

CITY LIMITS







Date Prepared : 

  Application P&Z  City  

  Filed: Final: Council:  
 

Reviewed 365  Days Expires : January 10, 2023

By: 0  Days Expires 1:   
0  Days Expires 2:  

 Director of Planning & Zoning : Kimberly A. Mendoza Email : kmendosa@cityofedinburg.com City Office :  (956) 388-8202

 Director of Utilities Arturo Martinez Email : amartinez@cityofedinburg.com City Office :  (956) 388-8212

 Dircetor of Public Works Vincent Romero Email : layala@cityofedinburg.com City Office :  (956) 388-8210

 Director of Engineering Mardoqueo Hinojosa, P.E., CPM Email : mhinojosa@cityofedinburg.com City Office :  (956) 388-8211

 P
ro

vi
de

d

N
ee

d 
to

 
Pr

ov
id

e

N
ot

 
A

pp
lic

ab
le

N
ee

d 
to

 
R

ev
is

e

  Subdivision Process:
√  Date : 
√  
√  

 Drainage Report Submittal (As Per City Drainage Policy) √  Date:  
 Zoning : City Limits - Residential √   
 Flood Zone √  

  Preliminary Submittals:  
√  
√  
√   
  √
√   
√  
√  

 Variances Appeals Request:  Results City Council Meeting
  √   
   √   
  √   
  Construction Plans Review Submittals:
 Cover Sheet √   
 Topography Sheet (Utilities, Bench Marks) √   
 Sanitary Sewer Improvements: On-Site & Off-Site √   
 Sanitary Sewer Detail Sheets √   
 Water Distribution Improvements: On-Site & Off-Site √   
 Water Distribution Detail Sheet √   

 √
 Drainage Detail Sheets  √
 Minor/Major Collector Streets Improvements:   √
 Street Sign Sheet:   √
 Street Detail Sheets   √
 Street Lighting Sheet: √  
 Traffic Control Plan: √  
 Erosion Control Plan √  
 Erosion Control Plan Detail Sheet √  
LA RESERVA I-D SUBDIVISION Page 1  of  2 

PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT
 

SUBDIVISION WITHIN CITY LIMITS CHECK LIST PRELIMINARY STAGE
  ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT (956) 388-8211 SUBDIVISION PROCESS February 2, 2022

Staff Review : January 20, 2022 Time Line :

Abel Beltran, Subd. Coor. Staff / Engineer : January 27, 2022  1st Extension :

P&Z  

January 10, 2022 Preliminary: February 8, 2022 March 1, 2022

LA RESERVA SUBDIVISION PHASE I-D Consultant : HALFF Associates, Inc.

DESCRIPTION COMMENTS

 Subdivision Plat Submittal May 4, 2021

abeltran@cityofedinburg.com 2nd Extension :

Owner: William A. Schwarz, Member 900 E. Lakeshore Drive, McAllen, TX. Raul Garcia, JR., P.E., Project Engineer

  Zone "X" (Shaded)

 Existing & Proposed Water Distribution Layout  North Alamo Water Supply Corporation - Distribution System
 Water Distribution System Provider:  North Alamo Water Supply Corporation - Distribution System
 Existing & Proposed Sewer Collection Layout  City of Edinburg Sanitary Sewer Collection System

 Warranty Deed  
 Topography Survey  

 Approved by H.C.D.D.#1
 

 Minor / Major Collector Street pavement Section  Street Section of 0-ft Back-Back

 Planning & Zoning Meeting
 
 
 

 Sanitary Sewer Collection System Provider:  
 Existing and Proposed Drainage Layout System:  Hidalgo County Drainage District # 1
 MPO Collector / Arterial Right-of-way Dedication  Right-of-Way Dedication as per MPO requiremenets (0-Feet)

 North Alamo Water Supply Corporation Standard Policys
 Drainage Improvements:

 See Section 1 Drainage Policy, 2014 Standard Policy Manual
 See Section 2 Streets Policy, 2014 Standard Policy Manual

 See Section 2 Streets Policy, 2014 Standard Policy Manual

(See Section 4 Construction Plans Submittals Policy, 2014 STANDARD POLICY MANUAL)

 County of Hidalgo Offsite Septic System Faciality
 County of Hidalgo Offsite Septic System Faciality
 North Alamo Water Supply Corporation Standard Policys

 
 See Storm Water Management, 2014 Standard Policy Manual

ALL REQUIRED FEES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT RECORDING STAGE



 P
ro

vi
de

d

N
ee

d 
to

 
Pr

ov
id

e

N
ot

 
A

pp
lic

ab
le

N
ee

d 
to

 
R

ev
is

e

Pre-Construction Meeting:

 Notice To Proceed √   Dated:

 Roadway Open-Cut or Bore Permit Application √   Dated:

 TX-Dot Water UIR Permit   √ Dated:

 TX-Dot Sewer UIR Permit   √ Dated:

 N.O.I. Submittal √  Dated:

 SWPP Booklet Submittal √  Dated:

 RFI #1 Request √  Dated:

 Change Orders √  Dated:

 Final Walk Though √  Dated:

 Punch List √  Dated:

 Punch List (Completed and Approved) √  Dated:

 Letter of Acceptance √  Dated:

 1-year Warranty (Water/Sewer/Paving/Drainage) √  Dated:

 Backfill Testing Results √  Dated:

 As-Builts (Revised Original Submittal) √  Dated:

  Recording Process:   

 Public Improvements with (Letter of Credit)   √  Dated: Expires:  

 Recording Fees (Copy of Receipt)  √  
 Copy of H.C.D.D. #1 of PAID invoice  √  

 √  0 EA. @ -$                             

 √  0 EA. @ -$                             

 S/W Escrow (Uresti & Mile 20 Road)  √  0 LF @ 25.00$                         

   

 Total Developer's  Construction Cost: (Letter of Credit)   √  Date : Lender :

 Laboratory Testing Fee: 3%  √  Estimated Construction Cost

 Inspection Fee: 2%   √  Final Construction Cost

 Park Land Fees: Within City ETJ  √  0 Lots @ -$           

6 Residential 300.00$              √  50% Development 50% Building Stage

0 Multi-Family -$                    √ 0% Development 0% Building Stage

 Total Water Rights Fees : NAWSC - CCN  √  6.39 Acre(s) 2,896.81$                    
 Water 30-year Letter NAWSC - CCN  √  12 Lots @ -$           NAWSC WATER-CCN  

 Sewer 30-year Letter COE - CCN  √  12 Lots @ -$           OSSF SEPTIC SYSTEM  

TOTAL OF FEES:   
  Reimbursements:  
 Developer Sewer Improvements  √   Off-Site System: 0.00 AC -$                             
 Developer Water Improvements  √   Off-Site System 0.00 AC -$                             
 Developer Drainage Improvements  √   Off-Site System 0.00 TOTAL -$                             

TOTAL OF REINBURSEMENTS: 
  Buyouts:
 North Alamo Water Supply Corporation √  Not Applicable
 Sharyland Water Supply Corporation √  Not Applicable

 
 County of Hidalgo / School District √
 Water District √  Hidalgo County Irrigation District # 2
  Total of Escrows, Fees, Reimbursements and Buyouts:

 Escrows   Street & Sidewalk Improvements for Russell Road

 Inspections other Fees   Parkland Fees, Water/Sewer 30-year Agreement/Water Rights

 Reimbursements

City of Edinburg 0%

To the Developer of Record 0%

 Buyouts  

TOTAL :  Developer Total Cost of Fees, Escrows, Reimbursements &  Buyouts
LA RESERVA I-D SUBDIVISION Page 2 of 2   

 

 

 

 

 

DESCRIPTION COMMENTS

 

 

 

 

106.00$                      As required by County Clerks office

250.00$                      Required to be paid prior to Final Stages

 

 

 

 

 

 

-$                          Required:

  TOTAL OF ESCROWS: -$                           

 Street Light Escrow -$                          Required:

 Fire Hydrant Escrow -$                          Required:

RGRWA 2020 Fees :
-$                          

-$                          

-$                          -$                                          

-$                          -$                                          

-$                           

1,800.00$                 

-$                          
-$                          
-$                          
-$                          

  Tax Certificates

1,800.00$                 

-$                          

-$                          

-$                                          Payable to the Developer of Record Owner / Developer

-$                                        

1,800.00$                               
ALL REQUIRED FEES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT RECORDING STAGE

-$                                        

1,800.00$                               

-$                                          Riembursement to the Developer of Subdivision

-$                                          Payable to the City of Edinburg for Administrative Fee



 

 
415 W. University Drive  •  Edinburg, Texas 78539  •  Phone (956) 388-8202 Fax 292-2080 

www.cityofedinburg.com 

STAFF REPORT:  LOS LAGOS SUBDIVISION PHASE V – “B”,  

Prepared on:    January 30, 2022 
Planning and Zoning Meeting: February 8, 2022 
Agenda Item: 10A   Final Plat 
 

Subject:   Consider the Final Plat for LOS LAGOS SUBDIVISION PHASE V – “B”, being a 15.90 
acre tract of land more or less out of Lot 1, Swearengen Tract, located at 3707 East Mallorca 
Drive, as requested by Rio Delta Engineering 

Location:   The property is located 3,720 ft. north of East Canton Road, approximately 4,025 ft. 
east of South Raul Longoria Road (FM 1426). 

Zoning:   This property is located within the City Limits and is zoned Auto Urban Residential 
with Setbacks of 20-ft Front, 6-ft Side, & 20-ft. Rear, or greater for easements.  

Analysis: The Preliminary Plat was approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission on May 
8, 2020 for a single family residential development with 74 lots averaging 
approximately 6,853 square feet per lot.  

Utilities: Water Distribution System is within North Alamo Water Supply Corporation – CCN 
and Sanitary Sewer Collection System is served by the City of Edinburg. All utility 
improvements within the proposed subdivision that are not limited to water, sewer, 
curb & gutter, fire hydrants, storm drain inlets, and pavement will be installed by the 
developer in accordance with the City of Edinburg’s Unified Development Code and 
approved 2014 Standards Manual.  

 

Recommendations:    

City of Edinburg  
Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat, subject to compliance with the Unified Development 
Code, accepted cost estimates by the City of Edinburg, and the financial guarantee for the completion 
of the subdivision improvements prior to recording the subdivision plat. Financial Guarantee will be 
released upon completion and acceptance of public improvements. 



1
+

 
0
0

0
+

 
0
0

11+ 00

8+ 00

6

9+ 00

10+ 00

12+ 44

12+ 00

91
7150 SF

92
7150 SF

93
7150 SF

94
7150 SF

95
7150 SF

96
7150 SF

97
6913 SF

100
6000 SF

107
6400 SF

108
6000 SF

110
6000 SF

111
6000 SF

112
6500 SF

113
6000 SF

123
6000 SF

118
6000 SF

117
6000 SF

116
6000 SF

106
6400 SF

109
6000 SF

122
6000 SF

121
6000 SF

120
6000 SF

119
6000 SF

99
6000 SF

114
6000 SF

105
6000 SF

101
6500 SF

102
6000 SF

103
6000 SF

104
6000 SF

1
3
3

6
2

4
5

 
S

F

1
3
4

6
2

3
0

 
S

F

1
3
5

6
2

1
4

 
S

F

1
3
6

6
9

6
9

 
S

F

1
3
7

6
6

0
0

 
S

F

1
3
8

6
6

0
0

 
S

F

1
3
9

6
6

0
0

 
S

F

1
4
0

6
8

5
2

 
S

F

141
6986 SF

142
6950 SF

1
4
3

8
5

9
2

 
S

F

1
4
4

8
8

1
3

 
S

F

1
4
5

8
8

2
9

 
S

F

1
4
6

8
5

9
0

 
S

F

147
6950 SF

154
7200 SF

153
6850 SF

152
6850 SF

151
6850 SF

150
6850 SF

149
6860 SF

1
3
1

6
2

7
5

 
S

F

1
3
2

6
2

6
0

 
S

F

1
2
6

6
3

5
3

 
S

F

1
2
7

6
3

3
8

 
S

F

1
2
8

6
3

2
3

 
S

F

1
2
9

6
3

0
8

 
S

F

1
5
7

8
3

9
4

 
S

F

1
5
8

7
8

3
5

 
S

F

1
5
9

7
8

5
0

 
S

F

1
6
0

7
7

5
0

 
S

F

1
6
1

7
7

6
5

 
S

F

1
6
2

7
7

8
0

 
S

F

1
6
3

7
7

9
5

 
S

F

1
6
4

7
7

5
6

 
S

F

98
7829 SF

115
7902 SF

124
7780 SF1

5
5

8
0

3
6

 
S

F

148
6965 SF

N
6
° 0

0
' 4

2
"E

4
0
0
.9

5
'

N
9
° 3

6
' 5

5
"E

5
4
.7

0
'

N81° 04' 57"W
573.13'

N
8
° 4

3
' 0

1
"E

5
9
5
.8

9
'

N83° 59' 18"W
110.00'

N89° 02' 41"W

83.47'
N80° 51' 29"W

171.72'
S89° 39' 47"W

75.17'
N80° 51' 29"W

100.00'

S81° 23' 50"E
405.00'

S
8
° 4

3
' 0

1
"W

3
1
4
.1

5
'

S81° 31' 02"E
730.04'

S
9
° 0

8
' 3

1
"W

7
1
6
.4

7
'

1
2
5

7
1

2
2

 
S

F

1
3
0

6
9

9
4

 
S

F

1
5
6

7
8

0
2

 
S

F

L
O

S
  L

A
G

O
S

  P
H

A
S

E
  V

 S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

 - "B
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LUMEN SUBDIVISION PHASE B DOC.# 2844940 H.C.M.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MALLORCA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIPLOMAT  DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TROPHY  DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF EDINBURG DOC.# 736134 O.R.H.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRRIGATION STAND PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRRIGATION STAND PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 1132.00 L.F. IRRIGATION PIPE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING H.C.I.D. #2  24" IRRIGATION PIPE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORONHA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORONHA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALDIVIA  DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MENORCA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOS LAGOS PHASE V SUBDIVISION - A DOC. #_________ M.R.H.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IDEA PUBLIC SCHOOLS S.W.D. DOCUMENT No. 2943159 H.C.O.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IDEA PUBLIC SCHOOLS S.W.D. DOCUMENT No. 2943159 H.C.O.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LUMEN SUBDIVISION PHASE B DOC.# 2844940 H.C.M.R.



S E T O N  S
T

DI
PL

O
M

AT
 D

R

P R O V I D E N C E  D
R

ST
RE

ET
P

S T
R E

E T
L

L I
N K

S  
D

R

L A G O
E R I E

P H Y L L I S
L N

L A G O

O N TA R I O

E  I O W A  R D

P E N P A L
S T

E  B A L I  D R

E  C U R V E  R D

E  T E X A S  R D

TR
O

PH
Y 

D
R

L U D D E N
D R

V I E W  P O I N T  D R

E  M E N O R C A  D R

S T R E E T
O

TR
O

PH
Y 

D
R

EA
G

L E
 L

A N
D I

N
G

 D
R

E  S A N T O R I N I  D R

LA GO
HU RO N

M A L L O R C A
D R

S T R E E T  M

S T R E E T  K

M A C Q U A R I E  D
R

CO
W

BO
Y 

DR

L A
G O

 H
U R

O N

L O S  L A G O S  D R

L A G O  S U P E R I O R

ST
RE

ET
 N

L O S  L A G O S  D R

L A G O  W A S H I N G T O N

M A C Q U A R I E  D R

CA
R

RA
N

ZA
 A

VE

D I
P L

O
M

AT
 D

R

E  S P R A G U E  S T

LAG O  D
E LT

O N

ST
RE

ET
 B

S T
R E

E T
 C

HE
RN

AN
DE

Z
RD

C O
U N

T Y
 R

O
A

D  
1 1

1 0

S 
DO

O
L I

T T
L E

 R
D

S 
CE

SA
R 

CH
AV

EZ
 R

D

A R L I N A  D R

®
1 in = 600 ft

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
RIO DELTA ENGINEERING - LOS LAGOS PHASE 5B

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

CITY LIMITS



Arm ando Vel is

C.O .C N O . 2009- 04- 01
ALAM O  LAN D &  SUG A R C O

N249' -W175'  LOT 1 B LK 60,

-01

A1800-00-059-0014-

15
14 -16

-15 -10
-05

-03

-10

CALEDONIA ESTATES

51504948474645

1-A

2

3

45678910111213141516171819

LOS LAGOS

PH. 3

PH. 1

PH. 4

LOS LAGOS

15
5

11
3

11
2

11
1

11
0

10
9

10
8

10
7

12
5

23
22
21

20
19
18
17
16
15

14
13
12

11
10
9
8
7
6
5
4

15
6

12
6

11
4

15
4

12
4

10
5

98

86

16
2

16
1

16
0

15
9

158

157

89

88

87

85
84

83
82

81

80
79

78
77

76
75

74
73

72
71

3

2

1

706968
67

66

65
64

63

62

61
60

15
3

15
2

15
1

15
0

14
9

14
8

14
7

14
6

14
5

14
4

14
3

14
2

14
1

14
0

13
9

13
8137

136

135

132134

131

133

128

12
3

12
2

12
1

12
0

11
9

11
8

11
7

11
6

11
5

10
6

10
4

10
3

10
2

10
1

10
0

99

97969594

92

91

93

90

C03
50

-02
-00

0-0
03

1

C0350-02-000-0032

C03
50

-02
-00

0-0
03

3

C03
50

-02
-00

0-0
03

4

C03
50

-02
-00

0-0
03

5

C03
50

-02
-00

0-0
03

0

C03
50

-02
-00

0-0
02

9

C03
50

-02
-00

0-0
02

8
C

03
50

-0
0-

00
0-

00
25

C
03

50
-0

0-
00

0-
00

24

C03
50

-00
-00

0-0
02

6

C03
50

-00
-00

0-0
02

7

C03
50

-00
-00

0-0
02

2

C03
50

-00
-00

0-0
02

3

-00

ESTEBAN RAMIREZ

CAMPOS, LEO JAVIER

JUAN & ESTER VEGA

MACARIO & HERMLINDA
RAMOS

ROSA LINDA

ROSA
PLATA

PEDRO
REYES

-22

-03

-07

-05

-20

N
IC

O
LA

S
D

AL
AC

IO
S

-1
1

-30

-03-02

-30 -10 -0021-00

-0016-05 -0017-03

T2100-00-268-0011-

T2100-00-268-0016-02

CITY OF EDINBURG

T2100-00-268-0016-00

C
ES

AR
 C

H
AV

EZ
 R

D
.

1
2

3
4

5
6 7

8

88
89

90
91

87
86

85

84

81

82

83

9
10

11
12

13
14

15

16

17

18

19

20

79
78

75
74

71

72

73
76

77
80

92

93
94

95

96
97

98

99

100

101

70

69

68
67

66
65

64
63

21
22

23 24 25 26
27

28
29

37
36 35 34

33
32

31
30

38 39 40
41

42
43

44

45

51

50
49

48
47

46

21
9 22

0

221

222
223

224
102

103
104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

62

61

60

59

58

57 56

55

54

53

52

20
9

21
0

21
1

21
2

21
3

21
4

21
5

21
6

21
7

21
8

20
8

20
7

20
6

20
5

20
4

20
3

20
2

20
1

20
0

19
9

198 179 178 159

160177180197
161176181196
162175182195
163174183194

164173184193
165172185192
166171186191
167170187190

168169188189

158 157
156

155

154
153
152
151
150
149
148
147
146
145
144

143
14214114

0
13

9
13

8
13

7
13

6
13

5
13

4
13

3
13

2
13

1
13

0
12

9
12

8
12

7
12

6
12

5
12

4
12

3
12

2
12

1
12

0
11

9
11

8
11

7
11

6
11

5
11

4
11

3

11
2

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

8

9
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

19202123242526272829 22

RINCON DEL ENCINO SUBDIVISION

12

18

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

PA
TL

AN
 S

U
BD

1

13

14
15

20

12

5

13

31

32

1

2

3

4 5

6

7

8

9 10 11

161718

2122

25

26

29 30

34
33

14

23

24

27

28

35

11

16

CALEDONIAN ESTATES No. 2

NELLE
ESTATES

CURVE AND CURRY SUBDIVISION

60

69

15 1613 14

10

11

12
70

17

5

6

7

8

58

9

4

2

3

1

20
0

.0
0'

78.5 0'

78.5 0' 90.7 5'

93.5 0'

22
5

.0
0'

22
5

.0
0'

24
0

.0
0'

78.5 0' 90.7 5'

90.7 5'

93.5 0' 90.7 5'

22
5

.0
0'

24
0

.0
0'

20
9

.7
4'

24
0

.0
0'

45.0 0'

85.0 0'80.0 0'80.0 0'

30
8

.6
2'

26
5

.0
7'

33
0

.0
0'

10
2

.3
0'

10
2

.3
0'

82
.0

0'

10
7

.0
0'

213 .00'

188 .00'

47

59

10
2

.3
0'

10
2

.3
0'

10
2

.3
0'

10
2

.3
0'

10
2

.3
0'

10
2

.3
0'

10
2

.3
0'

10
2

.3
0'

10
2

.3
0'

10
2

.3
0'

10
2

.3
0'

10
2

.3
0'

10
2

.3
0'

10
2

.3
0'

10
2

.3
0'

10
2

.3
0'

10
2

.3
0'10

2
.3

0'

10
7

.1
7'10
0

.0
0'

213 .00'

213 .00'

213 .00'

213 .00'

213 .00'

213 .00'

213 .00'

213 .00'

213 .00'

213 .00'

119.0 0'

85.0 0'

85.0 0' 85.0 0'

26
0

.0
0'

26
0

.0
0'

C6

37.5 0'

PH. B
PH. A

LUMEN SUBDIVISION51
52

53
54

55 56
57

58
59 60

61
62

63
64

65
66

67

68

69

70 71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83
84

8586
878889

90919293949596979899
100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112
113

114
115

116

117

118
119

120
121

1 2 3
4

5

67
8

9

10
11

12
13

14

15

16
17

18

19

20
21

22

23

24
25

26

27

28
29

30

31

3233

34

35

37

38

39

40

41
42

43
44

45
46

47

48

49

50

36

101102103104105 100106

S E T O N  S
T

DI
PL

O
M

AT
 D

R

P R O V I D E N C E  D
R

ST
RE

ET
P

S T
R E

E T
L

L I
N K

S  
D

R

L A G O
E R I E

P H Y L L I S
L N

L A G O

O N TA R I O

E  I O W A  R D

P E N P A L
S T

E  B A L I  D R

E  C U R V E  R D

E  T E X A S  R D

TR
O

PH
Y 

D
R

L U D D E N
D R

V I E W  P O I N T  D R

E  M E N O R C A  D R

S T R E E T
O

TR
O

PH
Y 

D
R

EA
G

L E
 L

A N
D I

N
G

 D
R

E  S A N T O R I N I  D R

LA GO
HU RO N

M A L L O R C A
D R

S T R E E T  M

S T R E E T  K

M A C Q U A R I E  D
R

CO
W

BO
Y 

DR

L A
G O

 H
U R

O N

L O S  L A G O S  D R

L A G O  S U P E R I O R

ST
RE

ET
 N

L O S  L A G O S  D R

L A G O  W A S H I N G T O N

M A C Q U A R I E  D R

CA
R

RA
N

ZA
 A

VE

D I
P L

O
M

AT
 D

R

E  S P R A G U E  S T

LAG O  D
E LT

O N

ST
RE

ET
 B

S T
R E

E T
 C

HE
RN

AN
DE

Z
RD

C O
U N

T Y
 R

O
A

D  
1 1

1 0

S 
DO

O
L I

T T
L E

 R
D

S 
CE

SA
R 

CH
AV

EZ
 R

D

A R L I N A  D R

®
1 in = 600 ft

SITE MAP
APPLICANT AND/OR SUBDIVISION:
RIO DELTA ENGINEERING - LOS LAGOS PHASE 5B

LEGEND
APPLICANT OR SUBDIVISION SITE

CITY LIMITS



 Date :

Date P&Z  City  
Filed: Final: Council:  

 
Reviewed 365  Days Expires : April 6, 2021

By: 0  Days Expires 1:  
0  Days Expires 2:  

 Director of Planning & Zoning : Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA Email :  kmendoza@cityofedinburg.com City Office #:  (956) 388-8202
 Director of Utilities Gerardo Carmona, P.E. Email : gcarmona@cityofedinburg.com City Office #:  (956) 388-8212
 Dircetor of Public Works Vincent Ayala Email : layala@cityofedinburg.com City Office #:  (956) 388-8210
 Director of Engineering Mardoqueo Hinojosa, P.E., CPM Email : mhinojosa@cityofedinburg.com City Office #:  (956) 388-8211

 P
ro

vi
de

d

N
ee

d 
to

 
Pr

ov
id

e

N
ot

 
A

pp
lic

ab
le

N
ee

d 
to

 
R

ev
is

e

  Subdivision Process:
√  Date : Recorded  
√  
√  

 Drainage Report Submittal (As Per City Drainage Policy) √  Date: Pending Approval
 Zoning : City Limits - Residential √   
 Flood Zone √  

  Preliminary Submittals:  
√  
√  
√   
√   
√   
√   
√   

 Variances Appeals Request:  Results City Council Meeting

 Street Widening Improvements  √   

 5-ft Sidewalk Improvements   √   

 Drainage Improvements  √   

  Construction Plans Review Submittals:   (See Section 4 Construction Plans Submittals Policy, 2014 STANDARD POLICY MANUAL)
 Cover Sheet √
 Topography Sheet (Utilities, Bench Marks) √
 Sanitary Sewer Improvements: On-Site & Off-Site √
 Sanitary Sewer Detail Sheets √
 Water Distribution Improvements: On-Site & Off-Site √
 Water Distribution Detail Sheet √

√
 Drainage Detail Sheets √
 Minor/Major Collector Streets Improvements: √
 Street Sign Sheet: √
 Street Detail Sheets √
 Street Lighting Sheet: √
 Traffic Control Plan: √
 Erosion Control Plan √
 Erosion Control Plan Detail Sheet √

Los Lagos 5B Subdivision Page 1  of  2 

 See Section 1 Drainage Policy, 2014 Standard Policy Manual
 See Section 2 Streets Policy, 2014 Standard Policy Manual

 See Section 2 Streets Policy, 2014 Standard Policy Manual

 
 See Storm Water Management, 2014 Standard Policy Manual

 City of Edinburg Sanitary Sewer Standard Policys
 See Section 3 Utility Policy, 2014 Standard Policy Manual
 City of Edinburg Water Supply Standard Policys
 See Section 3 Utility Policy, 2014 Standard Policy Manual

 Drainage Improvements:

 Planning & Zoning Meeting
 
 
 

 Existing and Proposed Drainage Layout System:  Hidalgo County Drainage District # 1
 MPO Collector / Arterial Right-of-way Dedication  Right-of-Way Dedication as per MPO requiremenets (0-Feet)
 Minor / Major Collector Street pavement Section  Street Section of (0-feet) Back-Back

 Water Distribution System Provider:  City of Edinburg Water Supply Corporation - Distribution System
 Existing & Proposed Sewer Collection Layout  City of Edinburg Sanitary Sewer Collection System
 Sanitary Sewer Collection System Provider:  City of Edinburg Sanitary Sewer Collection System

 
  Zone "X" (Shaded)

 Existing & Proposed Water Distribution Layout  City of Edinburg Water Supply Corporation - Distribution System

LOS LAGOS PHASE 5 SUBDIVISION (5B) Consultant : Rio Delta Engineering, Inc.

DESCRIPTION COMMENTS

 Subdivision Plat Submittal
 Warranty Deed  

Abel Beltran, Subd. Coor. Staff / Engineer : April 30, 2020  1st Extension :

Edrardo Lopez, Owner 1911 Lago Huron, Edinburg, Texas 78542

 Topography Survey  
 Approved by H.C.D.D.#1

 

 P&Z  
April 6, 2020 Preliminary: May 12, 2020

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
 

SUBDIVISION WITHIN CITY LIMITS CHECK LIST FINAL RECORDING STAGE
  ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT (956) 388-8211 SUBDIVISION PROCESS February 2, 2022

abeltran@cityofedinburg.com 2nd Extension :

Owner: Ivan Garcia, P.E., Project Engineer

 

Staff Review : April 23, 2020 Time Line :



 P
ro

vi
de

d

N
ee

d 
to

 
Pr

ov
id

e

N
ot

 
A

pp
lic

ab
le

N
ee

d 
to

 
R

ev
is

e

Pre-Construction Meeting:
 Notice To Proceed √   Dated:
 Roadway Open-Cut or Bore Permit Application √   Dated:
 TX-Dot Water UIR Permit   √ Dated:
 TX-Dot Sewer UIR Permit   √ Dated:
 N.O.I. Submittal √   Dated:
 SWPP Booklet Submittal √   Dated:
 RFI #1 Request √   Dated:
 Change Orders √   Dated:
 Final Walk Though √   Dated:
 Punch List √   Dated:
 Punch List (Completed and Approved) √   Dated:
 Letter of Acceptance √   Dated:
 1-year Warranty (Water/Sewer/Paving/Drainage) √   Dated:
 Backfill Testing Results √   Dated:
 As-Builts (Revised Original Submittal) √   Dated:

  Recording Process:   
 Public Improvements with (Letter of Credit) √    Dated: Expires:  

 Recording Fees   √
 Copy of H.C.D.D. #1 of invoice   √

 √ 0 EA. @ -$                             
  √ 0 EA. @ -$                             

 Street/Sidewalk Escrow (McColl Road)  √ 0 LF @ -$                             
 

 Total Developer's  Construction Cost: (Letter of Credit)   √  Date : Lender :

 Laboratory Testing Fee: 3% √   Estimated Construction Cost

 Inspection Fee: 2% √    Final Construction Cost

 Park Land Fees: ETJ -$                   Per Unit 0 √   

74 Residential 300.00$              √  50% Development 50% Building Stage

0 Multi-Family -$                    √ 0% Development 0% Building Stage

 Water Rights:(Buyout) COE - CCN √  Acres 2,896.81$                    

 Water 30-year Letter COE - CCN  √  74 Lots @ 325.00$      COE WATER-CCN

 Sewer 30-year Letter COE - CCN  √  74 Lots @ 65.00$        COE SEWER-CCN

TOTAL OF FEES:  

  Reimbursements:  
 Developer Sewer Improvements  √   Off-Site System: 0.00 AC -$                             
 Developer Water Improvements  √   Off-Site System 0.00 AC -$                             
 Developer Drainage Improvements  √   Off-Site System 0.00 TOTAL -$                             

TOTAL OF REINBURSEMENTS: 

  Buyouts:

 North Alamo Water Supply Corporation √  Not Applicable

 Sharyland Water Supply Corporation √  Not Applicable

 
 County of Hidalgo / School District √
 Water District √  Hidalgo County Irrigation District # 2

  Total of Escrows, Fees, Reimbursements and Buyouts:

 Escrows   Street & Sidewalk Improvements for Russell Road

 Inspections other Fees   Parkland Fees, Water/Sewer 30-year Agreement/Water Rights

 Reimbursements

City of Edinburg 15%

To the Developer of Record 85%

 Buyouts  

TOTAL :  Developer Total Cost of Fees, Escrows, Reimbursements &  Buyouts

Los Lagos 5B Subdivision Page 2 of 2   

97,119.28$                          

-$                       

  Riembursement to the Developer of Subdivision

-$                                       Payable to the City of Edinburg for Administrative Fee

-$                                       Payable to the Developer of Record Owner / Developer

-$                                     

-$                       
-$                       

-$                       

22,200.00$            

-$                       

46,059.28$            15.9

-$                                          

-$                                          

  Tax Certificates

-$                                     

97,119.28$                          

-$                                     

24,050.00$            

4,810.00$              

97,119.28$            

-$                       
-$                       

 Fire Hydrant Escrow -$                       Required:
-$                       Required:

  TOTAL OF ESCROWS: -$                       

106.00$                   As required by County Clerks office
   Required to be paid prior to Final Stages

 Street Light Escrow -$                       Required:

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DESCRIPTION COMMENTS

PENDING

 
 



 City of Edinburg 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting:  02/08/2022 

— SUBDIVISION VARIANCE — 
Agenda Item No: 11A 

LOS CORTIJOS SUBDIVISION 

1. Agenda Item: 
Consider Variance Request to the City's Unified Development Code Section 8.204 Street 
Standards, Paving Width, proposed Los Cortijos Subdivision, being 60.00 acres out of the East 
1/2 of Lot 13, Block 57, all of Lot 16, Block 58, Alamo Land and Sugar Company's 
Subdivision, located at 7601 East Trenton Road, as requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc. on behalf 
of Frank Villanueva and Abigail Villanueva Sandoval. 

Description/Scope:  Los Cortijos Subdivision is located on the north side of East Trenton Road, 
approximately 2,000 ft. east of South Tower Road and is within the City of Edinburg’s extra 
territorial jurisdiction (ETJ), approximately 2.8 miles from the easternmost City Limit. The 
60.00 acre tract is currently vacant and is proposed for a single-family residential development 
consisting of 262 lots. The plat received preliminary approval by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission on December 14, 2021.  Mr. Mario Reyna, P.E., on behalf of the developer is 
requesting a variance to the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC) for this development. 

Variance Request: Section 8.204 Street Standards, Paving Width 
This variance is to the required paving width for East Trenton Road.  
According to UDC Section 8.204, Street Standards, a principal arterial street is required to 
have 60 ft. of right-of-way (ROW) from centerline (for a total street ROW of 120 ft.) with a 
pavement section of 81 ft. back-to-back.  The developer is proposing to comply with the ROW 
dedication, but to have the pavement section reduced to 46 ft. The existing road has 22 ft. back-
to-back pavement; the additional width required to meet UDC standards is 29.5 feet. The 
developer proposes to widen only 12 feet, which is 17.5 feet (59.32%) less than required. The 
proposed street pavement section does not conform to the requirements of the UDC for a 
principal arterial street development. If approved, the developer will still provide sidewalks 
along East Trenton Road.  

2. Staff’s Recommendation:  Staff recommends compliance with the minimum arterial street 
standards of 120 ft. ROW and a pavement section of 81 ft. back to back paving. Should the 
developer not provide the required street widening, the appropriate fee in lieu should be paid, 
in accordance with the UDC Section 7.502.C Streets and Rights of Way; Perimeter Streets; 
Pavement or Fee in Lieu Required. 



If the developer receives variance, it would cost the City approximately $290,854 to pave the 
remaining required width in the future (40.5 ft. from centerline, 17.5 ft. of additional pavement 
only) based on current unit price.  

3. Reason for Request: 
The developer has indicated that the basis for the request is due to safety concerns. 

 

Prepared by: Approved by: 
Adan Elizondo, MPA Kimberly Mendoza, MPA 
Planner I Director of Planning and Zoning 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
Unified Development Code 8.204 Street Standards 
Unified Development Code 7.502.C Streets and Rights of Way; Perimeter Streets; Pavement or Fee in Lieu Required 
Aerial Photo 
Site Map 
Reduced Plat  
  



Sec. 8.204 Street Standards 
A. Streets. The standards in Table 8.204, Street Standards, shall govern all street construction, except with regard to 

State highways, which shall meet Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) specifications.  

Table 8.204 
Street Standards1 

Right-of-way Width Paving Width2 Paving Sections 
Escrow 

50 ft. (w/5 ft. U.E.) Minor (60 ft. with 
street trees) 32 ft. B-B 8-inch Caliche 

2-inch HMAC 

60 ft. Residential Collector3 43 ft. 
2 lanes (+) 2 park (+) C&G4 

8-inch Caliche 
2-inch HMAC 

80 ft. Collector 
57 ft. B-B 

2 lanes (1 OL) (+) 2 park (+) 
C&G 

10-inch Caliche 
2-inch HMAC 

100 ft. Minor Arterial 65 ft. B-B 
5 lanes (1CL) (+) C&G 

12-inch Caliche 
3-inch HMAC 

120 ft. Arterial 
81 ft. B-B 

5 lanes (1CL) (+) 2 park (+) 
C&G 1 side 

12-inch Caliche 
3-inch HMAC 

1 Source: City Standards Manual, Section II-3. 
2 Travel lanes are 12 ft. wide and parking lanes ("park") are 8 ft. wide. Continuous Left (CL) 
and Occasional Left (OL) lanes are 14 ft. wide. 
3 Multi-family subdivisions shall be required to comply with residential collector street 
standards. 
4 C&G means 1.5 ft. wide curb and gutter on each side of the street. 

B. Adjustments. The City shall, where feasible, require the street's design to minimize the disturbance of natural 
resources, including floodplains. Where additional right-of-way is needed to obtain vertical curve, grade, clear sight 
triangles, turn lanes, or medians, the required right-of-way shall be adjusted to the extent necessary in accordance 
with local needs as determined by the Planning and Engineering Departments. 

C. Half Streets Prohibited. No half-streets shall be permitted in new subdivision plats. 

  

http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/edinburg-tx/doc-viewer.aspx?ajax=0&tocid=008.002.004


ARTICLE 7 PLAT AND SITE PLAN DESIGN 

DIVISION 7.500 DEDICATION OF LAND AND IMPROVEMENTS; FEES IN 
LIEU 

Sec. 7.502 Streets and Rights of Way 
A. Within Proposed Development. Streets, alleys, and other rights-of-way within proposed development shall be 

appropriately dedicated for the purposes they are intended to serve. 

B. Perimeter Streets; Dedication. Where the proposed subdivision abuts upon an existing street or half-street that 
does not conform to the right-of-way standards of Division 8.200, Streets, Sidewalks, and Trails, or to an adopted 
thoroughfare plan, whichever provides for a wider pavement section, the subdivider shall dedicate right-of-way 
width sufficient to make the full right-of-way width conform to such Division. 

C. Perimeter Streets; Pavement or Fee in Lieu Required. 

1. The subdivider shall pave so much of the dedicated right-of-way as to make the full pavement width comply 
with Division 8.200, Streets, Sidewalks, and Trails, or an adopted thoroughfare plan, whichever provides for a 
wider pavement section. Before any pavement is laid to widen existing pavement, the existing pavement shall 
be cut back two feet to assure an adequate sub-base and pavement joint. Pavement shall be installed according 
to specifications promulgated by the City Engineer. 

2. Alternatively, if the length of the perimeter street is less than 1/4 mile or its improvement at the time of 
subdivision would in the City Engineer's professional opinion create a traffic safety hazard because it does not 
create a complete widened street segment between off-site street intersections, then the subdivider shall 
deposit with the City an amount equal to the cost of the improvement required by C1 above so that the City can 
make the improvement when sufficient right-of-way is dedicated from adjacent properties to do so in manner 
that is safe and practical for motorists. Amounts deposited pursuant to this Section shall be kept in segregated 
accounts and shall be subject to the reimbursement provisions of Section 7.506.C.1. Requests for 
reimbursement shall be made to the Administrator, shall be reviewed by the City Engineer, and forwarded to 
the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council for review and action on the request. 

 

 

http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/edinburg-tx/doc-viewer.aspx?ajax=0&tocid=008.002
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/edinburg-tx/doc-viewer.aspx?ajax=0&tocid=008.002
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/edinburg-tx/doc-viewer.aspx?ajax=0&tocid=007.005.006


E  T R E N T O N  R D

C O L E  D R

JA
M

 S
Q

 W

JA
M

 S
Q

 E

LO
DA

 L
N

C H A M P A G N E
D R

M A G D A L E N A  C I R  S

E  W I S C O N S I N  R D

PA
YT

O
N

AV
E

SA
N

 J
O

SE
 A

VE

G
RI

ZZ
LY

 L
N

M
AG

DA
L E

N
A  

C
I R

 E

E S
P E

R A
N Z

A  
D R

D E B B Y  A V E

J E S S I C A  L N

B U C K L E S  B L V D

J A M  S Q  N

CA
RL

 S
T

HA
VE

N
 L

N

AERIAL MAP
APPLICANT/SUBDIVISION: LOS CORT IJOS SUBDIVISION
CASE CAPTION:
C o n s i d e r  V a r i a n c e  R e q u e s t  t o  t h e  C i t y ' s  U n i f i e d  D e v e l o p m e n t  C o d e  
S e c t i o n  8 . 2 0 4  S t r e e t  S t a n d a r d s ,  P a v i n g  W i d t h ,  p r o p o s e d  L o s  C o r t i j o s  
S u b d i v i s i o n ,  b e i n g  6 0 . 0 0  a c r e s  o u t  o f  t h e  e a s t  h a l f  o f  L o t  1 3 ,  B l o c k  5 7 ,  
a l l  o f  L o t  1 6 ,  B l o c k  5 8 ,  A l a m o  L a n d  a n d  S u g a r  C o m p a n y ' s  S u b d i v i s i o n ,  
l o c a t e d  a t  7 6 0 1  E a s t  T r e n t o n  R o a d ,  a s  r e q u e s t e d  b y  M e l d e n  &  H u n t ,  I n c .  
o n  b e h a l f  o f  F r a n k  V i l l a n u e v a  a n d  A b i g a i l  V i l l a n u e v a  S a n d o v a l .

LEGEND

APPLICANT  SIT E

®
1 in = 600 ft

CIT Y LIMIT S



TRENTON RD.

7

15

10

2

7

8

9

16

1

8

5

12

13

2

5

6

11

3

6

1

2

3

4

5

6

TO
WE
R 
ES
TA
TE
S

10

9

8
7

6

5

15

14
13

12

11

ALBERTA PLACE
SUBDIVISION

14

4

3

2

1 20

19

18

17

16

E  T R E N T O N  R D

C O L E  D R

JA
M

 S
Q

 W

JA
M

 S
Q

 E

LO
DA

 L
N

C H A M P A G N E
D R

M A G D A L E N A  C I R  S

E  W I S C O N S I N  R D

PA
YT

O
N

AV
E

SA
N

 J
O

SE
 A

VE

G
RI

ZZ
LY

 L
N

M
AG

DA
L E

N
A  

C
I R

 E

E S
P E

R A
N Z

A  
D R

D E B B Y  A V E

J E S S I C A  L N

B U C K L E S  B L V D

J A M  S Q  N

CA
RL

 S
T

HA
VE

N
 L

N

SITE MAP
APPLICANT/SUBDIVISION: LOS CORTIJOS SUBDIVISION
CASE CAPTION:
C o n s i d e r  V a r i a n c e  R e q u e s t  t o  t h e  C i t y ' s  U n i f i e d  D e v e l o p m e n t  C o d e  
S e c t i o n  8 . 2 0 4  S t r e e t  S t a n d a r d s ,  P a v i n g  W i d t h ,  p r o p o s e d  L o s  C o r t i j o s  
S u b d i v i s i o n ,  b e i n g  6 0 . 0 0  a c r e s  o u t  o f  t h e  e a s t  h a l f  o f  L o t  1 3 ,  B l o c k  5 7 ,  
a l l  o f  L o t  1 6 ,  B l o c k  5 8 ,  A l a m o  L a n d  a n d  S u g a r  C o m p a n y ' s  S u b d i v i s i o n ,  
l o c a t e d  a t  7 6 0 1  E a s t  T r e n t o n  R o a d ,  a s  r e q u e s t e d  b y  M e l d e n  &  H u n t ,  I n c .  
o n  b e h a l f  o f  F r a n k  V i l l a n u e v a  a n d  A b i g a i l  V i l l a n u e v a  S a n d o v a l .

LEGEND

SUBDIVISION SITE

®
1 in = 600 ft

CITY LIMITS



SCALE:1"=100'

  LR ER

E
N

FO I CESS I O

D

NG
N S E

AL E
I N

E

MARIO A. REYNA
117368P

STATE XOF TE AS

TEXAS REGISTRATION F-1435
MELDEN & HUNT, INC.

DRAWN BY: CESAR                       DATE   11-1-2021

SURVEYED, CHECKED                 DATE                     

FINAL CHECK                                DATE                      

HIDALGO COUNTY MAP RECORDSH.C.M.R. -
HIDALGO COUNTY OFFICIAL RECORDSH.C.O.R. -
NORTHEAST CORNERN.E. COR. -

FOUND PIPE
SET No.4 REBAR WITH PLASTIC

SET NAIL

FOUND No.4 REBAR

CAP STAMPED MELDEN & HUNT

STORM DRAIN EASEMENTS.D.E. -

BLOCK 58
LOT 13

Y:
\L

an
d 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t\R

es
id

en
tia

l\E
di

nb
ur

g\
21

21
5 

- C
ay

et
an

o 
De

v-
Lo

s C
or

tij
os

\A
ut

oc
ad

 fi
le

s\
21

21
5.

dw
g,

 1
1/

29
/2

02
1 

10
:1

2:
14

 A
M

, D
W

G 
To

 P
DF

.p
c3



SCALE:1"=100'

  

Y:
\L

an
d 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t\R

es
id

en
tia

l\E
di

nb
ur

g\
21

21
5 

- C
ay

et
an

o 
De

v-
Lo

s C
or

tij
os

\A
ut

oc
ad

 fi
le

s\
21

21
5.

dw
g,

 1
1/

29
/2

02
1 

10
:1

5:
42

 A
M

, D
W

G 
To

 P
DF

.p
c3







CONTINUATION SHEET PAGE : 1 of 1

CERTIFICATE OF PROJECT PRELIMINARY ESTIMATE, containing ESTIMATE CHECK NUMBER : 1
Engineering Preliminary Estimated Quantities for Funding Purposes. PROJECT NO. : M&H ENG. 2021
  

A C D E F
 

ITEM ESTIMATED SCHEDULED ESTIMATED ESTIMATED

NO. Date: QUANTITY UNIT COST TOTAL

 (C*E)

TRENTON ROAD IMPROVEMENTS: 29.5 WIDTH 1980 LF
1  10" Subgrade Preparation 6,490 SY 4.50$              29,205.00$           

2  12" Flexible Caliche Base Material 6,490 SY 15.50$            100,595.00$         

3  2" Hot Mix Asphalt Material 6,490 SY 12.00$            77,880.00$           

4  24-inch Concrete Curb & Gutter 1,836 LF 19.00$            34,884.00$           
 

5 RC-3 TAC COAT  6,490 SY 2.00$              12,980.00$           
 

6  5-foot Concrete Sidewalk  1,836 LF 25.00$            45,900.00$           
 

7  6-foot Conc. Valley Gutter 104 LF 30.00$            3,120.00$             

8 5-foot ADA Ramps 4 EA 850.00$          3,400.00$             

8 30" RCP Storm Line 1,680 LF 64.00$            107,520.00$         

9 TY-A Storm Inlets 3 EA 3,500.00$       11,550.00$           
  

TRENTON ROAD ESCROW ESTIMATE : 427,034.00$         

DEVELOPER PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS: 12 WIDTH
1  10" Subgrade Preparation 2,640 SY 4.50$              11,880.00$           

2  12" Flexible Caliche Base Material 2,640 SY 15.50$            40,920.00$           

3  2" Hot Mix Asphalt Material 2,640 SY 12.00$            31,680.00$           

4  24-inch Concrete Curb & Gutter 1,836 LF 19.00$            34,884.00$           
 

5  5-foot Concrete Sidewalk  1,836 LF 25.00$            45,900.00$           
 

6  6-foot Conc. Valley Gutter 104 LF 30.00$            3,120.00$             

7 5-foot ADA Ramps 4 EA 850.00$          3,400.00$             

8 30" RCP Storm Line 1,680 LF 64.00$            107,520.00$         

9 TY-A Storm Inlets 3 EA 3,500.00$       11,550.00$           
  

TRENTON ROAD DEVELOPERS PORTION : 290,854.00$         

DIFFERENCE IN ESCROW TO DEVELOPER'S PORTION : 136,180.00$    
 

ESTIMATE DOCUMENT

B
 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK

February 4, 2022
 By :  Abel Beltran, Subdivision Coordinator

 LOS CORTRIJOS SUBDIVISION - STREETS IMPROVEMENTS : Estimate of Escrow



 

 

www.cityofedinburg.com 

415 W. University Drive  •  P.O. Box 1079  •  Edinburg, Texas 78540  •  Phone (956) 388-8204   

 

 

 

 
 

City Council Actions 
Meeting Date: January 18, 2022  

 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT & REZONING: 
 
Hold Public Hearing and Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Auto Urban Uses to 
General Commercial Uses and the Rezoning Request from Suburban Residential (S) District and 
Neighborhood Conservation Manufactured Home (NC-MH) District to Commercial General (CG) 
District, being a 10.36 acre tract, more or less, out of a part of Lot 11, Section 246, Texas-Mexican 
Railway Company’s Survey, located at 1300 North Interstate 69C, as requested by Aaron Rivera 
  

 Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval on December 14, 2021 

 City Council approved on January 18, 2022 

REZONING:   
 
Hold Public Hearing and Consider the Rezoning Request from Suburban Residential (S) District to 
Commercial Neighborhood (CN) District, a 0.76 acre tract of land being a portion of Lot 5, Section 
273, Texas-Mexican Railway Company’s Survey, located at 402 North Jackson Road, as requested 
by Erica Perez 
 

 Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval on December 14, 2021 

 City Council approved on January 18, 2022 
 
Hold Public Hearing and Consider the Rezoning Request from Suburban Residential (S) District to 
Auto-Urban Residential (AU) District, a 1.00 acre tract of land, being a portion of the North 5.00 
acres of Lot 10, Section 244, Texas-Mexican Railway Company’s Survey, located at 424 East Rogers 
Road, as requested by Berta A. Salazar 

 Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval on December 14, 2021 

 City Council approved on January 18, 2022 

 
VARIANCE:   
 
Consider Variance Requests to the City’s Unified Development Code:  1) Section 7.404B Blocks 
and Block Length and 2) Section 8.204 Street Standards, proposed Citrus Gardens Subdivision, Lot 
13, Block 3, Santa Cruz Gardens Unit No. 2, located at 2705 East Davis Road, as requested by RO 
Engineering, PLLC 

 Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval of Variance Request #1 

and recommended disapproval of Variance Request #2 on December 14, 2021 

 City Council approved on January 18, 2022 per Planning & Zoning 

recommendation 



   
 
Consider Variance Requests to the City’s Unified Development Code:  1) Section 7.404B Blocks 

and Block Length, 2) Section 8.204 Street Standards, and 3) Section 11.504A (1) Existing Stubs, 

proposed Cole Crossing Subdivision, being an 18.00 acre tract of land out of Lots 12 & 13, Block 

35, Santa Cruz Gardens Unit No. 2, located at 2201 East Ramseyer Road, as requested by SDI 

Engineering, LLC 

 Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval of Variance Request #1, 

disapproval of Variance Request #2, and approval of Variance Request #3 on 

December 14, 2021 

 City Council approved on January 18, 2022 per Planning & Zoning 

recommendation 

Consider Variance Request to the City’s Unified Development Code:  Section 8.204, Street 

Standards, proposed Azaleas Estates Subdivision, being a 30.0 acre tract of land consisting 

of all of Lots 20, 21, and 22, Caledonian Estates Subdivision, located at 3701 East Curve 

Road, as requested by Salinas Engineering & Associates 

 Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval on December 14, 2021 

 City Council approved on January 18, 2022  

ANNEXATION: 
 
Consider the Petition providing for the Voluntary Annexation of a 29.87 acre tract of land 
consisting of 26.80 acres out of Lot 14, Block 1, John Closner Et. Al. Subdivision, and a strip 
of land 80 ft. wide, being all of the existing road right-of-way of South Raul Longoria Road, 
located at 4700 South Raul Longoria Road, as requested by Ramon & Berta Estevis 

 City Council approved on January 18, 2022 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT: 
 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a Development Agreement between 
the City of Edinburg and Ramon & Berta Estevis, pursuant to Section 212.172 of the Texas 
Local Government Code, for a 26.80 acre tract of land out of Lot 14, Block 1, John Closner 
Et. Al. Subdivision, located at 4700 South Raul Longoria Road, as requested by Ramon & 
Berta Estevis.    

 City Council approved on January 18, 2022 



 

 

www.cityofedinburg.com 

415 W. University Drive  •  P.O. Box 1079  •  Edinburg, Texas 78540  •  Phone (956) 388-8204   

 

 

 

 
 

City Council Actions 
Meeting Date: February 1, 2022  

 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT & REZONING: 
 

Hold Public Hearing and Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Auto Urban 
Uses to General Commercial Uses and the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) District 
to Commercial General (CG) District, being a 4.349 acre tract of land out of Lots 31 & 32, 
The M.L. Woods Co. Tract No. 4, located at 4513 South Veterans Boulevard, as requested 
by Melden & Hunt, Inc. 
 

 Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval on January 17, 2022 

 City Council approved on February 1, 2022 
 

REZONING:   
 

Hold Public Hearing and Consider the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) District to 

Commercial General (CG) District, being a 1.00 acre tract of land out of Lot 71, Kelly-Pharr 

Subdivision, located at 1415 West Owassa Road, as requested by Jaime Cantu 

 Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval on January 17, 2022 

 City Council approved on February 1, 2022 

 
Hold Public Hearing and Consider the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) District to 

Auto-Urban Residential (AU) District, being a 12.605 acre tract of land out of Lots 31 & 

32, The M.L. Woods Co. Tract No. 4, located at 4801 South Veterans Boulevard, as 

requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc. 

• Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval on January 17, 2022 
• City Council approved on February 1, 2022 

Hold Public Hearing and Consider the Rezoning Request from Neighborhood Conservation 
7.1 (NC7.1) District to Urban Residential (UR) District, Lot 5, Block 287, Original Edinburg 
Townsite Subdivision, located at 1120 East Mahl Street, as requested by Gustavo 
Montemayor 
 
• Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval on January 17, 2022 
• City Council approved on February 1, 2022 
 
 
 
 



   
 
VARIANCE:   
 
Consider Variance Requests to the City’s Unified Development Code:  1) Section 7.404B 

Block Length, 2) Section 8.204A Street Standards, Paving Width and 3) Section 8.213 

Sidewalks, proposed La Reserva Subdivision Phase II, being an 81.74 acre tract of land out 

of Lots 3, 4, 5, 6, 11, & 12, Block 73, Engelman Resubdivision or the Missouri-Texas Land 

and Irrigation Company’s Subdivision in Las Mestenas Grant, located at 8200 East Farm 

to Market 2812, as requested by Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, Inc. 

 Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval of Variance Requests #1 

and #2, and disapproval of Variance Request #3 on January 17, 2022 

 City Council approved on February 1, 2022 per Planning & Zoning 

recommendation 

Consider Variance Requests to the City’s Unified Development Code:  1) Section 3.303 

Multi-Family Lot and Building Standards, Lot Width, 2) Section 7.404B Block Length, and 

3) Section 8.204 Street Standards, Right-of-Way Width, Paving Width, proposed North 

McColl Estates Subdivision, being 29.13 acres out of Lot 3, Section 276, Texas-Mexican 

Railway Company’s Survey, located at 501 North McColl Road, as requested by Melden & 

Hunt, Inc. 

 Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval of Variance Requests #1, 

#2 and #3 on January 17, 2022 

 City Council approved on February 1, 2022 per Planning & Zoning 

recommendation 



Planning and Zoning Commission
Attendance ‐ 2022

First Name Last Name Position Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August September October November December
Joe Ochoa Chairperson P
Hiren Govind Vice‐Chair P
Jorge Sotelo Commissioner P
Ruby Casas Commissioner P
Jorge Gonzalez Commissioner P
Victor  Daniec Commissioner P
Rene  Olivarez Commissioner P

2022


	Planning and Zoning Commission
	 Consider Excusing the Absence of Commission Member Victor Daniec from the December 14, 2021 Regular Meeting.
	 Consider approval of the Minutes for the January 17, 2022 Regular Meeting
	 Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Urban Uses to Neighborhood Commercial Uses and the Rezoning Request from Neighborhood Conservation 5 (NC5) District to Commercial Neighborhood (CN) District, Lot 1, Laurel Heights Subdivision, located at 202 East Sprague Street, as requested by Roberto Martinez
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Future Land Use Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Plat
	 Survey
	 Site Plan
	 Site Photo

	 Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Auto-Urban Uses to General Commercial Uses and the Rezoning Request from Suburban Residential (S) District to Commercial General (CG) District, a 5.00 acre tract of land out of Lot 15, Section 237, Texas-Mexican Railway Company's Survey, located at 1000 North McColl Road, as requested by Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, Inc., on behalf of Cubic Walls, LLC.
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Future Land Use Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Survey
	 Site Photo

	 Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Auto-Urban Uses to Urban Uses and the Rezoning Request from Commercial General (CG) District to Urban Residential (UR) District, a 3.108 acre tract of land out of Lot 30, Kelly-Pharr Subdivision, located at 620 East Wisconsin Road, as requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc., on behalf of The Shoppes at Rio Grande Valley
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Future Land Use Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Survey
	 Site Photo

	 Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Agriculture Uses to Auto-Urban Uses and the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) District to Auto-Urban Residential (AU) District, a 4.985 acre tract of land out of Lot 14, Section 233, Texas-Mexican Railway Company's Survey, located at 1013 North Depot Road, as requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc., on behalf of Rosendo and Stephanie V. Benitez
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Future Land Use Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Survey
	 Site Photo

	 Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Industrial Uses to Auto-Urban Uses and the Rezoning Request from Commercial General (CG) District to Auto-Urban Residential (AU) District, a 12.831 acre tract of land consisting of 5.872 acres out of Lot 11, all of Lot 12 and 1.429 acres out of Lot 13, Subdivision 'C', Original Townsite, Amended City of Edinburg, located at 221 East Schunior Street, as requested by Trevi&ntilde;o Engineering, on behalf of Mel Phillip, Tide Products, Inc.
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Future Land Use Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Survey
	 Site Plan
	 Site Photo

	 Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from General Commercial Uses to Auto-Urban Uses and the Rezoning Request from Suburban Residential (S) District to Auto-Urban Residential (UR) District, a 6.87 acre tract of land, more or less, being a portion of Lot 15, Section 277, Texas-Mexican Railway Company's Survey, located at 4401 West Sprague Street, as requested by Realtex Development, on behalf of BBB & J Investments, LTD.
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Future Land Use Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Survey
	 Notification Response
	 Site Photo
	 Additional Information

	 Consider the Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Industrial Uses to General Commercial Uses and the Rezoning Request from Agriculture (AG) District to Commercial General (CG) District, 15.336 acres out of Lot 1, Section 244, Texas-Mexican Railway Company's Survey, located at 500 East Monte Cristo Road, as requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc., on behalf of Garman Investments, LP.
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Future Land Use Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Survey
	 Site Photo

	 Consider the Preliminary Plat of Carmen Avila Subdivision Phase VI, being a 37.64 acre tract of land out of Tract 156, San Salvador del Tule Grant, located at 9101 Carmen Avila Road, as requested by Quintanilla, Headley and Associates, Inc.
	 Engineering Comments
	 Aerial
	 Site Map
	 Reduced Plat
	 Application
	 Checklist

	 



Consider the Preliminary Plat of La Reserva Phase I-C Subdivision, being 4.048 acres out of Lots 6 and 11, Block 73, Engelman, Re-Subdivision, of the Missouri-Texas and Irrigation Company's Subdivision in Las Meste&ntilde;as Grant, located at 23501 Uresti Street as requested by HALFF Associates, Inc.




	 Engineering Comments
	 Aerial
	 Site Map
	 Reduced Plat
	 application
	 Checklist

	 Consider the Preliminary Plat of La Reserva Phase I-D Subdivision, being a 4.652 acre tract out of Lot 14, Block 73, Engelman, Re-Subdivision, of the Missouri-Texas and Irrigation Company's Subdivision in Las Meste&ntilde;as Grant, located at 23001 Uresti Street as requested by HALFF Associates, Inc.
	 Engineering Comments
	 Aerial
	 Site Map
	 Reduced Plat
	 application
	 Checklist

	 Consider the Final Plat for Los Lagos Subdivision Phase V - 'B', being a 15.90 acre tract of land more or less out of Lot 1, Swearengen Tract, located at 3707 East Mallorca Drive, as requested by Rio Delta Engineering
	 Reduced Plat
	 Aerial
	 Site Map
	 Checklist

	 Consider Variance Request to the City's Unified Development Code Section 8.204 Street Standards, Paving Width, proposed Los Cortijos Subdivision, being 60.00 acres out of the East 1/2 of Lot 13, Block 57, all of Lot 16, Block 58, Alamo Land and Sugar Company's Subdivision, located at 7601 East Trenton Road, as requested by Melden & Hunt, Inc., on behalf of Frank Villanueva and Abigail Villanueva Sandoval
	 Aerial
	 Site Map
	 Plat
	 Application
	 Cost Estimate Breakdown

	 City Council Actions: January 18, 2022 and February 1, 2022
	 Attachment A: January 18, 2022
	 Attachment B: February 1, 2022

	 Attendance Roster



